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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this annapbrt that are subject to risks and uncertainiieese forward-looking statements include
information about possible or assumed future resaflbur business, financial condition, liquiditgsults of operations, plans and objectives.
When we use the words "believe," "expect,” "anttdp’ "estimate,” "plan,” "continue,” “intend," ‘@id," "may," "would," "will" or similar
expressions, we intend to identify forward-lookstgtements. Statements regarding the followingesitdj among others, are forward-looking
by their nature:

0 our business and investment strategy;

o our projected financial and operating results;

o our ability to maintain existing financing arramgents, obtain future financing arrangements aadeims of such arrangements;
o general volatility of the securities markets ihigh we invest;

0 our expected investments;

o changes in the value of our investments;

o0 interest rate mismatches between our investnamt®ur borrowings used to fund such purchases;

o changes in interest rates and mortgage prepaynauest

o effects of interest rate caps on our adjustaddieinvestments;

o rates of default or decreased recovery ratesiomeestments;

o prepayments of the mortgage and other loans Iyraggiour mortgage-backed or other asset-backedrgies;
o the degree to which our hedging strategies magayr not protect us from interest rate volatility;

o impact of and changes in governmental regulati@xslaw and rates, accounting guidance, and aimiktters;
o availability of investment opportunities in regtate-related and other securities;

o availability of qualified personnel,

o0 estimates relating to our ability to make disttibns to our stockholders in the future;

o our understanding of our competition; and

o market trends in our industry, interest rates,dfbt securities markets or the general economy.
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The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futuréopmance, taking into account all
information currently available to us. You shoulnt place undue reliance on these forwkmaking statements. These beliefs, assumption:
expectations can change as a result of many pessieints or factors, not all of which are knownigoSome of these factors are described
under the caption "Risk Factors" in this Annual 8g@n Form 10-K and any subsequent Quarterly Repor Form 1. If a change occur
our business, financial condition, liquidity anduéis of operations may vary materially from theggressed in our forward-looking
statements. Any forward-looking statement spealg as of the date on which it is made. New riskd ancertainties arise from time to time,
and it is impossible for us to predict those eventsow they may affect us. Except as requirecilay; e are not obligated to, and do not
intend to, update or revise any forward-lookingesteents, whether as a result of new informatiotureuevents or otherwise.
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PART |
Item 1. Business
The Company

We are a specialty finance company that investesidential mortgage backed securities, or RMBSidential mortgage loans, real estate-
related securities and various other asset clagée®lected to be taxed as a real estate investnusntor REIT, for federal income tax
purposes commencing with our taxable year endinDe&rember 31, 2007. Therefore, we generally willb®subject to federal income tax
on our taxable income that is distributed to oockholders. We commenced operations in November.200

We are externally managed by Fixed Income Discduivisory Company, which we refer to as our ManagefIDAC. Our Manager is an
investment advisor registered with the Securitim$ Bxchange Commission, or SEC. Additionally, owaridger is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Annaly Capital Management, Inc., or Annaly, alNéork Stock Exchange-listed REIT, which has a loragk record of managing
investments in U.S. government agency mortgagedshsg&curities.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, prify through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achigg objective by investing in a broad class oéfinial assets to construct an investment
portfolio that is designed to achieve attractiwk+adjusted returns and that is structured to cpmith the various federal income tax
requirements for REIT status and to maintain owtiesion from regulation under the Investment Conyp&at of 1940, or 1940 Act.

Our Manager

We are externally managed and advised by FIDACyaunisto a management agreement. All of our offieeesemployees of our Manager or
one of its affiliates. Our Manager is a fixed-inaimvestment management company specializing iragiag investments in U.S.
government agency residential mortgage-backed isiesyior Agency RMBS, which are mortgage passttgtocertificates, collateralized
mortgage obligations, or CMOs, and other mortgageked securities representing interests in or abbigs backed by pools of mortgage
loans issued or guaranteed by the Federal NatMoetjage Association, or Fannie Mae, the Federahélboan Mortgage Corporation, or
Freddie Mac, and the Government National Mortgagsagiation, or Ginnie Mae. Our Manager also hageepce in managing investments
in non-Agency RMBS and collateralized debt obligas, or CDOs; real estate-related securities; amthging credit and interest rate-
sensitive investment strategies. Our Manager comatkactive investment management operations in.1®%ecember 31, 2008 our
Manager was the adviser or sub-adviser for funds approximately $2.5 billion in net assets and.$Million in gross assets, predominantly
Agency RMBS.

Our Manager is responsible for administering owsiess activities and day-to-day operations. We mvemployees other than our officers.
Pursuant to the terms of the management agreememtjanager provides us with our management teacfyding our officers, along with
appropriate support personnel. Our Manager id #éing¢s subject to the supervision and oversighdwfboard of directors and has only such
functions and authority as we delegate to it.

Our Manager has well-respected and establisheébpontnanagement resources for each of our targa$edt classes and a sophisticated
infrastructure supporting those resources, inclgidiwestment professionals focusing on residentiaitgage loans, Agency and non-Agency
RMBS and other asset-backed securities, or ABSitiba@lly, we have benefitted and expect to corgitm benefit from our Manager's
finance and administration functions, which addtegal, compliance, investor relations and openaionatters, including portfolio
management, trade allocation and execution, seuxialuation, risk management and informationnetdgies in connection with the
performance of its duties.

We do not pay any of our officers any cash compsaRather, we pay our Manager a base managde®pursuant to the terms of the
management agreement.



Our Investment Strategy

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, prify through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achigg objective by investing in a diversified invesint portfolio of RMBS, residential
mortgage loans, real estate-related securitievarndus other asset classes, subject to maintasundREIT status and exemption from
registration under the 1940 Act. The RMBS, ABS, owencial mortgage backed securities, or CMBS, an®©€ e purchase may include
investment-grade and non-investment grade clags#sding the BB-rated, B-rated and non-rated @ass

We rely on our Manager's expertise in identifyisgets within our target asset classes. Our Mamagkes investment decisions based on
various factors, including expected cash yieldatiet value, risk-adjusted returns, current angegted credit fundamentals, current and
projected macroeconomic considerations, currentpao@cted supply and demand, credit and markletcasicentration limits, liquidity, cost
of financing and financing availability, as well agintaining our REIT qualification and our exeroptfrom registration under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investment allocatistrategy as market conditions change to seek innize the returns from our investment
portfolio. We believe this strategy, combined wotlr Manager's experience, will enable us to paiddivds and achieve capital appreciation
throughout changing interest rate and credit cyatesprovide attractive long-term returns to inoest

Our targeted asset classes and the principal mesgs we expect to make in each are as follows:

Asset Class P rincipal Investments

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities o Non-Age ncy RMBS, including
investm ent-grade and non-investment
grade ¢ lasses, including the
BB-rate d, B-rated and non-rated
classes

o Agency RMBS.

Residential Mortgage Loans o0 Primem ortgage loans, which are
mortgag e loans that conform to the
underwr iting guidelines of Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac, which we refer
toas A gency Guidelines; and jumbo
prime m ortgage loans, which are
mortgag e loans that conform to the
Agency Guidelines except as to loan
size.

o Alt-Am ortgage loans, which are
mortgag e loans that may have been
origina ted using documentation
standar ds that are less stringent
than th e documentation standards
applied by certain other first lien
mortgag e loan purchase programs,
such as the Agency Guidelines, but
have on e or more compensating
factors such as a borrower with a
strong credit or mortgage history or
signifi cant assets.

Other Asset-Backed Securities o CMBS.

o Debtan d equity tranches of CDOs.

o Consume r and non-consumer ABS,
includi ng investment-grade and
non-inv estment grade classes,
includi ng the BB-rated, B-rated and
non-rat ed classes.



Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquinog-Agency RMBS and on
purchasing residential mortgage loans that have baginated by select high-quality originators;lirding the retail lending operations of
leading commercial banks. Our investment portfati@ecember 31, 2008 was weighted toward non-Ag&MBS. We expect that over the
near term, our investment portfolio will continuelte weighted toward RMBS, subject to maintainingREIT qualification and our 1940
Act exemption.

In addition, we have engaged in and anticipateicoimg to engage in transactions with residentiattgage lending operations of leading
commercial banks and other high-quality originatehsch we identify and re-underwrite residentialnigage loans owned by such entities,
and rather than purchasing and securitizing susideatial mortgage loans ourselves, we and thénatigr would structure the securitization
and we would purchase the resulting mezzanine alpordinate non-Agency RMBS. We may also engag@ifa transactions with non-
Agency RMBS in which we acquire AAA-rated non-AggmMBS and immediately reecuritize those securities. We would sell the Itieg.
AAA-rated super senior RMBS and retain the AAA-thteezzanine RMBS. Our investment decisions, howevidrdepend on prevailing
market conditions and will change over time. Agsuit, we cannot predict the percentage of ourtsiisat will be invested in each asset class
or whether we will invest in other classes of irwssnts. We may change our investment strategy alicigs without a vote of our
stockholders.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT commencitigoui taxable year ended December 31, 2007 anigpeur business to be exempt
from registration under the 1940 Act, and therefeesare required to invest a substantial majorfitgur assets in loans secured by mortgages
on real estate and real estate-related asset®ecstjmaintaining our REIT qualification and o@4D Act exemption, we do not have any
limitations on the amounts we may invest in anpwf targeted asset classes.

Investment Portfolio
The following briefly discusses the principal tymdsnvestments that we have made and expect temak
Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

We have invested in and intend to continue to inleBRMBS which are typically pass-through certifies created by the securitization of a
pool of mortgage loans that are collateralizeddsydential real estate properties.

The securitization process is governed by one aembthe rating agencies, including Fitch Ratingspdy's Investors Service and Standard
& Poor's, which determine the respective bond démess, generally based on a sequential paymertste. Bonds that are rated from AAA
to BBB by the rating agencies are considered "itueat grade." Bond classes that are subordindteetBBB class are considered "below-
investment grade" or "non-investment grade." Tpeetive bond class sizes are determined basdwkaptiew of the underlying collateral
by the rating agencies. The payments received fhenunderlying loans are used to make the paynwentise RMBS. Based on the sequer
payment priority, the risk of nonpayment for theestment grade RMBS is lower than the risk of ngnpent for the non-investment grade
bonds. Accordingly, the investment grade clasgpgally sold at a lower yield compared to the niovestment grade classes which are sold
at higher yields.

We invest in investment grade and non-investmeadgyRMBS. We evaluate the credit characteristithade types of securities, including,
but not limited to, loan balance distribution, gesgghic concentration, property type, occupancyiopés and lifetime cap, weighted-average
loan-to-value and weighted-average FICO score. i€iraj securities are then analyzed using basedipectations of expected prepayments
and losses from given sectors, issuers and therdwstate of the fixed-income market. Losses apggyments are stressed simultaneously
based on a credit risk-based model. Securitielsisnportfolio are monitored for variance from exigecprepayments, frequencies, severities,
losses and cash flow. The due diligence procgsarigcularly important and costly with respect ety formed originators or issuers beca
there may be little or no information publicly aladile about these entities and investments.

We may invest in net interest margin securitied\ids, which are notes that are payable from amdigal by excess cash flow that is
generated by RMBS or home equity line of creditkeaicsecurities, or HELOCS, after paying the debtise, expenses and fees on such
securities. The excess cash flow represents allpartion of a residual that is generally retaibgdhe originator of the RMBS or HELOCs.
The residual is illiquid, thus the originator witlonetize the position by securitizing the residara issuing a NIM, usually in the form of a
note that is backed by the excess cash flow gertbmatthe underlying securitization.
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We may invest in mortgage pass-through certifica®sed or guaranteed by Ginnie Mae, Fannie M&geaidie Mac. We refer to these U.S.
government agencies as Agencies, and to the merigasgs-through certificates they issue or guaras@eency Mortgage Pass-through
Certificates. More specifically, Agency MortgagesBdhrough Certificates are securities represeititegests in "pools" of mortgage loans
secured by residential real property where paymefit®th interest and principal, plus pre-paid pifial, on the securities are made monthly
to holders of the security, in effect "passing thglo" monthly payments made by the individual booswon the mortgage loans that underlie
the securities, net of fees paid to the issueréntar and servicers of the securities. We mayialgest in CMOs issued by the Agencies.
CMOs consist of multiple classes of securitieshweigich class bearing different stated maturitysdattonthly payments of principal,
including prepayments, are first returned to ingesholding the shortest maturity class; inveshmigling the longer maturity classes receive
principal only after the first class has been egtilWe refer to these types of securities as AgePs, and we refer to Agency Mortgage
Pass-through Certificates and Agency CMOs as Ag&MBS.

Agency RMBS are collateralized by either fixed-ratertgage loans, or FRMs, adjustable-rate mortdaayes, or ARMs, or hybrid ARMs.
Hybrid ARMs are mortgage loans that have interatgts that are fixed for an initial period (typigathree, five, seven or ten years) and
thereafter reset at regular intervals subject tier@st rate caps. Our allocation between secudt#ateralized by FRMs, ARMs or hybrid
ARMs will depend on various factors including, Imat limited to, relative value, expected futuregagment trends, supply and demand, ¢
of financing, costs of hedging, expected futureriest rate volatility and the overall shape ofth8. Treasury and interest rate swap yield
curves. We take these factors into account whemualee these types of investments.

Recently, the government passed the Housing anddaatic Recovery Act of 2008. Fannie Mae and Fredithe have recently been placed
into the conservatorship of the Federal HousingR@e Agency, or FHFA, their federal regulator, part to its powers under the Federal
Housing Finance Regulatory Reform Act of 2008, @ pathe Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2088 the conservator of Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac, the FHFA controls and dirdetsoperations of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and(f)aake over the assets of and
operate Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac with all thegyewf the shareholders, the directors, and theeoff of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
and conduct all business of Fannie Mae and Frdddi® (2) collect all obligations and money due smftie Mae and Freddie Mac; (3)
perform all functions of Fannie Mae and Freddie Ménich are consistent with the conservator's agpwnt; (4) preserve and conserve the
assets and property of Fannie Mae and Freddie Muar;

(5) contract for assistance in fulfilling any fuiwet, activity, action or duty of the conservator.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conservator of fiarMae and Freddie Mac,

(i) the U.S. Department of Treasury and FHFA haverd into preferred stock purchase agreemenisekatthe U.S. Department of
Treasury and Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac pursuamhiich the U.S. Department of Treasury will ensitva each of Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac maintains a positive net worth; (ig th.S. Department of Treasury has established aseeured lending credit facility which
will be available to Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, amelEederal Home Loan Banks, which is intended neesas a liquidity backstop, which w
be available until December 2009; and (iii) the \D8partment of Treasury has initiated a tempopaogram to purchase RMBS issued by
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.

The Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008EBSA, was recently enacted. The EESA providedtl$e Secretary of the Treasury
with the authority to establish a Troubled Asselid®é&rogram, or TARP, to purchase from financratitutions up to $700 billion of equity
and preferred securities and residential or comialemortgages and any securities, obligations teoinstruments that are based on or
related to such mortgages, that in each case viginated or issued on or before March 14, 2008yelsas any other financial instrument t
the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury, after consattatith the Chairman of the Board of Governorshef Federal Reserve System, determines
the purchase of which is necessary to promote €iimhmarket stability, upon transmittal of suchetetination, in writing, to the appropriate
committees of the U.S. Congress. The EESA alsoigesvfor a program that would allow companies ture their troubled assets.

There can be no assurance that the EESA will hdeneficial impact on the financial markets, inéhgdcurrent extreme levels of volatility.
To the extent the market does not respond favortakilye TARP or the TARP does not function as idegh) our business may not receive the
anticipated positive impact from the legislatiom.addition, the U.S. Government, Federal Reserdeosimer governmental and regulatory
bodies have taken or are considering taking otboras to address the financial crisis. We canmedist whether or when such actions may
occur or what impact, if any, such actions couldehan our business, results of operations and ¢iahnondition.
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We anticipate engaging in transactions with redidémortgage lending operations of leading comiiatzanks and other high-quality
originators in which we identify and re-underwnitsidential mortgage loans owned by such entiéied,rather than purchasing and
securitizing such residential mortgage loans ouesglwe and the originator would structure the stezation and we would purchase the
resulting mezzanine and subordinate non-Agency RMB& may also engage in similar transactions with-Agency RMBS in which we
would acquire AAA-rated non-Agency RMBS and immaeeliare-securitize those securities. We would telresulting AAA-rated super
senior RMBS and retain the AAA-rated mezzanine RMBS

Residential Mortgage Loans

We have invested and intend to continue to investsidential mortgage loans (mortgage loans sddweesidential real property) primarily
through direct purchases from selected high-qualiyinators. We intend to enter into additionalrtgage loan purchase agreements with a
number of primary mortgage loan originators, in@hgdmortgage bankers, commercial banks, savingdaamdassociations, home builders,
credit unions and mortgage conduits. We may alsohase mortgage loans on the secondary marketxpéeethese loans to be secured
primarily by residential properties in the Unitethi®s.

We invest primarily in residential mortgage loamslerwritten to our specifications. The originatpesform the credit review of the
borrowers, the appraisal of the properties secutirdoan, and maintain other quality control prhaes. We generally consider the purchase
of loans when the originators have verified thertwers' income and assets, verified their creditany and obtained appraisals of the
properties. We or a third party perform an indegendinderwriting review of the processing, undetingi and loan closing methodologies
that the originators used in qualifying a borrod@ra loan. Depending on the size of the loansmag not review all of the loans in a pool,
but rather select loans for underwriting reviewezhapon specific risk-based criteria such as ptgpecation, loan size, effective loan-to-
value ratio, borrower's credit score and otheeddtwe believe to be important indicators of creidk. Additionally, before the purchase of
loans, we obtain representations and warranties &ach originator stating that each loan is undéemrto our requirements or, in the event
underwriting exceptions have been made, we arerrdd so that we may evaluate whether to accemjectrthe loans. An originator who
breaches these representations and warrantieskimgra loan that we purchase may be obligatedparahase the loan from us. As added
security, we use the services of a third-party doent custodian to insure the quality and accurd@fl andividual mortgage loan closing
documents and to hold the documents in safekeepmag.result, all of the original loan collateralodiments that are signed by the borrower,
other than the original credit verification docurtserare examined, verified and held by the thirdypdocument custodian.

We currently do not intend to originate mortgagenke or provide other types of financing to the owsraf real estate. We currently do not
intend to establish a loan servicing platform, éxpect to retain highly-rated servicers to seragemortgage loan portfolio. We purchase
certain residential mortgage loans on a servicatgined basis. In the future, however, we may @etcriginate mortgage loans or other
types of financing, and we may elect to servicetgage loans and other types of assets.

We expect that all servicers servicing our loanshe highly rated by the rating agencies. We alsoduct a due diligence review of each
servicer before executing a servicing agreememti@&eg procedures will typically follow Fannie Magiidelines but will be specified in ea
servicing agreement. All servicing agreements midlet standards for inclusion in highly rated magghacked or asset-backed
securitizations. We have entered into a masteigegvagreement with Wells Fargo, N.A. to assistMith management, servicing oversight,
and other administrative duties associated withagang our mortgage loans.

We expect that the loans we acquire will be filest | single-family residential traditional fixedtea adjustable-rate and hybrid adjustable-rate
loans with original terms to maturity of not mohah 40 years and are either fully amortizing oriaterest-only for up to ten years, and fully
amortizing thereafter. Fixed-rate mortgage loarex @ interest rate that is fixed for the life lo¢ foan. All adjustable-rate and hybrid
adjustable-rate residential mortgage loans wilk laeeinterest rate tied to an interest rate intibost loans have periodic and lifetime
constraints on how much the loan interest ratecb@amge on any predetermined interest rate reset Tag interest rate on each adjustahbte-
mortgage loan resets monthly, semi-annually or altiywand generally adjusts to a margin over a Ur8asury index or the LIBOR index.
Hybrid adjustable-rate loans have a fixed rateafoinitial period, generally three to ten years] #ren convert to adjustable-rate loans for
their remaining term to maturity.



We acquire residential mortgage loans for our pticfwith the intention of either securitizing theand retaining them in our portfolio as
securitized mortgage loans, or holding them inresidential mortgage loan portfolio. To facilitdtee securitization or financing of our loans,
we expect to generally create subordinate centédsgavhich provide a specified amount of creditaardement. We expect to issue securities
through securities underwriters and either retiisé securities or finance them in the repurchaimement market. There is no limit on the
amount we may retain of these below-investmentggdbordinate certificates. Until we securitize msgidential mortgage loans, we expect
to finance our residential mortgage loan portfofimugh the use of warehouse facilities and reagetagreements.

Other Asset-Backed Securities

We may invest in securities issued in various CDBf@rimgs to gain exposure to bank loans, corpdoateds, ABS, mortgages, RMBS and
CMBS and other instruments. To avoid any actuglesceived conflicts of interest with our Manager jmvestment in any such security
structured or managed by our Manager will be apgildw a majority of our independent directors. i@ éxtent such securities are treated as
debt of the CDO issuer for federal income tax pagspwe will hold the securities directly, subjecthe requirements of our continued
qualification as a REIT. To the extent the secesitiepresent equity interests in a CDO issuerefderial income tax purposes, we may be
required to hold such securities through a taxB®BE€T subsidiary, or TRS, which would cause the meaecognized with respect to such
securities to be subject to federal (and applicatde and local) corporate income tax. See "Ré&kdes -Tax Risks." We could fail to quali

as a REIT or we could become subject to a penaityf the income we recognize from certain invesitaghat are treated or could be treated
as equity interests in a foreign corporation excg#dof our gross income in a taxable year.

We may invest in CMBS, which are secured by, odence ownership interests in, a single commercaatgage loan or a pool of mortgage
loans secured by commercial properties. These iesunay be senior, subordinated, investment gaadh@ninvestment grade. We intend
invest in CMBS that will yield current interest oroe and where we consider the return of princip&le likely. We intend to acquire CMBS
from private originators of, or investors in, matg loans, including savings and loan associatimnstgage bankers, commercial banks,
finance companies, investment banks and otheiemntit

In general, CDO issuers are special purpose vehibkg hold a portfolio of income-producing as$ietanced through the issuance of rated
debt securities of different seniority and equitile debt tranches are typically rated based onft@ststructure, portfolio quality,
diversification and credit enhancement. The eggétyurities issued by the CDO vehicle are the "fass" piece of the CDO vehicle's capital
structure, but they are also generally entitledltoesidual amounts available for payment after@O vehicle's senior obligations have b
satisfied. Some CDO vehicles are "synthetic," incltihe credit risk to the collateral pool is triersed to the CDO vehicle by a credit
derivative such as a credit default swap.

We also intend to invest in consumer ABS. Theseariizs are generally securities for which the uhdeg collateral consists of assets such
as home equity loans, credit card receivables atallaans. We also expect to invest in non-consukiB$. These securities are generally
secured by loans to businesses and consist obass#t as equipment loans, truck loans and agrialikquipment loans. Issuers of consumer
and non-consumer ABS generally are special purpottes owned or sponsored by banks and finanogaaies, captive finance
subsidiaries of non-financial corporations or spkoéd originators such as credit card lenders nvslg purchase RMBS and ABS which are
denominated in foreign currencies or are collateedl by non-U.S. assets.

Investment Guidelines

We have adopted a set of investment guidelinesstitaiut the asset classes, risk tolerance ledigks;sification requirements and other
criteria used to evaluate the merits of specifieBtments as well as the overall portfolio compasitOur Manager's Investment Committee
reviews our compliance with the investment guidsdiperiodically and our board of directors receaesnvestment report at each quarter-
end in conjunction with its review of our quartergsults. Our board also reviews our investmentfglay and related compliance with our
investment policies and procedures and investmegdetines at each regularly scheduled board otthre meeting.

Our board of directors and our Manager's Investr@@mmittee have adopted the following guidelingsoiiar investments and borrowings:
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o No investment shall be made that would cause €sltto qualify as a REIT for federal income fanrposes;
o No investment shall be made that would cause bg regulated as an investment company underoé@ Act;

o With the exception of real estate and housingsingle industry shall represent greater than 20%esecurities or aggregate risk exposure
in our portfolio; and

o Investments in non-rated or deeply subordinatB& Ar other securities that are non-qualifying sk purposes of the 75% REIT asset
test will be limited to an amount not to exceed 58R6ur stockholders' equity.

These investment guidelines may be changed by erityapf our board of directors without the apprbehour stockholders.

Our board of directors has also adopted a sepseats investment guidelines and procedures tomower relationships with FIDAC. We
have also adopted detailed compliance policie®t@m our interaction with FIDAC, including whenD¥AC is in receipt of material non-
public information.

Our Financing Strategy

We use leverage to increase potential returnsitatogkholders. We are not required to maintaingpscific debt-to-equity ratio as we
believe the appropriate leverage for the particataets we are financing depends on the crediitgaad risk of those assets.

Subject to our maintaining our qualification aslEAIR we may use a number of sources to financanwaistments, including the following:

o Repurchase Agreements. We finance certain oassgts through the use of repurchase agreemen@niipate that repurchase
agreements will be one of the sources we will osachieve our desired amount of leverage for csidemtial real estate assets. We maintain
formal relationships with multiple counterpartiesobtain financing on favorable terms.

o Warehouse Facilities. We may utilize credit fitiel for capital needed to fund our assets. Weniditto maintain formal relationships with
multiple counterparties to maintain warehouse lioe$avorable terms.

o Securitization. We have and may continue to aegeisidential mortgage loans for our portfoliohatite intention of securitizing them and
retaining the securitized mortgage loans in outfplio. To facilitate the securitization or finamgj of our loans, we generally create
subordinate certificates, providing a specified amaf credit enhancement, which we intend to reitaiour portfolio.

o Asset-Backed Commercial Paper. We may finandaioeof our assets using asset-backed commerqgiarpar ABCP, conduits, which are
bankruptcy-remote special purpose vehicles thaeissmmercial paper and the proceeds of whichsed to fund assets, either through
repurchase or secured lending programs. We maygeuAIBCP conduits of third parties or create ounawnduit.

o Term Financing CDOs. We may finance certain afamsets using term financing strategies, inclu@bgs and other match-funded
financing structures. CDOs are multiple class dgelourities, or bonds, secured by pools of assgth, & mortgage-backed securities and
corporate debt. Like typical securitization strue) in a CDO:

o the assets are pledged to a trustee for theibeh#fe holders of the bonds;

0 one or more classes of the bonds are rated bpromere rating agencies; and

0 one or more classes of the bonds are market@avtde variety of fixed-income investors, which bles the CDO sponsor to achieve a
relatively low cost of long-term financing.



Unlike typical securitization structures, the urigieg assets may be sold, subject to certain litioitess, without a corresponding pay-down of
the CDO, provided the proceeds are reinvestedalifging assets. As a result, CDOs enable the sprawsactively manage, subject to certain
limitations, the pool of assets. We believe CD@fficing structures may be an appropriate financatgcle for our target asset classes
because they will enable us to obtain relatively, llong-term cost of funds and minimize the ristttve may have to refinance our liabilities
before the maturities of our investments, whileiggwus the flexibility to manage credit risk andbgect to certain limitations, to take
advantage of profit opportunities.

Our Interest Rate Hedging and Risk Management Straggy

We may, from time to time, utilize derivative findal instruments to hedge all or a portion of thieiest rate risk associated with our
borrowings. Under the federal income tax laws ablie to REITS, we generally enter into certaindections to hedge indebtedness that we
incur, or plan to incur, to acquire or carry restlade assets, although our total gross income $uch hedges and other non-qualifying sources
must not exceed 25% of our gross income.

We engage in a variety of interest rate manageteehniques that seek to mitigate changes in inteaéss or other potential influences on
values of our assets. The federal income tax apgticable to REITs require us to implement certdithese techniques through a taxable
REIT subsidiary or "TRS" that is fully subject torporate income taxation. Our interest rate managenechniques may include:

o puts and calls on securities or indices of s&esri

o Eurodollar futures contracts and options on suwtiracts;

o0 interest rate caps, swaps and swaptions;

0 U.S. treasury securities and options on U.Sstmgesecurities; and
o other similar transactions.

We attempt to reduce interest rate risks and tomite exposure to interest rate fluctuations thiotige use of match funded financing
structures, when appropriate, whereby we seeh (dtch the maturities of our debt obligations with maturities of our assets and (ii) to
match the interest rates on our investments whitirkind debt (i.e., floating rate assets are fimahwith floating rate debt and fixedte asset
are financed with fixed-rate debt), directly orahgh the use of interest rate swaps, caps or 6ttearcial instruments, or through a
combination of these strategies. This will allowtaisninimize the risk that we have to refinance laabilities before the maturities of our
assets and to reduce the impact of changing irtexss on our earnings.

Compliance with REIT and Investment Company Requirenents

We monitor our investment securities and the incfnom these securities and, to the extent we éntethedging transactions, we monitor
income from our hedging transactions as well, s &nsure at all times that we maintain our gicalifon as a REIT and our exempt status
under the 1940 Act.

Employees

We are externally managed and advised by our Manmagsuant to a management agreement as discusked bVe have no employees
other than our officers, each of whom is also aplegee of our Manager or one of its affiliates. ®anager is not obligated to dedicate
certain of its employees exclusively to us, nat @ its employees obligated to dedicate any sjpegortion of its time to our business. Our
Manager uses the proceeds from its managememnt fegrti to pay compensation to its officers and eygds who, notwithstanding that
certain of them also are our officers, receive ashccompensation directly from us.
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The Management Agreemen

We entered into a management agreement with oualyerwith an initial term ending December 31, 204ith automatic, ongrear renewal

at the end of each calendar year following theahierm, subject to approval by our independergalors. Under the management agreement,
our Manager implements our business strategy aridrpes certain services for us, subject to oveitsighour board of directors. Our

Manager is responsible for, among other thingdppeiing all of our day-taday functions; determining investment criteria @amginction witr
our board of directors; sourcing, analyzing andcexag investments; asset sales and financingsparfdrming asset management duties.

Our independent directors review our Manager'soperdnce annually, and following the initial terine tmanagement agreement may be
terminated by us without cause upon the affirmativie of at least two-thirds of our independengediors, or by a vote of the holders of at
least a majority of the outstanding shares of @mmon stock (other than shares held by Annalysoafiiliates), based upon: (i) our
Manager's unsatisfactory performance that is madtgidetrimental to us, or (ii) our determinatidrat the management fees payable to our
Manager are not fair, subject to our Manager'stitiglprevent termination based on unfair fees lpepting a reduction of management fees
agreed to by at least two-thirds of our independé@ettors. We will provide our Manager with 180ydaprior notice of such termination.
Upon termination without cause, we will pay our Mger a substantial termination fee. We may alsuitexte the management agreement
with 30 days' prior notice from our board of dilst, without payment of a termination fee, for @as upon a change of control of Annaly
our Manager, each as defined in the managemenrgragred. Our Manager may terminate the managemee¢magnt if we become required
register as an investment company under the 1940nth such termination deemed to occur immedyjalefore such event, in which case
we would not be required to pay a termination @er Manager may also decline to renew the manageageeement by providing us with
180-days' written notice, in which case we woultlb®required to pay a termination fee.

We pay our Manager a base management fee quairtextyears in an amount equal to 1.50% per annafoylated quarterly, of our
stockholders' equity. For purposes of calculatirggliase management fee, our stockholders' equansrtee sum of the net proceeds from
any issuances of our equity securities since incegtllocated on a pro rata daily basis for sesuances during the fiscal quarter of any ¢
issuance), plus our retained earnings at the esddaf quarter (without taking into account any eash equity compensation expense
incurred in current or prior periods), less any antdhat we pay for repurchases of our common sttt less any unrealized gains, losses ot
other items that do not affect realized net incgragardless of whether such items are includedhiaracomprehensive income or loss, or in
net income). This amount is adjusted to excludetone events pursuant to changes in generally aedeaxcounting principles, or GAAP,
and certain non-cash charges after discussionskataur Manager and our independent directors jppicbaed by a majority of our
independent directors. The base management febavitduced, but not below zero, by our proportesaare of any CDO base manager
fees FIDAC receives in connection with the CDOwhich we invest, based on the percentage of egquéthold in such CDOs. The base
management fee is payable independent of the peafoce of our investment portfolio.

For the year ended December 31, 2008 and the pedgdmber 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, our Mansgrmed base management fees
of $8.4 million and $1.2 million, respectively areteived expense reimbursement of $0 and $698 dindysespectively. Currently, our
Manager has waived its right to require us to paypwo rata portion of rent, telephone, utilitieffice furniture, equipment, machinery and
other office, internal and overhead expenses oMamager and its affiliates required for our opers. In October 2008, we and FIDAC
amended our management agreement to reduce thenbasgement fee from 1.75% per annum to 1.50%rparma of our stockholders'
equity and eliminate the incentive fees previoystyvided for in the management agreement.

Competition

Our net income depends, in large part, on ourtghidi acquire assets at favorable spreads oveln@uowing costs. In acquiring real estate-
related assets, we will compete with other mortgRBé€T's, specialty finance companies, savings aad &ssociations, banks, mortgage
bankers, insurance companies, mutual funds, itistital investors, investment banking firms, finaidénstitutions, governmental bodies and
other entities. In addition, there are numeroustgagre REITs with similar asset acquisition objezsivincluding a number that have been
recently formed, and others that may be organirdte future. These other REITs will increase catitipa for the available supply of
mortgage assets suitable for purchase. Many of@mpetitors are significantly larger than we amjeéhaccess to greater capital and other
resources and may have other advantages over addition, some of our competitors may have higtsirtolerances or different risk
assessments, which could allow them to considedarwariety of investments and establish more fable relationships than we can.
Current market conditions may attract more comgegjtwhich may increase the competition for souoddmancing. An increase in the
competition for sources of funding could adversafect the availability and cost of financing, ehéreby adversely affect the market pric
our common stock.

11



Distributions

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we mustdbute substantially all of our taxable incometo stockholders for each year. We have
declared and paid regular quarterly dividends enghst and intend to do so in the future.

Available Information

Our investor relations website is www.chimerareitnc We make available on the website under "Firsdicformation /SEC filings," free of
charge, our annual report on Form 10-K and anyraty@orts as soon as reasonably practicable aétexlectronically file or furnish such
materials to the SEC. Information on our websiteyéver, is not part of this Annual Report on FordaklL
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

The risks and uncertainties described below ar¢hobnly ones facing us. Additional risks and utaiaties that we are unaware of, or that
we currently deem immaterial, also may become ingmbifactors that affect us.

If any of the following risks occur, our busineisancial condition or results of operations coblimaterially and adversely affected. In that
case, the trading price of our common stock coeltlide, and stockholders may lose some or all @f ihvestment.

Risks Associated With Recent Adverse Developmentse Mortgage Finance and Credit Markets

Difficult conditions in the financial markets arfteteconomy generally have caused us and may certtintause us market value losses
related to our holdings, and we do not expect tikesditions to improve in the near future.

Our results of operations are materially affectg@dnditions in the mortgage market, the finanmiarkets and the economy generally.
Recently, concerns over inflation, energy costepgétical issues, the availability and cost ofditethe mortgage market and a declining real
estate market have contributed to increased vityadihd diminished expectations for the economy iewadkets going forward. The mortgage
market, including the market for prime and Alt-Aalts, has been severely affected by changes ienllinly landscape and there is no
assurance that these conditions have stabilizéthbthey will not worsen. The severity of the ligjty limitation was largely unanticipated |
the markets. For now (and for the foreseeable é)farccess to mortgages has been substantiallgdimivhile the limitation on financing w
initially in the sub-prime mortgage market, theuiidjty issues have now also affected prime andAAtten-Agency lending, with mortgage
rates remaining much higher than previously avélabrecent periods and many product types begvgrely curtailed. This has an impac
new demand for homes, which will compress the homership rates and weigh heavily on future honieegrerformance. There is a strong
correlation between home price growth rates andgage loan delinquencies. The market deteriordtamcaused us to expect increased
losses related to our holdings and to sell assetdoss.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, in omdezduce our leverage to protect our portfolio frioereased market volatility, we sold
assets with a carrying value of $802.5 million anPAgency RMBS and unsecured loans for a loss pfagimately $144.3 million and
terminated $1.5 billion in notional interest rateaps for a loss of approximately $10.3 million, wihtogether resulted in a net realized los
approximately $154.6 million. Further declinesthie tmarket values of our investments may adverdtdgtegperiodic reported results and
credit availability, which may reduce earnings andurn, cash available for distribution to ounckholders.

A substantial portion of our assets are classiic@@ccounting purposes as "available-for-sale" eamiied at fair value. Changes in the fair
values of those assets are directly charged oitecketb other comprehensive income. As a resudedine in values may reduce the book
value of our assets. Moreover, if the decline ilugaf an available-fosale security is other than temporary, such dedliieeduce earning

All of our repurchase agreements and interests@tg agreements are subject to bilateral margis icathe event that the collateral securing
our obligations under those facilities exceedsamsonot meet our collateralization requirements.aneyze the sufficiency of our
collateralization daily. During 2008, due to tha@eat@ration in the market value of our assets, @ived and met margin calls under our
repurchase agreements, which resulted in our abtpadditional funding from third parties, includifrom Annaly (see "Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions"), and ¢gasther steps to increase our liquidity. Additidpathe disruptions during the year ended
December 31, 2008 resulted in us not being in c@ampeé with the net income covenant in one of ouol@toan repurchase agreements and
the liquidity covenants in our other whole loanugghase agreement at a time during which we haahmmunts outstanding under those
facilities. We amended these covenants, and on23y12008, we terminated those facilities to aymgting non-usage fees. A reduction in
credit available may reduce our earnings and,rim, ttash available to us for distribution to stomklers.
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Dramatic declines in the housing market, with fejlhome prices and increasing foreclosures and plogment, have resulted in significant
asset write-downs by financial institutions, whitdve caused many financial institutions to seektiatdl capital, to merge with other
institutions and, in some cases, to fail. In additiwe rely on the availability of financing to ade residential mortgage loans, real estate-
related securities and real estate loans on adgedrbasis. Institutions from which we will seelohtain financing may have owned or
financed residential mortgage loans, real estdteet securities and real estate loans, which daeéned in value and caused them to suffer
losses as a result of the recent downturn in thideatial mortgage market. Many lenders and irtgtibal investors have reduced and, in st
cases, ceased to provide funding to borrowersydnag) other financial institutions. If these coinalits persist, these institutions may become
insolvent or tighten their lending standards, whiolild make it more difficult for us to obtain fimeing on favorable terms or at all. Our
profitability may be adversely affected if we arable to obtain cost-effective financing for ouwéstments.

A significant portion of our financing is from Anlyavhich is a significant shareholder of ours artiak owns our Manager.

Our ability to fund our investments on a leverabadis depends to a large extent upon our abiliseture warehouse, repurchase, credit,
and/or commercial paper financing on acceptablagemhe current dislocation in the non-Agency magtgsector has made it difficult for us
to obtain short-term financing on favorable terss.a result, we have completed loan securitizatiorsder to obtain long-term financing
and terminated our un-utilized whole loan repurehagreements in order to avoid paying non-usageuerder those agreements. In addition,
we have entered into a RMBS repurchase agreemén#nnaly, which owns approximately 8.6% of oursiahding shares of common
stock. This agreement contains customary repref@msawarranties and covenants contained in sgofeaents including Annaly having 1
right to make margin calls if the value of our RMB@&8Iateralizing the agreement falls. As of Decentife 2008, we had $562.1 million
outstanding under this agreement which consistéppfoximately 53% of our total financing. Our RMBurchase agreement with Annal
rolled daily at market rates and is secured byRNBS pledged under the agreement. We do not expaatrease significantly the amount of
securities pledged to Annaly or significantly inese or decrease the funds we borrow from Annalyc#¥aot assure you that Annaly will
continue to provide us with such financing. If Ahndoes not provide us with financing, we cannatuas you that we will be able to replace
such financing. If we are not able to replace finiancing, we could be forced to sell our assetnanhopportune time when prices are
depressed.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may adwysaffect our business, including our ability @lwe and sell our assets.

We have invested and may continue to invest inr#ésior other instruments that are not liquid.rigtover, turbulent market conditions, such
as those currently in effect, could significanthdanegatively impact the liquidity of our assetsnhy be difficult or impossible to obtain third
party pricing on the investments we purchase.ditignvestments typically experience greater pvigkatility, as a ready market does not e;
and can be more difficult to value. In additionlidating third party pricing for illiquid investmés may be more subjective than more liquid
investments. The illiquidity of our investments magke it difficult for us to sell such investmeiftthe need or desire arises. In addition, if
we are required to liquidate all or a portion of portfolio quickly, we may realize significantlgds than the value at which we have
previously recorded our investments. As a resuitability to vary our portfolio in response to dig&s in economic and other conditions may
be relatively limited, which could adversely affectr results of operations and financial condition.

There can be no assurance that the actions of egdvernment, Federal Reserve and other goverahaard regulatory bodies for the
purpose of stabilizing the financial markets, orkearesponse to those actions, will achieve themithed effect, our business may not benefit
from these actions and further government or matkeelopments could adversely impact us.

In response to the financial issues affecting #ieking system and financial markets and going aoniteeats to investment banks and other
financial institutions, the Emergency Economic 8tzdtion Act of 2008, or EESA, was recently enactéhe EESA provides the U.S.
Secretary of the Treasury with the authority t@bksh a Troubled Asset Relief Program, or TARRyuechase from financial institutions up
to $700 billion of residential or commercial morgga and any securities, obligations, or otherumsémts that are based on or related to such
mortgages, that in each case was originated oedssn or before March 14, 2008, as well as anyrdihencial instrument that the U.S.
Secretary of the Treasury, after consultation withChairman of the Board of Governors of the Faldeeserve System, determines the
purchase of which is necessary to promote finamsaket stability, upon transmittal of such detevation, in writing, to the appropriate
committees of the U.S. Congress. The EESA alsoigesvfor a program that would allow companies tune their troubled assets.
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There can be no assurance that the EESA will hdeneficial impact on the financial markets, indhgdcurrent extreme levels of volatility.
To the extent the market does not respond favortakilye TARP or the TARP does not function as idesh) our business may not receive the
anticipated positive impact from the legislatiam.alddition, the U.S. Government, Federal Reserdeotimer governmental and regulatory
bodies have taken or are considering taking ottigrras to address the financial crisis. We canmetlict whether or when such actions may
occur or what impact, if any, such actions couldehan our business, results of operations and ¢iahnondition.

Risks Associated With Our Management and Relationsh With Our Manager
We are dependent on our Manager and its key peesfomour success.

We have no separate facilities and are complegdignt on our Manager. We have no employees oltaar our officers. Our officers are also
employees of our Manager, which has significantréison as to the implementation of our investnand operating policies and strategies.
Accordingly, we depend on the diligence, skill aredwork of business contacts of the senior manageaf@ur Manager. Our Manager's
employees evaluate, negotiate, structure, closeramitor our investments; therefore, our succedisd@pend on their continued service. The
departure of any of the senior managers of our idaneould have a material adverse effect on odpbpeance. In addition, we can offer no
assurance that our Manager will remain our investmeanager or that we will continue to have actessir Manager's senior managers. Our
management agreement with our Manager only extentisDecember 31, 2010. If the management agreemmeerminated and no suitable
replacement is found to manage us, we may not leet@lexecute our business plan. Moreover, our Igan& not obligated to dedicate
certain of its employees exclusively to us not mhiligated to dedicate any specific portion oftitse to our business, and none of our
Manager's employees are contractually dedicated tonder our management agreement with our Man@geronly employees of our
Manager who are primarily dedicated to our operetiare Christian J. Woschenko, our Head of Investsnand William B. Dyer, our Head
of Underwriting.

There are conflicts of interest in our relationshith our Manager and Annaly, which could resultgtisions that are not in the best interests
of our stockholders.

We are subject to conflicts of interest arising afubur relationship with Annaly and our Managen Annaly executive officer is our
Manager's sole director, two of Annaly's employaesour directors and several of Annaly's employeesfficers of our Manager and us.
Specifically, each of our officers also servesmagmployee of our Manager or its affiliates. A®ault, our Manager and our officers may
have conflicts between their duties to us and tiigfies to, and interests in, Annaly or our Managé&ere may also be conflicts in allocating
investments which are suitable both for us and Anas well as other FIDAC managed funds. Annaly maempete with us with respect to
certain investments which we may want to acquind,as a result we may either not be presentedthétiopportunity or have to compete v
Annaly to acquire these investments. Our Manageroam officers may choose to allocate favorablegtments to Annaly instead of to us.
The ability of our Manager and its officers and éwgpes to engage in other business activities redyae the time our Manager spends
managing us. Further, during turbulent conditionthie mortgage industry, distress in the creditketsror other times when we will need
focused support and assistance from our Managwesr ettities for which our Manager also acts asma@stment manager will likewise
require greater focus and attention, placing oundgr's resources in high demand. In such situigtiee may not receive the necessary
support and assistance we require or would othermiseive if we were internally managed or if ouardger did not act as a manager for
other entities. There is no assurance that theatitin policy that addresses some of the confiaegting to our investments, which is
described under "Business-Conflicts of Interesill'e adequate to address all of the conflictd thay arise. In addition, we have entered
into a repurchase agreement with Annaly, our Mariagarent, to finance our RMBS. This financingaagement may make us less likely to
terminate our Manager, It could also give riseunxtfer conflicts because Annaly may be a credit@uns. As one of our creditors, Annaly's
interests may diverge from the interests of oucldtolders.

15



We pay our Manager substantial management feesdiega of the performance of our portfolio. Our Mger's entitlement to substantial
nonperformance-based compensation might redugecéstive to devote its time and effort to seekimgestments that provide attractive risk-
adjusted returns for our portfolio. This in turnuda hurt both our ability to make distributionsdor stockholders and the market price of our
common stock. Annaly owns approximately 8.6% of autstanding shares of common stock which entilem to receive quarterly
distributions. In evaluating investments and othanagement strategies, this may lead our Manage#ate emphasis on the maximization of
revenues at the expense of other criteria, sugheservation of capital. Investments with highe&lgipotential are generally riskier or more
speculative. This could result in increased risthmvalue of our invested portfolio. Annaly mayl fee shares in us purchased concurrently
with our initial public offering at any time afténe earlier of (i) November 15, 2010 or (ii) thenténation of the management agreement.
Annaly may sell the shares in us purchased immelgliatter our 2008 secondary offering at any tirfierahe earlier of (i) October 24, 2011
or (ii) the termination of the management agreemEnthe extent Annaly sells some of its sharesntierests may be less aligned with our
interests.

The management agreement with our Manager wasaguttiated on an arm's-length basis and may nos ffi@varable to us as if it had been
negotiated with an unaffiliated third party and nieeycostly and difficult to terminate.

Our president, chief financial officer, head of@stments, treasurer, controller, secretary and beadderwriting also serve as employees of
our Manager. In addition, certain of our directars employees of our Manager or its affiliates. @anagement agreement with our Mang
was negotiated between related parties, and itsstancluding fees payable, may not be as favorables as if it had been negotiated with an
unaffiliated third party. Termination of the managgnt agreement with our Manager without causefiiewlit and costly. Our independent
directors will review our Manager's performance #mimanagement fees annually, and following tit@irerm, the management agreement
may be terminated annually by us without cause uperaffirmative vote of at least twhirds of our independent directors, or by a vdtthe
holders of at least a majority of the outstandingres of our common stock (other than those sllesby Annaly or its affiliates), based
upon: (i) our Manager's unsatisfactory performaheg is materially detrimental to us, or

(i) a determination that the management fees daytatour Manager are not fair, subject to our Mgers right to prevent termination based
on unfair fees by accepting a reduction of manageriees agreed to by at least two-thirds of ouepehdent directors. Our Manager must be
provided 180days' prior notice of any such termination. Addiadly, upon such termination, the management ageeeprovides that we wi
pay our Manager a termination fee equal to thmeegithe average annual base management fee oatcataof the end of the most recently
completed fiscal quarter. These provisions may e affect our ability to terminate our Manageéthout cause. Our Manager is only
contractually committed to serve us until Decenfigr2010. Thereafter, the management agreemesmésvable on an annual basis,
however, our Manager may terminate the managengeaeement annually upon 180-days' prior noticehdfinanagement agreement is
terminated and no suitable replacement is fourmdanage us, we may not be able to execute our asspian.

Our board of directors approved very broad investrgeidelines for our Manager and will not appreaeh investment decision made by our
Manager.

Our Manager is authorized to follow very broad siveent guidelines. Our board of directors periddia@views our investment guidelines
and our investment portfolio, but does not, andoisrequired to review all of our proposed invegitseor any type or category of investment,
except that an investment in a security structorettanaged by our Manager must be approved by arityapf our independent directors. In
addition, in conducting periodic reviews, our boefdlirectors relies primarily on information praeid to them by our Manager. Furthermi
our Manager uses complex strategies, and trangsacatiatered into by our Manager may be difficulinopossible to unwind by the time they
are reviewed by our board of directors. Our Mandger great latitude within the broad investmentiglimes in determining the types of
assets it may decide are proper investments favhish could result in investment returns thatsubstantially below expectations or that
result in losses, which would materially and adebraffect our business operations and resultshEgrdecisions made and investments
entered into by our Manager may not be in the inéstests of our stockholders.

We may change our investment strategy, asset ébbocar financing plans without stockholder corts@rhich may result in riskier
investments.

We may change our investment strategy, asset ébbocar financing plans at any time without thexsent of our stockholders, which could
result in our making investments that are diffeffemtn, and possibly riskier than, the investmemgsatdibed in this Form 10-K. A change in
our investment strategy or financing plans mayease our exposure to interest rate and defaularidikreal estate market fluctuations.
Furthermore, a change in our asset allocation caddlt in our making investments in asset categatifferent from those described in this
Form 10-K. These changes could adversely affectrtiket price of our common stock and our abilityrtake distributions to our
stockholders.
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While investments in investment vehicles manageduryManager require approval by a majority of imalependent directors, our Manager
has an incentive to invest our funds in investnvetiicles managed by our Manager because of théogitgof generating an additional
incremental management fee, which may reduce athiestment opportunities available to us. In additiwe cannot assure you that
investments in investment vehicles managed by camadder will prove beneficial to us.

We may invest in CDOs managed by our Manager, diictuthe purchase or sale of all or a portion eféluity of such CDOs, which may
result in an immediate loss in book value and preaeonflict of interest between us and our Manage

We may invest in securities of CDOs managed byMamager. If all of the securities of a CDO manalggadur Manager were not fully
placed as a result of our not investing, our Manageld experience losses due to changes in theeadlthe underlying investments
accumulated in anticipation of the launch of suslestment vehicle. The accumulated investmentsGB@ transaction are generally sold at
the price at which they were purchased and noptéeailing market price at closing. Accordingly ttee extent we invest in a portion of the
equity securities for which there has been a dat&ion of value since the securities were purathase would experience an immediate loss
equal to the decrease in the market value of thienlying investment. As a result, the interestswfManager in our investing in such a CDO
may conflict with our interests and that of ourcktaolders.

Our investment focus is different from those ofestantities that are or have been managed by onalyt.

Our investment focus is different from those ofesthntities that are or have been managed by onalyta. In particular, entities managed by
our Manager have not purchased whole mortgage lmastsuctured whole loan securitizations. In additour Manager has limited
experience in managing CDOs and investing in CDOs;Agency RMBS, CMBS and other ABS which we mayspe as part of our
investment strategy. Accordingly, our Manager'sdnisal returns are not indicative of its perforroarfor our investment strategy and we can
offer no assurance that our Manager will repli¢agehistorical performance of the Manager's invesiinprofessionals in their previous
endeavors. Our investment returns could be sulistigibower than the returns achieved by our Mamagavestment professionals' previous
endeavors.

We compete with investment vehicles of our Mandgeaccess to our Manager's resources and invesopgortunities.

Our Manager provides investment and financial agltéaca number of investment vehicles and some oManager's personnel are also
employees of Annaly and in that capacity are ingdlin Annaly's investment process. Accordingly,wi#compete with our Manager's ot
investment vehicles and with Annaly for our Man&gegsources. Our Manager may sponsor and manageiotestment vehicles with an
investment focus that overlaps with ours, whichldeasult in us competing for access to the bes#iiat we expect our relationship with our
Manager will provide to us.

Risks Related To Our Business

We have a limited operating history and may noticoe to operate successfully or generate sufficgiewenue to make or sustain distributi
to our stockholders.

We were organized in June 2007, commenced opesatiddovember 2007, and have a limited operatistphy. We cannot assure you that
we will be able to operate our business succegsfulimplement our operating policies and strategiescribed in this Form - The result:
of our operations depend on many factors, includiregavailability of opportunities for the acquisit of assets, the valuation of our assets,
the level and volatility of interest rates, readilycessible short and long-term financing andéhmg of the financing, conditions in the
financial markets and economic conditions.
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Failure to procure adequate capital and fundinépeorable terms, or at all, would adversely aff@at results and may, in turn, negatively
affect the market price of shares of our commonkstmd our ability to distribute dividends to otwakholders.

The capital and credit markets have been experigrextreme volatility and disruption for more thegear. The volatility and disruption he
reached unprecedented levels. In some cases, thetnhave exerted downward pressure on stockspaied credit capacity for certain
lenders. We depend upon the availability of adegjfiatding and capital for our operations. We inteméinance our assets over the Iaegn
through a variety of means, including repurchaseemgents, credit facilities, securitizations, cormeiad¢ paper and CDOs. Our access to
capital depends upon a number of factors over wiviglhave little or no control, including:

o general market conditions;

o the market's perception of our growth potential;

o our current and potential future earnings anth cistributions;
o the market price of the shares of our capitallstand

o the market's view of the quality of our assets.

The current situation in the mortgage sector ardctivrent weakness in the broader credit marketkl @versely affect one or more of our
potential lenders and could cause one or more ofeowalers or potential lenders to be unwilling oable to provide us with financing. In
general, this could potentially increase our finagaosts and reduce our liquidity or require usdb assets at an inopportune time or price.

We have and expect to use a number of sourcesandé our investments, including repurchase agnesm&arehouse facilities,
securitizations, asset-backed commercial papeteandCDOs. Current market conditions have affethedcost and availability of financing
from each of these sources -- and their indivigwaliiders -- to different degrees; some sourceegdly are unavailable, some are available
but at a high cost, and some are largely unaffe¢tedexample, in the repurchase agreement mdar&epwers have been affected differently
depending on the type of security they are finagpcion-Agency RMBS have been harder to financeedding on the type of assets
collateralizing the RMBS. The amount, term and rimargquirements associated with these types ohéimys have been negatively impac

Currently, warehouse facilities to finance wholarigrime residential mortgages are generally availitom major banks, but at significantly
higher cost and greater margin requirements theviqusly offered. Many major banks that offer waree facilities have also reduced the
amount of capital available to new entrants andequently the size of those facilities offered res@ smaller than those previously avails

It is currently a challenging market to term finarwehole loans through securitization or bonds iddnea CDO structure. The highly rated
senior bonds in these securitizations and CDO tires currently have liquidity, but at much widpresads than issues priced earlier this year.
The junior subordinate tranches of these structcme®ntly have few buyers and current market diooth have forced issuers to retain these
lower rated bonds rather than sell them.

Certain issuers of asset-backed commercial pap&BEP, have been unable to place (or roll) thegusities, which has resulted, in some
instances, in forced sales of mortgage-backed siesyior MBS, and other securities which has ferthegatively impacted the market value
of these assets. These market conditions aredhddikely to change over time.

As a result, the execution of our investment sgnateay be dictated by the cost and availabilitfimdncing from these different sources.

In addition, the impairment of other financial itistions could negatively affect us. If one or manajor market participants fails or otherwise
experience a major liquidity crisis, as was theedas Bear Stearns & Co. in March 2008, and LehBwothers Holdings Inc. in September
2008, it could adversely affect the marketabilityalh fixed income securities and this could negglif impact the value of the securities we
acquire, thus reducing our net book value.

Furthermore, if any of our potential lenders or afipur lenders are unwilling or unable to provigewith financing, we could be forced to
sell our securities or residential mortgage loarenanopportune time when prices are depressed.

18



Our business, results of operations and financiatltion may be materially adversely affected bgerg disruptions in the financial markets.
We cannot assure you, under such extreme conditioatsthese markets will remain an efficient seuws€long-term financing for our assets.
If our strategy is not viable, we will have to fiatternative forms of financing for our assets, ethinay not be available. Further, as a REIT,
we are required to distribute annually at least @%ur REIT taxable income, determined withoutanebto the deduction for dividends paid
and excluding net capital gain, to our stockholdard are therefore not able to retain significambants of our earnings for new investments.
We cannot assure you that any, or sufficient, fuogdir capital will be available to us in the futune terms that are acceptable to us. If we
cannot obtain sufficient funding on acceptable &rthere may be a negative impact on the markes ofiour common stock and our ability
to make distributions to our stockholders. Moreower ability to grow will be dependent on our #@hito procure additional funding. To the
extent we are not able to raise additional fundsufh the issuance of additional equity or borr@sirour growth will be constrained.

We operate in a highly competitive market for irtwesnt opportunities and more established compstittay be able to compete more
effectively for investment opportunities than waca

A number of entities compete with us to make thesyof investments that we plan to make. We compitheother REITSs, public and prive
funds, commercial and investment banks and comuaddicance companies. Many of our competitors atestantially larger and have
considerably greater financial, technical and mémgeresources than we do. Several other REITs hesently raised, or are expected to ri
significant amounts of capital, and may have invesit objectives that overlap with ours, which megate competition for investment
opportunities. Some competitors may have a lowst ebfunds and access to funding sources that@travailable to us. In addition, some of
our competitors may have higher risk tolerancedifberent risk assessments, which could allow thermonsider a wider variety of
investments and establish more favorable relatipsghan us. We cannot assure you that the conyeepitessures we face will not have a
material adverse effect on our business, finarmatition and results of operations. Also, as altes this competition, we may not be able
to take advantage of attractive investment oppdragnfrom time to time, and we can offer no aseaeathat we will be able to identify and
make investments that are consistent with our invest objectives.

Loss of our 1940 Act exemption would adversely @ffes and negatively affect the market price ofehaf our common stock and our abi
to distribute dividends and could result in thertigration of the management agreement with our Manag

We operate our company so that we will not be meglio register as an investment company undet948 Act because we are "primarily
engaged in the business of purchasing or othemdgairing mortgages and other liens on and inteiesteal estate." Specifically, our
investment strategy is to invest at least 55% ofassets in mortgage loans, RMBS that represeraritiee ownership in a pool of mortgage
loans and other qualifying interests in real estaig approximately 25% of our assets in other tyfesortgages, RMBS, securities of REITs
and other real estate-related assets. As a réghie 940 Act, we are limited in our ability to keacertain investments. In the absence of
specific guidance on the subject from the Divisidiinvestment Management of the SEC, we have détedrthat accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, or GA&Rni appropriate method to value our qualifyind estate assets under the 1940 Act.
Accordingly, as long as we own all of the equityaofowner trust and the underlying mortgage loaasvehole pools held by an owner trust
remain our assets under GAAP, we classify eachefhole mortgage loans and all of the whole pbeld by such owner trusts as
qualifying real estate assets under the 1940 Act.

If we fail to qualify for this exemption in the fute, we could be required to restructure our a@wiin a manner that or at a time when we
would not otherwise choose to do so, which coulghtigely affect the value of shares of our cagstatk, the sustainability of our business
model, and our ability to make distributions. Frample, if the market value of our investmentsdowsities were to increase by an amount
that resulted in less than 55% of our assets hinirested in mortgage loans or RMBS that repredenentire ownership in a pool of mortg:
loans or less than 80% of our assets being invéstezhl estate-related assets, we might havelltsesmurities to qualify for exemption under
the 1940 Act. The sale could occur during adveraekat conditions, and we could be forced to acagmice below that which we believe is
acceptable. In addition, there can be no assutthiat¢he laws and regulations governing REITs uditlg regulations issued by the Division
of Investment Management of the SEC, providing nemexific or different guidance regarding the et of assets as qualifying real estate
assets or real estate-related assets, will notgehema manner that adversely affects our opersitidrioss of our 1940 Act exemption would
allow our Manager to terminate the management aggaewith us, which would materially adversely affeur business and operations.
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Rapid changes in the values of our RMBS, residemiatgage loans, and other real estate-relategsinvents may make it more difficult for
us to maintain our qualification as a REIT or oxemption from the 1940 Act.

If the market value or income potential of our RMB&sidential mortgage loans, and other real estdd¢ed investments declines as a result
of increased interest rates, prepayment ratesher éctors, we may need to increase our realeesta¢stments and income or liquidate our
non-qualifying assets to maintain our REIT quadifion or our exemption from the 1940 Act. If theclitee in real estate asset values or
income occurs quickly, this may be especially diffi to accomplish. This difficulty may be exaceadshby the illiquid nature of any non-real
estate assets we may own. We may have to makeinimeesdecisions that we otherwise would not malseabthe REIT and 1940 Act
considerations.

We leverage our investments, which may adversébcabur return on our investments and may redasé available for distribution to our
stockholders.

We leverage our investments through borrowingsegaly through the use of repurchase agreementghease facilities, credit facilities,
securitizations, commercial paper and CDOs. Wenateequired to maintain any specific debt-to-eguittio. The amount of leverage we use
varies depending on our ability to obtain creddilfées, the lenders' and rating agencies' estinaf the stability of the investments' cash
flow, and our assessment of the appropriate amafuetzerage for the particular assets we are fundimder some credit facilities, we expect
to be required to maintain minimum average cashras in connection with borrowings. Our returroaninvestments and cash available
distribution to our stockholders may be reducethéextent that changes in market conditions prewgifrom leveraging our investments,
require us to decrease our rate of leverage, isertree amount of collateral we post, or increasetist of our financing relative to the inco
that can be derived from the assets acquired. €hirskrvice payments will reduce cash flow avaddbt distributions to stockholders, which
could adversely affect the price of our commonlst®ée may not be able to meet our debt servicagabiins, and, to the extent that we
cannot, we risk the loss of some or all of our ssteforeclosure or sale to satisfy the obligagidVe leverage certain of our assets through
repurchase agreements. A decrease in the valbhesd tissets may lead to margin calls which wehailke to satisfy. We may not have the
funds available to satisfy any such margin call$ we may be forced to sell assets at significasidipressed prices due to market conditiol
otherwise. The satisfaction of such margin cally megluce cash flow available for distribution ta stockholders. Any reduction in
distributions to our stockholders or sales of asaetnopportune times or prices may cause thesvaflour common stock to decline, in some
cases, precipitously.

We depend on warehouse and repurchase facilitiedit ¢acilities and commercial paper to executelmsiness plan, and our inability to
access funding could have a material adverse effeour results of operations, financial conditéord business.

Our ability to fund our investments depends torgdaextent upon our ability to secure warehouggynehase, credit, and commercial paper
financing on acceptable terms. We can provide sarasice that we will be successful in establisBin@jcient warehouse, repurchase, and
credit facilities and issuing commercial paperattdition, because warehouse, repurchase, and taeiliiies and commercial paper are short-
term commitments of capital, the lenders may redgormmarket conditions, which may favor an alteéreinvestment strategy for them,
making it more difficult for us to secure continuatancing. During certain periods of the creditley such as recently, lenders may curtail
their willingness to provide financing. If we aretrable to renew our then existing warehouse, @asge, and credit facilities and issue
commercial paper or arrange for new financing emseacceptable to us, or if we default on our camémor are otherwise unable to access
funds under any of these facilities, we will hawectirtail our asset acquisition activities.
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It is possible that the lenders that provide usiitancing could experience changes in their ghii advance funds to us, independent of our
performance or the performance of our investmentfding our mortgage loans. In addition, if tiegulatory capital requirements imposed
on our lenders change, they may be required tdfgigntly increase the cost of the warehouse faedithat they provide to us. Our lenders
also may revise their eligibility requirements fbe types of residential mortgage loans they aléngito finance or the terms of such
financings, based on, among other factors, thelatmy environment and their management of perckenak, particularly with respect to
assignee liability. Financing of equity-based lewglifor example, may become more difficult in theufe. Moreover, the amount of financing
we will receive under our warehouse and repurchetties will be directly related to the lendevslluation of the assets that secure the
outstanding borrowings. Typically warehouse, repase, and credit facilities grant the respectinelée the absolute right to reevaluate the
market value of the assets that secure outstamirrgwings at any time. If a lender determinegsrsble discretion that the value of the at
has decreased, it has the right to initiate a marglil. A margin call would require us to transégiditional assets to such lender without any
advance of funds from the lender for such transféo repay a portion of the outstanding borrowingsy such margin call could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operatifinancial condition, business, liquidity andlepito make distributions to our stockholde
and could cause the value of our common stock ¢cbrie We may be forced to sell assets at sigmitigadepressed prices to meet such
margin calls and to maintain adequate liquidityjaliicould cause us to incur losses. Moreover, écetttent we are forced to sell assets at
such time, given market conditions, we may be foitoesell assets at the same time as others faoimtar pressures to sell similar assets,
which could greatly exacerbate a difficult marketieonment and which could result in our incurriignificantly greater losses on our sal
such assets. In an extreme case of market duresakat may not even be present for certain ofagsets at any price.

The current dislocation and weakness in the broametgage markets could adversely affect one oembour potential lenders and could
cause one or more of our potential lenders to éllimy or unable to provide us with financing. Bteould potentially increase our financing
costs and reduce our liquidity. If one or more maj@arket participants fails or otherwise experienaenajor liquidity crisis, as was the case
for Bear Stearns & Co. in March 2008 and Lehmarttgns Holdings Inc. in September 2008, it couldatiegly impact the marketability of
all fixed income securities, including Agency arahmAgency RMBS, residential mortgage loans andestdte related securities, and this
could negatively impact the value of the securitiesacquire, thus reducing our net book value.Heunhore, if any of our potential lenders or
any of our lenders, including Annaly, are unwilliagunable to provide us with financing, we couédfbrced to sell our assets at an
inopportune time when prices are depressed.

Since June 30, 2008, there have been increaseegntamcerns about Freddie Mac and Fannie Maeisyabilwithstand future credit losses
associated with securities held in their investnpanmtfolios, and on which they provide guarantétescently, the government passed the
Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008. FannéeMnd Freddie Mac have been placed into the o@teeship of the Federal Housing
Finance Agency, or FHFA, their federal regulatamguant to its powers under the Federal Housingritia Regulatory Reform Act of 200¢
part of the Housing and Economic Recovery Act d@®As the conservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie, Me FHFA controls and directs
the operations of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and(fjaake over the assets of and operate Fanneeadvid Freddie Mac with all the
powers of the shareholders, the directors, andfficers of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and condlidiusiness of Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac; (2) collect all obligations and money due tmfiie Mae and Freddie Mac; (3) perform all functiof Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
which are consistent with the conservator's appuwént; (4) preserve and conserve the assets andrprayy Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac;
and

(5) contract for assistance in fulfilling any fuiwet, activity, action or duty of the conservator.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conservator of HarMae and Freddie Mac,

(i) the U.S. Department of Treasury and FHFA havermed into preferred stock purchase agreementgebatthe U.S. Department of
Treasury and Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac pursuamhich the U.S. Department of Treasury will ensiina each of Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac maintains a positive net worth; (i@ th.S. Department of Treasury has established aseewred lending credit facility which
will be available to Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, amelEederal Home Loan Banks, which is intended neesas a liquidity backstop, which w
be available until December 2009; and (iii) the UD8partment of Treasury has initiated a tempopaggram to purchase RMBS issued by
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. Given the highly flandl evolving nature of these events, it is undheav our business will be impacted.
Based upon the further activity of the U.S. goveentror market response to developments at Fanngedvireddie Mac, our business could
be adversely impacted.
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Certain financing facilities may contain covenathizt restrict our operations and may inhibit outiigtto grow our business and increase
revenues.

Certain financing facilities we may enter into m@ntain extensive restrictions, covenants, andesggntations and warranties that, among
other things, require us to satisfy specified fitiah asset quality, loan eligibility and loan pErhance tests. If we fail to meet or satisfy any
of these covenants or representations and warsamte2would be in default under these agreememt®anlenders could elect to declare all
amounts outstanding under the agreements to bedmtey due and payable, enforce their respectiterésts against collateral pledged
under such agreements and restrict our abilityakeradditional borrowings. Certain financing agreeta may contain cross-default
provisions, so that if a default occurs under ang agreement, the lenders under our other agresreunid also declare a default. The
covenants and restrictions we expect in our fimagéacilities may restrict our ability to, amondet things:

o incur or guarantee additional debt;

0 make certain investments or acquisitions;

o make distributions on or repurchase or redeerntatagock;
0 engage in mergers or consolidations;

o finance mortgage loans with certain attributes;

o reduce liquidity below certain levels;

o grant liens;

o0 incur operating losses for more than a specjibd,;

o enter into transactions with affiliates; and

o hold mortgage loans for longer than establisivad periods.

These restrictions may interfere with our abiliyobtain financing, including the financing neededjualify as a REIT, or to engage in other
business activities, which may significantly harar business, financial condition, liquidity anduks of operations. A default and resulting
repayment acceleration could significantly redugelmuidity, which could require us to sell oursass to repay amounts due and outstanding
This could also significantly harm our businessaficial condition, results of operations, and dailitg to make distributions, which could
cause the value of our common stock to declineefawt will also significantly limit our financinglternatives such that we will be unable to
pursue our leverage strategy, which could curtailiovestment returns.

The repurchase agreements, warehouse facilitiesrawit facilities and commercial paper that we tasBnance our investments may require
us to provide additional collateral and may resuigfrom leveraging our assets as fully as desired

We will use repurchase agreements, warehousetiiggjlcredit facilities and commercial paper tafice our investments. We currently have
uncommitted repurchase agreements with 13 countarpaincluding Annaly, for financing our RMBS. Orepurchase agreements are
uncommitted and the counterparty may refuse torovéunds under the agreements to us. If the maegdee of the loans or securities
pledged or sold by us to a funding source declingalue, we may be required by the lending instituto provide additional collateral or pay
down a portion of the funds advanced, but we mayhawge the funds available to do so. Posting amithli collateral will reduce our liquidity
and limit our ability to leverage our assets, whichild adversely affect our business. In the ewentlo not have sufficient liquidity to meet
such requirements, lending institutions can acatterepayment of our indebtedness, increase ouwwinig rates, liquidate our collateral or
terminate our ability to borrow. Such a situatiooui likely result in a rapid deterioration of durancial condition and possibly necessitate a
filing for protection under the U.S. Bankruptcy @odrurther, financial institutions may require asrtaintain a certain amount of cash that is
not invested or to set aside non-levered asseiisisaf to maintain a specified liquidity positievhich would allow us to satisfy our collateral
obligations. As a result, we may not be able tefage our assets as fully as we would choose vduiahl reduce our return on equity. If we
are unable to meet these collateral obligatioren ths described above, our financial conditioddcdateriorate rapidly.
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If the counterparty to our repurchase transacti@iaults on its obligation to resell the underlysegurity back to us at the end of the
transaction term, or if the value of the underlysggurity has declined as of the end of that terihwe default on our obligations under the
repurchase agreement, we will lose money on owrodase transactions.

When we engage in a repurchase transaction, wealngell securities to the transaction countegpand receive cash from the
counterparty. The counterparty is obligated toltélse securities back to us at the end of the tefhe transaction, which is typically 30-90
days. Because the cash we receive from the coamtgnghen we initially sell the securities to thmuaterparty is less than the value of those
securities (this difference is referred to as thedut), if the counterparty defaults on its obtiga to resell the securities back to us we would
incur a loss on the transaction equal to the amotfiite haircut (assuming there was no changedvdtue of the securities). We would also
lose money on a repurchase transaction if the \@ltlee underlying securities has declined as efehd of the transaction term, as we would
have to repurchase the securities for their init#lie but would receive securities worth less tiian amount. Any losses we incur on our
repurchase transactions could adversely affeceamnings, and thus our cash available for distivinuio our stockholders. If we default on
one of our obligations under a repurchase trarmadiie counterparty can terminate the transaetnmhcease entering into any other
repurchase transactions with us. In that case, sédalikely need to establish a replacement repaselfacility with another repurchase de

in order to continue to leverage our portfolio aadry out our investment strategy. There is norassie we would be able to establish a
suitable replacement facility.

Our rights under our repurchase agreements aredubjthe effects of the bankruptcy laws in therg\of the bankruptcy or insolvency of us
or our lenders under the repurchase agreements.

In the event of our insolvency or bankruptcy, dartapurchase agreements may qualify for spe@akitnent under the U.S. Bankruptcy Cc
the effect of which, among other things, would daltow the lender under the applicable repurclagseement to avoid the automatic stay
provisions of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code and to flwee on the collateral agreement without delayh&nevent of the insolvency or
bankruptcy of a lender during the term of a repasehagreement, the lender may be permitted, upgécable insolvency laws, to repudiate
the contract, and our claim against the lended&onages may be treated simply as an unsecuredocrediaddition, if the lender is a broker
or dealer subject to the Securities Investor Ptmedct of 1970, or an insured depository instdntsubject to the Federal Deposit Insurance
Act, our ability to exercise our rights to recoweer securities under a repurchase agreement @& ¢tofpensated for any damages resulting
from the lender's insolvency may be further limibydthose statutes. These claims would be sulgesighificant delay and, if and when
received, may be substantially less than the dasnageactually incur.

An increase in our borrowing costs relative toititerest we receive on our assets may adversedgtadur profitability, and thus our cash
available for distribution to our stockholders.

As our repurchase agreements and other short-termavblings mature, we will be required either toegribhto new borrowings or to sell
certain of our investments. An increase in shamtmterest rates at the time that we seek to entemew borrowings would reduce the
spread between our returns on our assets and shefaour borrowings. This would adversely affegt ceturns on our assets that are subject
to prepayment risk, including our mortgage-baclkezlsties, which might reduce earnings and, in,taash available for distribution to our
stockholders.

If we issue senior securities we will be exposeddditional risks.

If we decide to issue senior securities in theritit is likely that they will be governed by ardienture or other instrument containing
covenants restricting our operating flexibility. diionally, any convertible or exchangeable se@sithat we issue in the future may have
rights, preferences and privileges more favoraida those of our common stock and may result itidit to owners of our common stock.
We and, indirectly, our stockholders, will bear twst of issuing and servicing such securities.

Our securitizations will expose us to additionaks.

We have and expect to continue to securitize eedbour portfolio investments to generate castfdading new investments. We expect to
structure these transactions either as financargstictions or as sales for GAAP pursuant to Stateafd-inancial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Sengof Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Iliibs. In each such transaction, we
convey a pool of assets to a special purpose hie issuing entity, and the issuing entity issuee or more classes of non-recourse notes
pursuant to the terms of an indenture. The noesecured by the pool of assets. In exchange éardéimsfer of assets to the issuing entity, we
receive the cash proceeds of the sale of non-reecwtes and a 100% interest in the equity ofaheing entity. The securitization of our
portfolio investments might magnify our exposurdasses on those portfolio investments becausequify interest we retain in the issuing
entity would be subordinate to the notes issudgdviestors and we would, therefore, absorb all efldsses sustained with respect to a
securitized pool of assets before the owners ofthies experience any losses. Moreover, we carmassured that we will be able to access
the securitization market, or be able to do s@aabifable rates. The inability to securitize ourtfwdio could hurt our performance and our
ability to grow our business.
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The use of CDO financings with over-collateralinatrequirements may have a negative impact onaslr ffow.

We expect that the terms of CDOs we may sponséigeiierally provide that the principal amount adets must exceed the principal balance
of the related bonds by a certain amount, commiaflrred to as "over-collateralization." We antatg that the CDO terms will provide that,
if certain delinquencies or losses exceed the Bpddevels based on the analysis by the ratingneigs (or any financial guaranty insurer) of
the characteristics of the assets collateralizirgitonds, the required level of over-collateraicratnay be increased or may be prevented
from decreasing as would otherwise be permittéosges or delinquencies did not exceed those le@¢her tests (based on delinquency
levels or other criteria) may restrict our abilityreceive net income from assets collateralizingdbligations. We cannot assure you that the
performance tests will be satisfied. In advancearfipleting negotiations with the rating agenciestber key transaction parties on our fut
CDO financings, we cannot assure you of the atéuals of the CDO delinquency tests, over-collaizatibn terms, cash flow release
mechanisms or other significant factors regardimgdalculation of net income to us. Given recetatidy in the CDO market, rating
agencies may depart from historic practices for db@ncings, making them more costly for us. Fa&ilto obtain favorable terms with regard
to these matters may materially and adversely tfffecavailability of net income to us. If our asskil to perform as anticipated, our over-
collateralization or other credit enhancement egpassociated with our CDO financings will increase

Hedging against interest rate exposure may adyeasklct our earnings, which could reduce our Gasdilable for distribution to our
stockholders.

Subject to maintaining our qualification as a RENE pursue various hedging strategies to seeldiaceeour exposure to losses from adverse
changes in interest rates. Our hedging activityegan scope based on the level and volatilitynbériest rates, the type of assets held and othe
changing market conditions. Interest rate hedgiag fail to protect or could adversely affect usdaese, among other things:

o0 interest rate hedging can be expensive, partigularing periods of rising and volatile intereates;

o available interest rate hedges may not corresgedtly with the interest rate risk for which peotion is sought;

o the duration of the hedge may not match the duratf the related liability;

o the amount of income that a REIT may earn fronighveg transactions (other than through TRSs) teedfinterest rate losses is limited by
federal tax provisions governing REITSs;

o the credit quality of the party owing money oa titedge may be downgraded to such an extent tingpétirs our ability to sell or assign our
side of the hedging transaction; and

o the party owing money in the hedging transaatiay default on its obligation to pay.

Our hedging transactions, which are intended tit limsses, may actually limit gains and increaseexposure to losses. As a result, our
hedging activity may adversely affect our earningsich could reduce our cash available for distitiuto our stockholders. In addition,
hedging instruments involve risk since they oftemrzot traded on regulated exchanges, guarantead bychange or its clearing house, or
regulated by any U.S. or foreign governmental atiiies. Consequently, there are no requirements mispect to record keeping, financial
responsibility or segregation of customer funds positions. Furthermore, the enforceability of &gnents underlying derivative transactions
may depend on compliance with applicable statuamgy commodity and other regulatory requirements degending on the identity of the
counterparty, applicable international requiremente business failure of a hedging counterparth whom we enter into a hedging
transaction will most likely result in its defauefault by a party with whom we enter into a hedgiransaction may result in the loss of
unrealized profits and force us to cover our commaitts, if any, at the then current market pricéh@ugh generally we will seek to reserve
the right to terminate our hedging positions, iymat always be possible to dispose of or closeach#dging position without the consent of
the hedging counterparty, and we may not be abéater into an offsetting contract in order to aqower risk. We cannot assure you that a
liquid secondary market will exist for hedging inshents purchased or sold, and we may be requirethintain a position until exercise or
expiration, which could result in losses.

Our hedging strategies may not be successful ilgatihg the risks associated with interest rates.

Subject to complying with REIT tax requirements, iea’e employed and intend to continue to employrtiggies that limit, or hedge, the
adverse effects of rising interest rates on ourtsleom repurchase agreements. In general, ourihgdgrategy depends on our view of our
entire portfolio, consisting of assets, liabiliti@sd derivative instruments, in light of prevailingarket conditions. We could misjudge the
condition of our investment portfolio or the market
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Our hedging activity will vary in scope based oa tavel and volatility of interest rates and prpadirepayments, the type of securities held
and other changing market conditions. Our actudghng decisions will be determined in light of flaets and circumstances existing at the
time and may differ from our currently anticipateedging strategy. These techniques may includeiegtmto interest rate caps, collars,
floors, forward contracts, futures or swap agreamafiie may conduct certain hedging transactiormutitr a TRS, which will be subject to
federal, state and, if applicable, local income tax

There are no perfect hedging strategies, and sitem&e hedging may fail to protect us from loskterhatively, we may fail to properly assess
a risk to our investment portfolio or may fail #®cognize a risk entirely, leaving us exposed tedsswithout the benefit of any offsetting
hedging activities. The derivative financial instrents we select may not have the effect of reduaingnterest rate risk. The nature and
timing of hedging transactions may influence thfe@fveness of these strategies. Poorly desigmategies or improperly executed
transactions could actually increase our risk asdds. In addition, hedging activities could resulbsses if the event against which we he
does not occur. For example, interest rate hedgidd fail to protect us or adversely affect usaduese, among other things:

o available interest rate hedging may not corregdmbrectly with the interest rate risk for whichopection is sought;

o the duration of the hedge may not match the duratf the related liability;

0 as explained in further detail in the risk fadtamediately below, the party owing money in théldiag transaction may default on its
obligation to pay;

o the credit quality of the party owing money oa titedge may be downgraded to such an extent tingpétirs our ability to sell or assign our
side of the hedging transaction; and

o the value of derivatives used for hedging magdjested from time to time in accordance with actimg rules to reflect changes in fair
value. Downward adjustments, or "mark-to-markeséss' would reduce our stockholders' equity.

Whether the derivatives we acquire achieve hedgeumting treatment under the Financial Accountitan8ards Board, or FASB, Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, Accaugfior Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitier SFAS 133, or not, hedging
generally involves costs and risks. Our hedgingtstiies may adversely affect us because hedgingtiastinvolve costs that we will incur
regardless of the effectiveness of the hedgingiactiThose costs may be higher in periods of mavkdatility, both because the
counterparties to our derivative agreements mayatieina higher payment for taking risks, and becagjseated adjustments of our hedges
during periods of interest rate changes also mengase costs. Especially if our hedging strategiesot effective, we could incur significant
hedging-related costs without any correspondingnecoc benefits.

We have elected not to qualify for hedge accourttiegtment.

We record derivative and hedge transactions inrdece with SFAS 133. We have elected not to guédif hedge accounting treatment. As
a result, our operating results may suffer bectgses on the derivatives that we enter into mayamffset by a change in the fair value of
the related hedged transaction.

Declines in the fair values of our investments radyersely affect periodic reported results anditeadilability, which may reduce earnings
and, in turn, cash available for distribution ta etockholders.

A substantial portion of our assets are classiiie@ccounting purposes as "available-for-sale" eamied at fair value. Changes in the fair
values of those assets will be directly chargecredited to other comprehensive income. In addittodecline in values will reduce the book
value of our assets. A decline in the fair valuewf assets may adversely affect us, particularipstances where we have borrowed money
based on the fair value of those assets. If thevédile of those assets declines, the lender ngyireeus to post additional collateral to sup)
the loan. If we were unable to post the additiamdliateral, we would have to sell the assets aha then we might not otherwise choose to
do so. A reduction in credit available may redugeearnings and, in turn, cash available for distibn to stockholders.
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The lack of liquidity in our investments may adwdysaffect our business.

We may invest in securities or other instrumends #re not liquid. It may be difficult or impossétiio obtain third party pricing on the
investments we purchase. llliquid investments tgihjcexperience greater price volatility as a reatyrket does not exist. In addition,
validating third party pricing for illiquid investemts may be more subjective than more liquid imaests. The illiquidity of our investments
may make it difficult for us to sell such investnteif the need or desire arises. In addition, ifame required to liquidate all or a portion of
portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly kshan the value at which we have previously remtr@ur investments. As a result, our
ability to vary our portfolio in response to chaage economic and other conditions may be relatilislited, which could adversely affect
our results of operations and financial condition.

We are highly dependent on information systemsthind parties, and systems failures could signiftbadisrupt our business, which may, in
turn, negatively affect the market price of our coam stock and our ability to pay dividends to awckholders.

Our business is highly dependent on communicatimasinformation systems. Any failure or interruptiof our systems could cause delay
other problems in our securities trading activitiesluding mortgage-backed securities tradingvétatis, which could have a material adverse
effect on our operating results and negativelyaffiee market price of our common stock and oulitglio pay dividends to our stockholders.

We are required to obtain various state licensesder to purchase mortgage loans in the secondariet and there is no assurance we will
be able to obtain or maintain those licenses.

While we are not required to obtain licenses tachase mortgage-backed securities, we are requirebtain various state licenses to
purchase mortgage loans in the secondary marketeTif no assurance that we will obtain all oflibenses that we desire or that we will not
experience significant delays in seeking thesa$ies. Furthermore, we will be subject to variodigrination reporting requirements to
maintain these licenses, and there is no assuthatere will satisfy those requirements. Our fagltw obtain or maintain licenses will restrict
our investment options and could harm our business.

We are subject to liability for potential violatief predatory lending laws, which could adverselgact our results of operations, financial
condition and business.

Various federal, state and local laws have beenteddhat are designed to discourage predatoryrigmiactices. The federal Home
Ownership and Equity Protection Act of 1994, or HZ¥ prohibits inclusion of certain provisions irsigential mortgage loans that have
mortgage rates or origination costs in excess @@ibed levels and requires that borrowers bengieetain disclosures prior to origination.
Some states have enacted, or may enact, similardawegulations, which in some cases impose céstis and requirements greater than
those in HOEPA. In addition, under the anti-predatending laws of some states, the originatiogeartain residential mortgage loans,
including loans that are not classified as "hightttoans under applicable law, must satisfy ataegiible benefits test with respect to the
related borrower. This test may be highly subjectind open to interpretation. As a result, a coay determine that a residential mortgage
loan, for example, does not meet the test evdreifélated originator reasonably believed thatékewas satisfied. Failure of residential
mortgage loan originators or servicers to complhwliese laws, to the extent any of their residémntiortgage loans become part of our
mortgaged-related assets, could subject us, assignae or purchaser to the related residentiaigage loans, to monetary penalties and
could result in the borrowers rescinding the aBdatesidential mortgage loans. Lawsuits have beaunght in various states making claims
against assignees or purchasers of high cost foantlations of state law. Named defendants esthcases have included numerous
participants within the secondary mortgage matkéhe loans are found to have been originatedatation of predatory or abusive lending
laws, we could incur losses, which could advergalyact our results of operations, financial cormditand business.

26



Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or may affect the market for our common stock, tiergiry in which we conduct our
operations and our profitability.

Terrorist attacks may harm our results of operatimmd your investment. We cannot assure you tea thill not be further terrorist attacks
against the United States or U.S. businesses. Bitgks or armed conflicts may directly impact pneperty underlying our asset-based
securities or the securities markets in generadske resulting from these types of events are urgibke. More generally, any of these events
could cause consumer confidence and spending teamzor result in increased volatility in the @diStates and worldwide financial
markets and economies. Adverse economic conditionkl harm the value of the property underlying asset-backed securities or the
securities markets in general which could harmaparating results and revenues and may resuleindhatility of the value of our securities.

We are subject to the requirements of the Sarb@mésy Act of 2002.

As we are a public company, our management is redto deliver a report that assesses the effewsaof our internal controls over
financial reporting, pursuant to Section 302 of #a@banes-Oxley Act of 2002, or Sarbanes-Oxley Bettion 404 of the Sarban@sdey Act
requires an independent registered public accogifitim to deliver an attestation report on managattaessessment of, and the operating
effectiveness of our internal controls over finahceporting in conjunction with their opinion onrcaudited financial statements beginning
with the year ending December 31, 2008. Substantigk on our part is required to implement apprafgriprocesses, document the system of
internal control over key processes, assess thsigd, remediate any deficiencies identified ast tfeeir operation. This process is expected
to be both costly and challenging. We cannot giweassurances that material weaknesses will nmtdrgified in the future in connection
with our compliance with the provisions of Secti@® and 404 of the Sarban@siey Act. The existence of any material weaknesscdbec
above would preclude a conclusion by managemenbanthdependent auditors that we maintained effedhternal control over financial
reporting. Our management may be required to desigtéficant time and expense to remediate any natgeaknesses that may be
discovered and may not be able to remediate akniahiveaknesses in a timely manner. The existehaay material weaknesses in our
internal control over financial reporting could@li®sult in errors in our financial statements ttwtld require us to restate our financial
statements, cause us to fail to meet our repodintigations and cause investors to lose confidémeer reported financial information, all of
which could lead to a decline in the trading pa¢®ur stock.

The increasing number of proposed federal, staddaal laws may increase our risk of liability twvitespect to certain mortgage loans, may
include judicial modification provisions and cotletrease our cost of doing business.

The United States Congress and various state aatlépislatures are considering legislation, whatnong other provisions, would permit
limited assignee liability for certain violations the mortgage loan origination process, and walltdv judicial modification of loan principi
in the event of personal bankruptcy. We cannotiptedhether or in what form Congress or the varisiade and local legislatures may enact
legislation affecting our business. We are evahgathe potential impact of these initiatives, ibeted, on our practices and results of
operations. As a result of these and other invi&sti we are unable to predict whether federale statocal authorities will require changes in
our practices in the future or in our portfolio.€Be changes, if required, could adversely affecpofitability, particularly if we make such
changes in response to new or amended laws, remdair ordinances in any state where we acqusigraficant portion of our mortgage
loans, or if such changes result in us being hetgansible for any violations in the mortgage loggination process, or if the principal
amount of loans we own or are in RMBS pools we anmodified in the personal bankruptcy process.

Risks Related to Our Investments

We might not be able to purchase residential mgedaans, mortgage-backed securities and othesiments that meet our investment
criteria or at favorable spreads over our borrovdasts.

To the extent we purchase assets using leveragagbincome depends on our ability to acquiredersiial mortgage loans, mortgage-backed
securities and other investments at favorable sigreser our borrowing costs. Our investments aected by our Manager, and our
stockholders will not have input into such investingecisions. Our Manager has conducted due diigyerith respect to each investment
purchased. However, there can be no assuranceuhbtanager's due diligence processes will uncalleelevant facts or that any
investment will be successful.
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We may not realize income or gains from our invesits.

We invest to generate both current income and alagyiipreciation. The investments we invest in nhayyever, not appreciate in value anc
fact, may decline in value, and the debt secunitiesnvest in may default on interest or principayments. Accordingly, we may not be able
to realize income or gains from our investmentsy gains that we do realize may not be sufficientffeet any other losses we experience.
Any income that we realize may not be sufficienbtiset our expenses.

Our investments may be concentrated and will bgestito risk of default.

While we intend to diversify our portfolio of inviesents, we are not required to observe specifierdification criteria. To the extent that our
portfolio is concentrated in any one region or tgpsecurity, downturns relating generally to suegion or type of security may result in
defaults on a number of our investments withinaristime period, which may reduce our net income e value of our shares and
accordingly may reduce our ability to pay divideba®ur stockholders.

Our investments in subordinated RMBS are genenaltize "first loss" position and our investmentghie mezzanine RMBS are generally in
the "second loss" position and therefore subjetigses.

In general, losses on a mortgage loan includedsiecaritization will be borne first by the equityltler of the issuing trust, and then by the
"first loss" subordinated security holder and thgrthe "second loss" mezzanine holder. In the ewidéefault and the exhaustion of any
classes of securities junior to those in which meest and there is any further loss, we will noabke to recover all of our investment in the
securities we purchase. In addition, if the undegymortgage portfolio has been overvalued by tiigirmator, or if the values subsequently
decline and, as a result, less collateral is avkglto satisfy interest and principal payments dni¢he related RMBS, the securities in which
we invest may effectively become the "first losesion behind the more senior securities, whicly mesult in significant losses to us. The
prices of lower credit quality securities are gatlgress sensitive to interest rate changes tharerighly rated investments, but more
sensitive to adverse economic downturns or indefidssuer developments. A projection of an econatoignturn, for example, could caus
decline in the price of lower credit quality seties because the ability of obligors of mortgagedarlying RMBS to make principal and
interest payments may be impaired. In such evaisdiieg credit support in the securitization sturetmay be insufficient to protect us aga
loss of our principal on these securities.

Increases in interest rates could negatively affeztvalue of our investments, which could resultdduced earnings or losses and negatively
affect the cash available for distribution to otac&holders.

We have and will continue to invest in real estalated assets by acquiring RMBS, residential nag¢goans, CMBS and CDOs backed by
real estate-related assets. Under a normal yielcecan investment in these assets will declineaine if long-term interest rates increase.
Declines in market value may ultimately reduce egymor result in losses to us, which may negatiaffect cash available for distribution to
our stockholders. A significant risk associatedwtitese investments is the risk that both long-tanieh short-term interest rates will increase
significantly. If long-term rates were to increasgnificantly, the market value of these investrsembuld decline, and the duration and
weighted average life of the investments wouldéase. We could realize a loss if these assetssséieAt the same time, an increase in
short-term interest rates would increase the amoiinterest owed on the repurchase agreementher adjustable rate financings we may
enter into to finance the purchase of these addetket values of our investments may decline witremy general increase in interest rates
for a number of reasons, such as increases inltefacreases in voluntary prepayments for thasestments that are subject to prepayment
risk and widening of credit spreads.

In a period of rising interest rates, our intergtense could increase while the interest we eauofixed-rate assets would not change,
which would adversely affect our profitability.

Our operating results will depend in large partlmn differences between the income from our assetf credit losses and financing costs.
We anticipate that, in most cases, the income Booh assets will respond more slowly to interetst flactuations than the cost of our
borrowings. Consequently, changes in interest ratasicularly shorterm interest rates, may significantly influence pat income. Increas
in these rates will tend to decrease our net incantemarket value of our assets. Interest ratéufions resulting in our interest expense
exceeding our interest income would result in ofyegdosses for us and may limit or eliminate ohility to make distributions to our
stockholders.
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Interest rate mismatches between our investmewnitsuay borrowings used to fund purchases of thesstasay reduce our income during
periods of changing interest rates.

We intend to fund some of our acquisitions of resithl mortgage loans, real estate-related seesirénd real estate loans with borrowings
that have interest rates based on indices ancciegtierms with shorter maturities than the interate indices and repricing terms of our
adjustable-rate assets. Accordingly, if short-tertarest rates increase, this may harm our pralfitab

Some of the residential mortgage loans, real estddted securities and real estate loans we aequér and will be fixed-rate securities. This
means that their interest rates will not vary airee based upon changes in a short-term interesindex. Therefore, the interest rate indices
and repricing terms of the assets that we acquidlzeir funding sources will create an interet raismatch between our assets and
liabilities. During periods of changing interestas, these mismatches could reduce our net incdividend yield and the market price of our
stock.

Accordingly, in a period of rising interest rates could experience a decrease in net income et bb$s because the interest rates on our
borrowings adjust whereas the interest rates offixed-rate assets remain unchanged.

Interest rate caps on our adjustable rate RMBS adagrsely affect our profitability.

Adjustable-rate RMBS are typically subject to pdigand lifetime interest rate caps. Periodic ies¢rate caps limit the amount an interest
rate can increase during any given period. Lifetinterest rate caps limit the amount an interest can increase over the life of the security.
Our borrowings typically will not be subject to siar restrictions. Accordingly, in a period of rdfy increasing interest rates, the interest
rates paid on our borrowings could increase withimitation while caps could limit the interesteaton our adjustable-rate RMBS. This
problem is magnified for hybrid adjustable-rate ad§ustable-rate RMBS that are not fully indexedrtker, some hybrid adjustable-rate and
adjustable-rate RMBS may be subject to periodiemyt caps that result in a portion of the intebestg deferred and added to the principal
outstanding. As a result, we may receive less ragime on hybrid adjustable-rate and adjustableRRMBS than we need to pay interest on
our related borrowings. These factors could redurenet interest income and cause us to suffesa lo

A significant portion of our portfolio investmentsll be recorded at fair value, as determined iocadance with our pricing policy as
approved by our board of directors and, as a rethate will be uncertainty as to the value of thiesestments.

A significant portion of our portfolio of investmenis in the form of securities that are not puplicaded. The fair value of securities and
other investments that are not publicly traded matybe readily determinable. It may be difficultimpossible to obtain third party pricing on
the investments we purchase. We value these ineessngquarterly at fair value, as determined in edaace with our pricing policy as
approved by our board of directors. Because suktatians are inherently uncertain, may fluctuaterashort periods of time and may be
based on estimates, our determinations of fairevalay differ materially from the values that wohkive been used if a ready market for tl
securities existed. The value of our common staekdcbe adversely affected if our determinatiorggarding the fair value of these
investments were materially higher than the vathaswe ultimately realize upon their disposal.

A prolonged economic slowdown, a recession or dagjireal estate values could impair our investmentd harm our operating results.

Many of our investments are susceptible to econatoivdowns or recessions, which could lead to fimglriosses in our investments and a
decrease in revenues, net income and assets. Ualfde@conomic conditions also could increase ouodihg costs, limit our access to the
capital markets or result in a decision by lendmtsto extend credit to us. These events couldgmews from increasing investments and t
an adverse effect on our operating results.
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Changes in prepayment rates could negatively afffectalue of our investment portfolio, which coudgult in reduced earnings or losses and
negatively affect the cash available for distribatto our stockholders.

There are seldom any restrictions on borrowerétiakito prepay their residential mortgage lodtismeowners tend to prepay mortgage I«
faster when interest rates decline. Consequenilypecs of the loans have to reinvest the money veddrom the prepayments at the lower
prevailing interest rates. Conversely, homeownamd hot to prepay mortgage loans when interest rateease. Consequently, owners of the
loans are unable to reinvest money that would loélverwise been received from prepayments at theehigrevailing interest rates. This
volatility in prepayment rates may affect our dlitio maintain targeted amounts of leverage onpautfolio of residential mortgage loans,
RMBS, and CDOs backed by real estate-related agadtmay result in reduced earnings or lossess@nd negatively affect the cash
available for distribution to our stockholders.

To the extent our investments are purchased araipm, faster than expected prepayments resulfastar than expected amortization of the
premium paid, which would adversely affect our @ags. Conversely, if these investments were pumthas a discount, faster than expected
prepayments accelerate our recognition of income.

The mortgage loans we invest in and the mortgageslanderlying the mortgage and asset-backed Seswwie invest in are subject to
delinquency, foreclosure and loss, which couldltésdosses to us.

Residential mortgage loans are typically securedibgle-family residential property and are subjeatisks of delinquency and foreclosure
and risks of loss. The ability of a borrower toag@ loan secured by a residential property is nidget upon the income or assets of the
borrower. A number of factors, including a gene@dnomic downturn, acts of God, terrorism, sociakst and civil disturbances, may img
borrowers' abilities to repay their loans. In aiddif we invest in non-Agency RMBS, which are backgdesidential real property but, in
contrast to Agency RMBS, their principal and instris not guaranteed by federally chartered entgtiech as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
and, in the case of Ginnie Mae, the U.S. governnigrg U.S. Department of Treasury and FHFA have egered into preferred stock
purchase agreements between the U.S. Departménéa$ury and Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac pursuamhich the U.S. Department of
Treasury will ensure that each of Fannie Mae amrddie Mac maintains a positive net worth. Assekbecsecurities are bonds or notes
backed by loans or other financial assets. Thétybil a borrower to repay these loans or otheafitial assets is dependent upon the income
or assets of these borrowers. Commercial mortgzayeslare secured by multifamily or commercial prigpand are subject to risks of
delinquency and foreclosure, and risks of lossdnatgreater than similar risks associated withdaaade on the security of single-family
residential property. The ability of a borrowerépay a loan secured by an income-producing prppgotcally is dependent primarily upon
the successful operation of such property ratham tipon the existence of independent income otsagbéhe borrower. If the net operating
income of the property is reduced, the borrowenibta to repay the loan may be impaired. Net ofiagaincome of an income producing
property can be affected by, among other thinggrtemix, success of tenant businesses, propenageament decisions, property location
and condition, competition from comparable typeprafperties, changes in laws that increase opegratipense or limit rents that may be
charged, any need to address environmental conddimminat the property, the occurrence of any unedcasualty at the property, changes in
national, regional or local economic conditionspecific industry segments, declines in regiondboal real estate values, declines in
regional or local rental or occupancy rates, ingesan interest rates, real estate tax rates &d operating expenses, changes in
governmental rules, regulations and fiscal policiesluding environmental legislation, acts of Gtatyorism, social unrest and civil
disturbances. In the event of any default undepegage loan held directly by us, we will bearskrof loss of principal to the extent of any
deficiency between the value of the collateral gredprincipal and accrued interest of the mortdaga, which could have a material adverse
effect on our cash flow from operations. In therdws the bankruptcy of a mortgage loan borrows, mortgage loan to such borrower will
be deemed to be secured only to the extent ofahe\of the underlying collateral at the time ofkauptcy (as determined by the bankruptcy
court), and the lien securing the mortgage loahhelsubject to the avoidance powers of the bankyupustee or debtor-in-possession to the
extent the lien is unenforceable under state laweé¢losure of a mortgage loan can be an expensivéeagthy process which could have a
substantial negative effect on our anticipatedrretun the foreclosed mortgage loan. RMBS evidentarésts in or are secured by pools of
residential mortgage loans and CMBS evidence iatglie or are secured by a single commercial mgedean or a pool of commercial
mortgage loans. Accordingly, the RMBS and CMBS mest in are subject to all of the risks of thepeagive underlying mortgage loans.
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We may be required to repurchase mortgage loaimslemnify investors if we breach representatiorg warranties, which could harm our
earnings.

If we sell loans, we would be required to make aotry representations and warranties about sucis imethe loan purchaser. Our residel
mortgage loan sale agreements will require usgarehase or substitute loans in the event we braaepresentation or warranty given to the
loan purchaser. In addition, we may be requiregtpairchase loans as a result of borrower fraud tireé event of early payment default on a
mortgage loan. Likewise, we are required to repaselor substitute loans if we breach a representatiwarranty in connection with our
securitizations. The remedies available to a puwehaf mortgage loans are generally broader thasethvailable to us against the originating
broker or correspondent. Further, if a purchaséareas its remedies against us, we may not betal#aforce the remedies we have against
the sellers. The repurchased loans typically cdy lom financed at a steep discount to their repaselprice, if at all. They are also typically
sold at a significant discount to the unpaid ppatibalance. Significant repurchase activity cdhddm our cash flow, results of operations,
financial condition and business prospects.

We may enter into derivative contracts that coxgose us to contingent liabilities in the future.

Subject to maintaining our qualification as a REd&rt of our investment strategy involves enterirtg derivative contracts that could require
us to fund cash payments in certain circumstaridesse potential payments will be contingent lidiledi and therefore may not appear on our
consolidated statement of financial condition. @bility to fund these contingent liabilities wile@end on the liquidity of our assets and
access to capital at the time, and the need tothegk contingent liabilities could adversely impaga financial condition.

Our Manager's due diligence of potential investmemay not reveal all of the liabilities associatéth such investments and may not reveal
other weaknesses in such investments, which ceald to investment losses.

Before making an investment, our Manager assebeestriengths and weaknesses of the originatosoeiof the asset as well as other fac
and characteristics that are material to the pavdmice of the investment. In making the assessnmeinbtherwise conducting customary due
diligence, our Manager relies on resources avalabit and, in some cases, an investigation by {rarties. This process is particularly
important with respect to newly formed originatordssuers with unrated and other subordinatedivas of MBS and ABS because there
may be little or no information publicly availakdéout these entities and investments. There cao lassurance that our Manager's due
diligence process will uncover all relevant faatshmt any investment will be successful.

Our real estate investments are subject to riskecpkar to real property.

We own assets secured by real estate and may alvestate directly in the future, either througtedi investments or upon a default of
mortgage loans. Real estate investments are subjeatious risks, including:

0 acts of God, including earthquakes, floods ahérmnatural disasters, which may result in uningumsses;

o acts of war or terrorism, including the conseaesrof terrorist attacks, such as those that cedwon September 11, 2001;

o adverse changes in national and local econondiaraarket conditions;

o changes in governmental laws and regulationsalfisolicies and zoning ordinances and the relebsts of compliance with laws and
regulations, fiscal policies and ordinances;

o costs of remediation and liabilities associatét environmental conditions such as indoor mofdj a

o the potential for uninsured or under-insured proplosses.

If any of these or similar events occurs, it majuee our return from an affected property or inwesit and reduce or eliminate our ability to
make distributions to stockholders.

We may be exposed to environmental liabilities wéhpect to properties to which we take title.

In the course of our business, we may take title#b estate, and, if we do take title, we couldblgect to environmental liabilities with
respect to these properties. In such a circumstaveenay be held liable to a governmental entittodhird parties for property damage,
personal injury, investigation, and cleap-costs incurred by these parties in connectidh @mvironmental contamination, or may be requ
to investigate or clean up hazardous or toxic sufzsts, or chemical releases at a property. The agsbciated with investigation or
remediation activities could be substantial. Ifewer become subject to significant environmenéddilities, our business, financial condition,
liquidity, and results of operations could be mialgr and adversely affected.
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We may in the future invest in RMBS collateralizgdsubprime mortgage loans, which are subjectdreased risks.

We may in the future invest in RMBS backed by dellal pools of subprime residential mortgage lod8sbprime" mortgage loans refer to
mortgage loans that have been originated usingrumiieg standards that are less restrictive thanunderwriting requirements used as
standards for other first and junior lien mortgémgn purchase programs, such as the programs oid-ktae and Freddie Mac. These lower
standards include mortgage loans made to borrdwaarisng imperfect or impaired credit histories (udihg outstanding judgments or prior
bankruptcies), mortgage loans where the amourtteofaan at origination is 80% or more of the vadfithe mortgage property, mortgage
loans made to borrowers with low credit scores,tgamre loans made to borrowers who have other dabtépresents a large portion of their
income and mortgage loans made to borrowers winzsgne is not required to be disclosed or verifi2de to economic conditions, includi
increased interest rates and lower home priceseliss aggressive lending practices, subprime gage loans have in recent periods
experienced increased rates of delinquency, fosaecty bankruptcy and loss, and they are likelyorttioue to experience delinquency,
foreclosure, bankruptcy and loss rates that areehjgand that may be substantially higher, thasdhexperienced by mortgage loans
underwritten in a more traditional manner. Thugause of the higher delinquency rates and lossesiased with subprime mortgage loans,
the performance of RMBS backed by subprime mortdaaes in which we may invest could be correspoglgiadversely affected, which
could adversely impact our results of operatiomgricial condition and business.

Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which guarantee thea&gBMBS in which we may invest, were recently plhinto the conservatorship of
the Federal Housing Finance Agency.

The interest and principal payments we expectdeive on some of the mortgage-backed securitisdioh we intend to invest will be
guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, or Ginnie.Mae recent economic challenges in the residenbetigage market have affected the
financial results and stock values of Fannie Mae: Freddie Mac. In 2008, both Fannie Mae and Frehlidie reported substantial losses.

Since June 30, 2008, there have been increaseantamcerns about Freddie Mac and Fannie Maeisyabilwithstand future credit losses
associated with securities held in their investnpanmtfolios, and on which they provide guarantétesently, the government passed the
Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008. FannéeMnd Freddie Mac have been placed into the o@teeship of the Federal Housing
Finance Agency, or FHFA, their federal regulatamguant to its powers under the Federal Housingritia Regulatory Reform Act of 200¢
part of the Housing and Economic Recovery Act d@®As the conservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie, Me FHFA controls and directs
the operations of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and(fjaake over the assets of and operate Fanneeadvid Freddie Mac with all the
powers of the shareholders, the directors, andffieers of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and condlidiusiness of Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac; (2) collect all obligations and money due tmfiie Mae and Freddie Mac; (3) perform all functiof Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
which are consistent with the conservator's appuwént; (4) preserve and conserve the assets andrpray Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac;
and

(5) contract for assistance in fulfilling any fuiwet, activity, action or duty of the conservator.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conservator of HarMae and Freddie Mac,

(i) the U.S. Department of Treasury and FHFA havermed into preferred stock purchase agreementgebatthe U.S. Department of
Treasury and Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac pursuamhich the U.S. Department of Treasury will ensiina each of Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac maintains a positive net worth; (ig th.S. Department of Treasury has established aseeured lending credit facility which
will be available to Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, amelEederal Home Loan Banks, which is intended neesas a liquidity backstop, which w
be available until December 2009; and (iii) the UD8partment of Treasury has initiated a tempopaogram to purchase RMBS issued by
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. Given the highly flrmdl evolving nature of these events, it is undheav our business will be impacted.
Based upon the further activity of the U.S. goveentror market response to developments at Fanngedvireddie Mac, our business could
be adversely impacted.
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Exchange rate fluctuations may limit gains or resulosses.

If we directly or indirectly hold assets denomirthie currencies other than U.S. dollars, we willlposed to currency risk that may
adversely affect performance. Changes in the Lbfars rate of exchange with other currencies afégct the value of investments in our
portfolio and the income that we receive in respécuch investments. In addition, we may incut&as connection with conversion betwe
various currencies, which may reduce our net incantkaccordingly may reduce our ability to payréistions to our stockholders.

Risks Related To Our Common Stock
We issued common stock on the New York Stock Exgham November 16, 2007.

Our shares of common stock are newly issued sexufdr which there was no trading market prioNtwvember 2007. The market price of
our common stock may be highly volatile and cowddshbject to wide fluctuations.

Some of the factors that could negatively affeatshare price include:

o actual or anticipated variations in our quartegrating results;

o changes in our earnings estimates or publicatisasearch reports about us or the real estatesing
o0 increases in market interest rates that maypeachasers of our shares to demand a higher yield;
o changes in market valuations of similar companies

o changes in valuations of our assets;

o adverse market reaction to any increased indebssdwe incur in the future;

o additions or departures of our Manager's keyquersl;

o0 actions by stockholders;

o speculation in the press or investment commuaityg

o general market and economic conditions.

Common stock eligible for future sale may have aslveffects on our share price.

We cannot predict the effect, if any, of futureesabf common stock, or the availability of sham@sfditure sales, on the market price of the
common stock. Sales of substantial amounts of comstuck, or the perception that such sales coutdroenay adversely affect prevailing
market prices for the common stock. At December2BD8, we had 177,198,212 shares of common steakdsand outstanding. In addition,
Annaly owned approximately 8.6% of our outstandshgres of common stock as of December 31, 2008eQuity incentive plan provides
for grants of restricted common stock and otheitgehased awards up to an aggregate of 8% of thees and outstanding shares of our
common stock (on a fully diluted basis) at the tiofi¢ghe award, subject to a ceiling of 40,000,008rss available for issuance under the plan.
On January 2, 2008, our executive officers andrathgployees of our Manager and our independenttdire were granted, as a group,
1,301,000 shares of our restricted common stock.r&htricted common stock granted to our executifieers and other employees of our
Manager or its affiliates vests in equal installiisern the first business day of each fiscal quarter a period of 10 years beginning on
January 2, 2008, of which 140,900 shares vested 3880 shares were forfeited during the year efmember 31, 2008. The restricted
common stock granted to our executive officers aheér employees of our Manager or its affiliatest ttemain outstanding and are unvested
will fully vest on the death of the individual. THel60,100 shares of our restricted common stoaktgd to our executive officers and other
employees of our Manager or its affiliates anduoindependent directors that remains unvested Becember 31, 2008 represents
approximately 0.65% of the issued and outstandiages of our common stock (on a fully diluted bade will not make distributions on
shares of restricted stock that have not vested.Ailealy, and our executive officers and our dioesthave agreed with the underwriters to a
90-day lock-up period (subject to extensions), meathat, until the end of the 90-day lock-up pdrive and they will not, subject to certain
exceptions, sell or transfer any shares of comrtmekavithout the prior consent of Merrill Lynch &Cwhich we refer to as Merrill Lynch.
Merrill Lynch may, in its sole discretion, at angné from time to time and without notice, waive tkems and conditions of the lock-up
agreements to which it is a party. Additionally,naty has agreed with us to a further lock-up penodonnection with the shares purchased
by Annaly concurrently with our initial public offiag that will expire at the earlier of (i) Novemtks, 2010 or (ii) the termination of the
management agreement. Annaly has further agreédusito a further lock-up period in connection wiik shares purchased by Annaly
immediately after our 2008 secondary offering thiditexpire at the earlier of (i) October 24, 2044(ii) the termination of the management
agreement. When the lock-up periods expire, thesermon shares will become eligible for sale, in saases subject to the requirements of
Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as aménadr the Securities Act. The market price of @mmon stock may decline significantly
when the restrictions on resale by certain of ¢ockholders lapse. Sales of substantial amountsmimon stock or the perception that such
sales could occur may adversely affect the prengitharket price for our common stock.
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There is a risk that our stockholders may not rexdistributions or that distributions may not grower time.

We intend to make distributions on a quarterly $asit of assets legally available to our stockhmld® amounts such that all or substantially
all of our REIT taxable income in each year isrilisited. We have not established a minimum distidoupayment level and our ability to
pay distributions may be adversely affected by mlper of factors, including the risk factors desedltherein. All distributions will be made
the discretion of our board of directors and wépeénd on our earnings, our financial condition,nteaiance of our REIT status and other
factors as our board of directors may deem relefrant time to time. Among the factors that could@ely affect our results of operations
and impair our ability to pay distributions to @tockholders are:

o the profitability of the investments of net preds from our equity raises;

o our ability to make profitable investments;

o margin calls or other expenses that reduce air ttaw;

o defaults in our asset portfolio or decreaseléwvalue of our portfolio; and

o the fact that anticipated operating expense $ewely not prove accurate, as actual results mayfi@n estimates.

A change in any one of these factors could affactability to make distributions. We cannot assyra that we will achieve investment
results that will allow us to make a specified levecash distributions or year-to-year increasesash distributions.

Market interest rates may have an effect on thdinigavalue of our shares.

One of the factors that investors may considereiciding whether to buy or sell our shares is ostritiution rate as a percentage of our share
price relative to market interest rates. If maikégrest rates increase, prospective investorsdeayand a higher distribution rate or seek
alternative investments paying higher dividendmtarest. As a result, interest rate fluctuationd eapital market conditions can affect the
market value of our shares. For instance, if irgierates rise, it is likely that the market prideor shares will decrease as market rates on
interest-bearing securities, such as bonds, inereas

Investing in our shares may involve a high degfats&.

The investments we make in accordance with oursiimrent objectives may result in a high amountsi vwhen compared to alternative
investment options and volatility or loss of pripai. Our investments may be highly speculative aygtessive, are subject to credit risk,
interest rate, and market value risks, among otlaa therefore an investment in our shares mapasuitable for someone with lower risk
tolerance.

Broad market fluctuations could negatively impée market price of our common stock.

The stock market has experienced extreme pricevalndne fluctuations that have affected the markietepof many companies in industries
similar or related to ours and that have been atedlto these companies' operating performanceseTtroad market fluctuations could
reduce the market price of our common stock. Funtloee, our operating results and prospects mayelmvthe expectations of public mar
analysts and investors or may be lower than thbserapanies with comparable market capitalizatiovtsich could lead to a material decline
in the market price of our common stock.

Future sales of shares may have adverse conseguendavestors.

We may issue additional shares in subsequent potiéicings or private placements to make new inmesits or for other purposes. We are
not required to offer any such shares to existimayesholders on a premptive basis. Therefore, it may not be possiblefisting shareholde
to participate in such future share issues, whiely dilute the existing shareholders' interestssinAnnaly owns approximately 8.6% of our
shares of common stock excluding unvested shanesstsfcted stock granted to our executive offi@rd employees of our Manager or its
affiliates. Annaly will be permitted, subject tcethequirements of Rule 144 under the Securitiestadctell such shares upon the earlier of (i)
() November 15, 2010 with respect to shares aeduioncurrently with our initial public offering drfb) October 24, 2011 with respect to
shares Annaly acquired immediately after our 2@®adary offering or (ii) the termination of the mgement agreement.
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Our charter and bylaws contain provisions that iijbit potential acquisition bids that stockholglenay consider favorable, and the market
price of our common stock may be lower as a result.

Our charter and bylaws contain provisions that haveanti-takeover effect and inhibit a change intmard of directors. These provisions
include the following:

o There are ownership limits and restrictions amgferability and ownership in our charter. To dyals a REIT for each taxable year after
2007, not more than 50% of the value of our outiitejistock may be owned, directly or constructiyély five or fewer individuals during

the second half of any calendar year. In additiam,shares must be beneficially owned by 100 orenparsons during at least 335 days of a
taxable year of 12 months or during a proportiomeatet of a shorter taxable year for each taxabée géter 2007. To assist us in satisfying
these tests, our charter generally prohibits amggrefrom beneficially or constructively owning radhan 9.8% in value or number of shares,
whichever is more restrictive, of any class oredf our outstanding capital stock. These regiristmay discourage a tender offer or other
transactions or a change in the composition ofboard of directors or control that might involver@mium price for our shares or otherwise
be in the best interests of our stockholders agdshares issued or transferred in violation of swshrictions being automatically transferred
to a trust for a charitable beneficiary, theretsuiBng in a forfeiture of the additional shares.

o Our charter permits our board of directors taésstock with terms that may discourage a thirdydaom acquiring us. Our charter permits
our board of directors to amend the charter witlsbockholder approval to increase the total nunobeuthorized shares of stock or the
number of shares of any class or series and te issmnmon or preferred stock, having preferences/arsion or other rights, voting powers,
restrictions, limitations as to dividends or othéstributions, qualifications, or terms or condit®of redemption as determined by our board.
Thus, our board could authorize the issuance eksigth terms and conditions that could have tHeafof discouraging a takeover or other
transaction in which holders of some or a majasitpur shares might receive a premium for theirat@aver the then-prevailing market price
of our shares.

o Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act. Marylalagv provides that "control shares" of a corporataquired in a "control share
acquisition" will have no voting rights except tetextent approved by a vote of two-thirds of thtes eligible to be cast on the matter under
the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act. "Contsbares" means voting shares of stock that, ifegpged with all other shares of stock
owned by the acquirer or in respect of which thgu@rer is able to exercise or direct the exerciseoting power (except solely by a revoca
proxy), would entitle the acquirer to exercise rgtpower in electing directors within one of thédwing ranges of voting power: one-tenth
or more but less than one-third, one-third or mmreless than a majority, or a majority or morealbf/oting power. A "control share
acquisition" means the acquisition of control sbaseibject to certain exceptions.

If voting rights or control shares acquired in atrol share acquisition are not approved at a $ioiders' meeting, or if the acquiring person
does not deliver an acquiring person statemerg@sned by the Maryland Control Share Acquisitiozt,Ahen, subject to certain conditions
and limitations, the issuer may redeem any orfathe control shares for fair value. If voting righof such control shares are approved at a
stockholders' meeting and the acquirer becometiezhto vote a majority of the shares of stockttetito vote, all other stockholders may
exercise appraisal rights. Our bylaws contain &ipion exempting acquisitions of our shares fromMuaryland Control Share Acquisition
Act. However, our board of directors may amendhdaws in the future to repeal or modify this exeimmp, in which case any control shares
of our company acquired in a control share acqarsivill be subject to the Maryland Control Sharegisition Act.
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o Business Combinations. Under Maryland law, "besencombinations” between a Maryland corporati@haaminterested stockholder or an
affiliate of an interested stockholder are prolgiifor five years after the most recent date orchvttie interested stockholder becomes an
interested stockholder. These business combinaitichsde a merger, consolidation, share exchange aircumstances specified in the
statute, an asset transfer or issuance or reétzsh of equity securities. An interested stodkleo is defined as:

0 any person who beneficially owns 10% or moréhefvoting power of the corporation's shares; or

o an affiliate or associate of the corporation wdtcgny time within the two-year period before tlage in question, was the beneficial owner
of 10% or more of the voting power of the then tanding voting stock of the corporation.

A person is not an interested stockholder undestiiite if the board of directors approved in adeathe transaction by which such person
otherwise would have become an interested stockhadttbwever, in approving a transaction, the badidirectors may provide that its
approval is subject to compliance, at or aftertitme of approval, with any terms and conditionsed®tined by the board. After the five-year
prohibition, any business combination between tlayl&nd corporation and an interested stockholdeeally must be recommended by the
board of directors of the corporation and apprawethe affirmative vote of at least:

0 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holdémutstanding shares of voting stock of the corpora and

o two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast bidbacs of voting stock of the corporation, othentlshares held by the interested stockholder
with whom or with whose affiliate the business camaltion is to be effected or held by an affiliateagsociate of the interested stockholder.

These super-majority vote requirements do not ajfphe corporation's common stockholders receimaéir@mum price, as defined under
Maryland law, for their shares in the form of caslother consideration in the same form as prelagoaid by the interested stockholder for
its shares. The statute permits various exempfrons its provisions, including business combinasidat are exempted by the board of
directors before the time that the interested stolder becomes an interested stockholder. Our bafaditectors has adopted a resolution
which provides that any business combination betvweseand any other person is exempted from theigioms of the Maryland Control She
Acquisition Act, provided that the business combonais first approved by the board of directorkisTresolution, however, may be altered or
repealed in whole or in part at any time. If thesalution is repealed, or the board of directorssdwot otherwise approve a business
combination, this statute may discourage others tnying to acquire control of us and increasediféculty of consummating any offer.

o Staggered board. Our board of directors is dividéo three classes of directors. The current $esfrthe directors expire in 2009, 2010 and
2011, respectively. Directors of each class aresehdor three-year terms upon the expiration af therent terms, and each year one class of
directors is elected by the stockholders. The stagjterms of our directors may reduce the posyibi a tender offer or an attempt at a
change in control, even though a tender offer angle in control might be in the best interestsurfstockholders.

o Our charter and bylaws contain other possibletakeover provisions. Our charter and bylaws cimstather provisions that may have the
effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a chairgcontrol of us or the removal of existing diws and, as a result, could prevent our
stockholders from being paid a premium for theimowon stock over the then-prevailing market price.

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders teetaction against our directors and officers argtéid, which could limit stockholder's
recourse in the event of actions not in their ogstests.

Our charter limits the liability of our directora@ officers to us and our stockholders for monayalges, except for liability resulting from:
o actual receipt of an improper benefit or profinioney, property or services; or
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o a final judgment based upon a finding of actind deliberate dishonesty by the director or offit@t was material to the cause of action
adjudicated

for which Maryland law prohibits such exemptionrfrdiability.

In addition, our charter authorizes us to obligate company to indemnify our present and formegators and officers for actions taken by
them in those capacities to the maximum extent figrdnby Maryland law. Our bylaws require us toenthify each present or former
director or officer, to the maximum extent perndttey Maryland law, in the defense of any proceedinghich he or she is made, or
threatened to be made, a party because of his @ehéce to us. In addition, we may be obligatetlind the defense costs incurred by our
directors and officers.

Tax Risks
Your investment has various federal income taxsrisk

This summary of certain tax risks is limited to fderal tax risks addressed below. Additionalgiskissues may exist that are not addressec
in this Form 10-K and that could affect the fedegal treatment of us or our stockholders. Thisosintended to be used and cannot be used
by any stockholder to avoid penalties that mayniygoised on stockholders under the Internal Revemde @r the Code. We strongly urge
you to seek advice based on your particular cir¢antes from an independent tax advisor concerhiagffects of federal, state and lo
income tax law on an investment in common stocka@amglour individual tax situation.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us tedo otherwise attractive opportunities.

To qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purmysge must continually satisfy various tests regarthe sources of our income, the nature
and diversification of our assets, the amounts istildute to our stockholders and the ownershipwfstock. To meet these tests, we may be
required to forego investments we might otherwisden We may be required to make distributionsdoldtolders at disadvantageous times
or when we do not have funds readily availabledistribution. Thus, compliance with the REIT re@mrents may hinder our investment
performance.

Complying with REIT requirements may force us tjuldate otherwise attractive investments.

To qualify as a REIT, we generally must ensure @ahe end of each calendar quarter at least Ta#e walue of our total assets consists of
cash, cash items, government securities and ceihIREIT real estate assets, including certain raggdoans and mortgadgpacked securitie:
The remainder of our investment in securities (othan government securities and qualifying retdtesassets) generally cannot include r
than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of ame issuer or more than 10% of the total valuthefoutstanding securities of any one
issuer. In addition, in general, no more than 5%hefvalue of our assets (other than governmenirisies and qualifying real estate assets)
can consist of the securities of any one issuet,r@anmore than 25% of the value of our total séi@srican be represented by securities of one
or more TRSs. If we fail to comply with these raguients at the end of any quarter, we must cotiecfailure within 30 days after the enc
such calendar quarter or qualify for certain statutelief provisions to avoid losing our REIT statand suffering adverse tax consequences.
As a result, we may be required to liquidate fram portfolio otherwise attractive investments. Téastions could have the effect of redus
our income and amounts available for distributioair stockholders.

Potential characterization of distributions or gamsale may be treated as unrelated businesdéarabme to tax-exempt investors.

If (1) all or a portion of our assets are subjedtie rules relating to taxable mortgage poolsw@)pre a "pension-held REIT," (3) a tax-
exempt stockholder has incurred debt to purchadeldrour common stock, or (4) the residual ReghtesMortgage Investment Conduit
interests, or REMICs, we buy generate "excess smmfuincome," then a portion of the distributioasahd, in the case of a stockholder
described in clause (3), gains realized on theaaemmon stock by such tax-exempt stockholder beagubject to federal income tax as
unrelated business taxable income under the IntBexaenue Code.
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Classification of a securitization or financingaargement we enter into as a taxable mortgage podd subject us or certain of our
stockholders to increased taxation.

We intend to structure our securitization and ftiag arrangements as to not create a taxable ngarigaol. However, if we have borrowings
with two or more maturities and, (1) those borraygiare secured by mortgages or mortgage-backedtsecand (2) the payments made on
the borrowings are related to the payments receaiveithe underlying assets, then the borrowingstlaagool of mortgages or mortgage-
backed securities to which such borrowings relaag be classified as a taxable mortgage pool utdeinternal Revenue Code. If any part of
our investments were to be treated as a taxablegag® pool, then our REIT status would not be imguhibut a portion of the taxable income
we recognize may, under regulations to be issuetidyreasury Department, be characterized as $sxnelusion” income and allocated
among our stockholders to the extent of and gelyaraproportion to the distributions we make taleatockholder. Any excess inclusion
income would:

o not be allowed to be offset by a stockholdertsoperating losses; o0 be subject to a tax as upcklausiness income if a stockholder were a
tax-exempt stockholder;

o be subject to the application of federal incomewithholding at the maximum rate (without redantfor any otherwise applicable income
tax treaty) with respect to amounts allocable teifjn stockholders; and

o0 be taxable (at the highest corporate tax ratagtoather than to our stockholders, to the extenexcess inclusion income relates to stock
held by disqualified organizations (generally, &sxempt companies not subject to tax on unrelatsthbas income, including governmental
organizations).

Failure to qualify as a REIT would subject us tdeiel income tax, which would reduce the cash allfor distribution to our stockholders.

We qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purmosemmencing with our taxable year ending on De@er8lh, 2007. However, the federal
income tax laws governing REITs are extremely caxphnd interpretations of the federal income éaxsl governing qualification as a REIT
are limited. Qualifying as a REIT requires us tceme@arious tests regarding the nature of our assetour income, the ownership of our
outstanding stock, and the amount of our distrdngion an ongoing basis. While we intend to opesatinat we will qualify as a REIT, given
the highly complex nature of the rules governind Ri:the ongoing importance of factual determinatidncluding the tax treatment of
certain investments we may make, and the posgibilifuture changes in our circumstances, no asseraan be given that we will so qualify
for any particular year. If we fail to qualify afR&EIT in any calendar year and we do not qualifyciertain statutory relief provisions, we
would be required to pay federal income tax ontaxable income. We might need to borrow money brassets to pay that tax. Our payn
of income tax would decrease the amount of ourrimeavailable for distribution to our stockholddfarthermore, if we fail to maintain our
qualification as a REIT and we do not qualify fertain statutory relief provisions, we no longerbhbbe required to distribute substantially
all of our REIT taxable income to our stockholdéssless our failure to qualify as a REIT were exaziander federal tax laws, we would be
disqualified from taxation as a REIT for the foakable years following the year during which quedifion was lost.

Failure to make required distributions would subjecto tax, which would reduce the cash avail&l@istribution to our stockholders.

To qualify as a REIT, we must distribute to ourcktwlders each calendar year at least 90% of olif REable income (including certain
items of non-cash income), determined without régarthe deduction for dividends paid and excludiegcapital gain. To the extent that we
satisfy the 90% distribution requirement, but distte less than 100% of our taxable income, we lvglsubject to federal corporate income
tax on our undistributed income. In addition, wd wicur a 4% nondeductible excise tax on the amyafiany, by which our distributions in
any calendar year are less than the sum of:

0 85% of our REIT ordinary income for that year;
0 95% of our REIT capital gain net income for thear; and
o any undistributed taxable income from prior years
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We intend to distribute our REIT taxable incometw stockholders in a manner intended to satisfy9bis distribution requirement and to
avoid both corporate income tax and the 4% nonddde@xcise tax. However, there is no requirentbat TRSs distribute their after-tax net
income to their parent REIT or their stockhold@sr taxable income may substantially exceed oumueime as determined by GAAP,
because, for example, realized capital lossesheitieducted in determining our GAAP net income rbay not be deductible in computing
our taxable income. In addition, we may investseeds that generate taxable income in excess nbato income or in advance of the
corresponding cash flow from the assets. To thengthat we generate such non-cash taxable incomésixable year, we may incur
corporate income tax and the 4% nondeductible exeis on that income if we do not distribute suatbme to stockholders in that year. As a
result of the foregoing, we may generate less fiashthan taxable income in a particular year.Hattevent, we may be required to use cash
reserves, incur debt, or liquidate non-cash asdatses or at times that we regard as unfavotatdatisfy the distribution requirement and to
avoid corporate income tax and the 4% nondeduatikdése tax in that year. Moreover, our abilitydietribute cash may be limited by
financing facilities we may enter into.

Ownership limitations may restrict change of cohtmobusiness combination opportunities in which stockholders might receive a premi
for their shares.

In order for us to qualify as a REIT for each tdrajear after 2007, no more than 50% in value ofcaistanding capital stock may be owr
directly or indirectly, by five or fewer individusiduring the last half of any calendar year. "ligtlinls" for this purpose include natural
persons, private foundations, some employee bauiafis and trusts, and some charitable trusts.r@sepve our REIT qualification, our
charter generally prohibits any person from diseotl indirectly owning more than 9.8% in value mmiumber of shares, whichever is more
restrictive, of any class or series of the outsitagndhares of our capital stock. This ownershiptition could have the effect of discouraging
a takeover or other transaction in which holderswofcommon stock might receive a premium for tkbaires over the then prevailing market
price or which holders might believe to be otheaiiis their best interests.

Our ownership of and relationship with any TRS whiee may form or acquire will be limited, and ddaé to comply with the limits would
jeopardize our REIT status and may result in th@iegtion of a 100% excise ta

A REIT may own up to 100% of the stock of one orendRSs. A TRS may earn income that would not kifying income if earned

directly by the parent REIT. Both the subsidiarg &me REIT must jointly elect to treat the subgigias a TRS. Overall, no more than 25% of
the value of a REIT's assets may consist of stoceourities of one or more TRSs. A TRS will pagidial, state and local income tax at
regular corporate rates on any income that it ednnesddition, the TRS rules impose a 100% ex@sgeoh certain transactions between a TRS
and its parent REIT that are not conducted on arsalength basis. The TRS that we may form wouldfpderal, state and local income tax
on its taxable income, and its after-tax net incomeld be available for distribution to us but webulot be required to be distributed to us.
We anticipate that the aggregate value of the TtB&sand securities owned by us will be less tha#b ®f the value of our total assets
(including the TRS stock and securities). Furtheenwe will monitor the value of our investmentimr TRSs to ensure compliance with
rule that no more than 25% of the value of ourtassmy consist of TRS stock and securities (whscpiplied at the end of each calendar
quarter). In addition, we will scrutinize all of pbransactions with taxable REIT subsidiaries teuza that they are entered into on arm's-
length terms to avoid incurring the 100% excisedagcribed above. There can be no assurance, howleaewe will be able to comply with
the 25% limitation discussed above or to avoid igpibn of the 100% excise tax discussed above.

We could fail to qualify as a REIT or we could bemsubject to a penalty tax if income we recogfriam certain investments that are tre:
or could be treated as equity interests in a forewyporation exceeds 5% of our gross income axalfle year.

We may invest in securities, such as subordinatixigsts in certain CDO offerings, that are treatecbuld be treated for federal (and
applicable state and local) corporate income tapgaes as equity interests in foreign corporatiQasegories of income that qualify for the
95% gross income test include dividends, interedtcertain other enumerated classes of passiveneconder certain circumstances, the
federal income tax rules concerning controlledifpmecorporations and passive foreign investmentpamies require that the owner of an
equity interest in a foreign corporation includecamts in income without regard to the owner's gogf any distributions from the foreign
corporation. Amounts required to be included iroime under those rules are technically neither adiuelends nor any of the other
enumerated categories of passive income specifiéitei 95% gross income test. Furthermore, theme dear precedent with respect to the
qualification of such income under the 95% gros®ime test. Due to this uncertainty, we intendrtotlour direct investment in securities t
are or could be treated as equity interests ine&idn corporation such that the sum of the amowmetare required to include in income with
respect to such securities and other amounts efjnatifying income do not exceed 5% of our grog®ime. We cannot assure you that we
will be successful in this regard. To avoid ank i$ failing the 95% gross income test, we maydxguired to invest only indirectly, through a
domestic TRS, in any securities that are or coelddnsidered to be equity interests in a foreigpa@tion. This, of course, will result in any
income recognized from any such investment to bgestito federal income tax in the hands of the TWIsich may, in turn, reduce our yield
on the investment.
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Liguidation of our assets may jeopardize our REl&ldication.

To qualify as a REIT, we must comply with requirertseregarding our assets and our sources of inclhiwe. are compelled to liquidate our
investments to repay obligations to our lendersmag be unable to comply with these requiremeritisnately jeopardizing our qualification
as a REIT, or we may be subject to a 100% tax grresultant gain if we sell assets in transactibas are considered to be prohibited
transactions.

The tax on prohibited transactions will limit owility to engage in transactions, including certaiathods of securitizing mortgage loans that
would be treated as sales for federal income tapqses.

A REIT's net income from prohibited transactionsubject to a 100% tax. In general, prohibitedgeations are sales or other dispositions of
property, other than foreclosure property, butudeig mortgage loans, held primarily for sale tstomers in the ordinary course of business.
We might be subject to this tax if we sold or sé@ed our assets in a manner that was treatedsakedor federal income tax purposes.
Therefore, to avoid the prohibited transactions te& may choose not to engage in certain salessets at the REIT level and may securitize
assets only in transactions that are treated asding transactions and not as sales for tax peg@gen though such transactions may not be
the optimal execution on a pre-tax basis. We cautuid any prohibited transactions tax concernsrigaging in securitization transactions
through a TRS, subject to certain limitations dissat above. To the extent that we engage in suVitaes through domestic TRSs, the
income associated with such activities will be sabjo federal (and applicable state and localp@@te income tax.

Characterization of the repurchase agreements tee ieto to finance our investments as sales foptaposes rather than as secured lending
transactions would adversely affect our abilitytamlify as a REIT.

We have entered into and will enter into repurcteggeements with a variety of counterparties taeachour desired amount of leverage for
the assets in which we invest. When we enter imgparchase agreement, we generally sell assets toounterparty to the agreement and
receive cash from the counterparty. The counteypaibligated to resell the assets back to useaehd of the term of the transaction, which
is typically 30 to 90 days. We believe that fordeml income tax purposes we will be treated a®weer of the assets that are the subject of
repurchase agreements and that the repurchaseregrsewill be treated as secured lending transastiotwithstanding that such agreement
may transfer record ownership of the assets tadhaterparty during the term of the agreemens pdssible, however, that the IRS could
successfully assert that we did not own these sislseing the term of the repurchase agreementghich case we could fail to qualify as a
REIT.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our atyilto hedge effectively.

The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Codestantially limit our ability to hedge mortgage-kad securities and related borrowings.
Under these provisions, our annual gross inconma fion-qualifying hedges, together with any otheome not generated from qualifying
real estate assets, cannot exceed 25% of our agrass income. In addition, our aggregate grossnrecfrom non-qualifying hedges, fees,
and certain other non-qualifying sources cannoéed&% of our annual gross income. As a resultnighit have to limit our use of
advantageous hedging techniques or implement thedges through a TRS, which we may form in theréut@ihis could increase the cost of
our hedging activities or expose us to greatessragsociated with changes in interest rates thamouwdd otherwise want to bear.

We may be subject to adverse legislative or regojaax changes that could reduce the market pficeir common stock.

At any time, the federal income tax laws or regala governing REITs or the administrative intetgtiens of those laws or regulations may
be amended. We cannot predict when or if any neleréd income tax law, regulation or administraiivierpretation, or any amendment to
any existing federal income tax law, regulatioradministrative interpretation, will be adopted, prdgated or become effective and any s
law, regulation or interpretation may take effedttoactively. We and our stockholders could be esblg affected by any such change in, or
any new, federal income tax law, regulation or adstiative interpretation.
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Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for tleeluced tax rates.

Legislation enacted in 2003 generally reduces tagimum tax rate for dividends payable to domegtcldholders that are individuals, trusts
and estates from 38.6% to 15% (through 2010). @ivits payable by REITs, however, are generally ligibke for the reduced rates.
Although this legislation does not adversely aftbet taxation of REITs or dividends paid by REIire more favorable rates applicable to
regular corporate dividends could cause investdrs are individuals, trusts and estates to perdaiestments in REITS to be relatively less
attractive than investments in stock of non-RElTpeooations that pay dividends, which could adversélect the value of the stock of REITS,
including our common stock.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

We do not own any property. Our executive and adnative office is located at 1211 Avenue of theéricas, Suite 2902, New York, New
York 10036, telephone (646) 454-3759. We sharedffise space with Annaly and FIDAC.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not party to any material litigation or legeceedings, or to the best of our knowledge, tangatened litigation or legal proceedings,
which, in our opinion, individually or in the aggr@te, would have a material adverse effect on@sults of operations or financial condition.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securityolders
None.
Part Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relaed Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities

Our common stock began trading publicly on the Newk Stock Exchange under the trading symbol "Ciivi"November 16, 2007. As of
February 27, 2009, we had 177,196,945 shares ofnmomstock issued and outstanding which were heldpgpyoximately 5,702 beneficial
holders. The following table sets forth, for theipds indicated, the high, low, and closing salesgs per share of our common stock as
reported on the New York Stock Exchange compoajte tand the cash dividends declared per share ebounon stock for the year ended
December 31, 2008 and the period commencing Novefrhe2007 and ending December 31, 2007.

Stock Prices

High Low Close
Quarter Ended December 31, 2008 $ 6.10 $ 190 $ 3.45
Quarter Ended September 30, 2008 $ 9.05 $ 473 $ 6.21
Quarter Ended June 30, 2008 $ 14.17 $ 901 % 9.01
Quarter Ended March 31, 2008 $ 19.59 $ 12.00 $ 12.30
November 16, 2007 to December 31, 2007 $ 17.88 $ 1410 $ 17.88

41



Common Dividends
Declared Per Share

Quarter Ended December 31, 2008 $0.04
Quarter Ended September 30, 2008 $0.16
Quarter Ended June 30, 2008 $0.16
Quarter Ended March 31, 2008 $0.26

Period commencing November 21, 2007 and ending
December 31, 2007 $0.025

We pay quarterly dividends and distribute to oockholders all or substantially all of our taxalleome in each year (subject to certain
adjustments). This enables us to qualify for thxebanefits accorded to a REIT under the Code. We hat established a minimum dividend
payment level and our ability to pay dividends rbayadversely affected for the reasons describedruhd caption "Risk Factors." All
distributions will be made at the discretion of dard of directors and will depend on our earnjiogs financial condition, maintenance of
our REIT status and such other factors as our bofadétectors may deem relevant from time to time.

Sale of Unregistered Securities

On November 21, 2007, in a private offering we safmhaly 3,621,581 shares of our common stock atcz pf $15 per share, for aggregate
proceeds of approximately $54.3 million. We did pay any underwriting fees, commissions or discewith respect to the shares we sold
Annaly. We relied on the exemption from registratmrovided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Acttfee sale of the shares to Annaly. This
sale occurred concurrently with our initial pubdiffering which was consummated on the same date.

On October 29, 2008, in a private offering we sbiahaly 11,681,415 million shares of common stoch gtice of $2.25 per share for
aggregate proceeds of approximately $26.3 milMe.did not pay any underwriting fees, commissiondiscounts with respect to the shares
we sold Annaly. We relied on the exemption fromistrgtion provided by Section 4(2) of the Secusitfet for the sale of the shares to
Annaly. This sale occurred immediately subsequeioutr secondary offering which was consummatecersame date.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

We have adopted a long term stock incentive plamaentive Plan, to provide incentives to our ipeledent directors, employees of our
Manager and its affiliates to stimulate their efédiowards our continued success long-term growthpaiofitability and to attract, reward and
retain personnel and other service providers. Tieritive Plan authorizes the Compensation Comnuft#iee board of directors to grant
awards, including incentive stock options as definader Section 422 of the Code, or ISOs, non-fiedlstock options, or NQSOs, restricted
shares and other types of incentive awards. Thenthe Plan authorizes the granting of optionstbepawards for an aggregate of the gre
of 8.0% of the outstanding shares of our commockstor 14,175,857 shares, up to a ceiling of 40000 shares. For a description of our
Incentive Plan, see Note 10 to the Financial Statem

The following table provides information as of Deder 31, 2008 concerning shares of our common stothorized for issuance under our
existing Incentive Plan.

Number of
Securitiesto b e Number of
Issued upon Weighted Average Securities
Exercise of Exercise Price of  Available for
Outstanding Outstanding Future Issuance
Options, Warrant s Options, Warrants ~ Under Equity
Plan Category and Rights(1) and Rights ~ Compensation Plans
Equity Compensation Plans 1,283,120 - 12,892,737

Approved by Stockholders
Equity Compensation Plans Not - -
Approved by Stockholders(1)

Total 1,283,120 - 12,892,737

(1) We do not have any equity plans that have sehtapproved by our stockholders.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following selected financial data are deriviehf our audited financial statements for the yealed December 31, 2008 and the period
from November 21, 2007 (commencement of operatitmsligh December 31, 2007. The selected finadeiel should be read in
conjunction with the more detailed information ained in the Financial Statements and Notes thamdd'Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gaems" included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition Highbhts
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

As of Dec ember 31, As of December 31,
2 008 2007

Mortgage-backed securities $ 855,467 $ 1,124,290
Loans held for investment -- $ 162,371
Securitized loans held for investment $ 583,346 --
Total assets $1 477,501 $ 1,565,636
Repurchase agreements $ 562,119 $ 270,584
Securitized debt $ 488,743 -
Total liabilities $1 ,063,046 $ 1,026,747
Shareholders' equity $ 414,455 $ 538,889
Book value per share $ 2.34 $ 14.29
Number of shares outstanding 177 ,198,212 37,705,563

Consolidated Statement of Operations Highlights
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

For the period

For th eyear November 21, 2007
ended D ecember  to December 31,
31, 2008 2007
Net interest income $44,715 $3,077
Net loss ( $119,809) ($2,906)
Loss per share - basic and diluted ($1.90) ($0.08)
Average shares - basic and diluted 63 ,155,878 37,401,737
Taxable income per share (1) $0.62 $0.03
Dividends declared per share (2) $0.62 $0.025

(1) See reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measuents to GAAP financial measurements.
(2) For applicable period as reported in our egrmi@announcement.
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Other Data
(dollars in thousands, except pe rcentages)

For the period
November 21,

For the year 2007 to
ende d December  December 31,
3 1, 2008 2007

Average total assets $1 ,659,313  $ 1,044,355
Average investment securities $1 , 711,705 $ 399,736
Average borrowings $1 ,304,873 $ 270,584
Average equity $ 400,256 $ 530,982
Annualized yield on average interest 5.96%

earning assets 7.02%
Annualized cost of funds on average interest

bearing liabilities 4.64% 5.08%
Annualized interest rate spread 1.32% 1.94%
Annualized net interest margin (net interest

income/average interest earning assets) 2.61% 6.85%
Annualized G&A and management fee expense as

percentage of average total assets 0.85% 1.55%
Annualized G&A and management fee expense as

percentage of average equity 3.50% 3.05%
Return on average interest earning assets (7.00%) (6.47%)
Return on average equity (29.93%) (4.87%)

(1) See reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measuents to GAAP financial measurements.
(2) For the applicable period as reported in ouniegs announcements.

Reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measurement&RAAP financial measurements

Taxable income per share

As a REIT, we are required to distribute to ourshalders substantially all of our REIT taxablengags in the form of dividends. Taxable
earnings per share is a meaningful financial memsent for investors and management in assessingesiarmance. A reconciliation of

REIT taxable income per share to GAAP EPS (basi®ws:

Reconciliation of REIT Taxable Income Per Share t&GAAP Loss per Share

For the
period
For the year November 21,
ended 2007 to
December 31, December 31,
2008 2007
GAAP loss per share ($1.90) ($0.08)
Realized loss on sale of investments $2.45 -
Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps $0.07 $0.11
REIT taxable income per share $0.62 $0.03

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Result of Operations

The following discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations should be read in catiom with the financial statements and
notes to those statements included in Item 8 sfflorm 10-K. The discussion may contain certaiw#md-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statemantsthose that are not historical in nature. Assallt of many factors, such as those set
forth under "Risk Factors" in this Form 10-K, owtwal results may differ materially from those aitated in such forward-looking

statements.
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Executive Summary

We are a specialty finance company that investsesidential mortgage-backed securities, residemt@tgage loans, real estate related
securities and various other asset classes. Wextegmally managed by FIDAC. We have elected atehohto qualify to be taxed as a REIT
for federal income tax purposes commencing withtaxable year ending on December 31, 2007. Ouetadgasset classes and the principal
investments we have made and expect to continmake in each are as follows:

o0 RMBS, consisting of:

o Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and-imvestment grade classes, including the BB-rd8ecited and non-rated classes
0 Agency RMBS

o Whole mortgage loans, consisting of:

o Prime mortgage loans

o Jumbo prime mortgage loans

o Alt-A mortgage loans

0 ABS, consisting of:

o CMBS

o Debt and equity tranches of CDOs

o Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investrgeade and non-investment grade classes, ingutis BB-rated, B-rated and non-
rated classes

We completed our initial public offering on Noveml2d, 2007. In that offering and in a concurremtgte offering to Annaly, we raised
proceeds before offering expenses of approxim&gB88.6 million. We completed a secondary offeringdrtober 29, 2008. In that offering
and in an immediately subsequent private offermgrnaly, we raised proceeds before offering expsd approximately $301.0 million.
We have invested the proceeds of our initial publfering and concurrent private offering, and hasenmenced investing proceeds of our
October 2008 offerings. As of December 31, 2008ha@ a portfolio of approximately $855.5 millionRMBS and approximately $583.3
million in securitized loans.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, prify through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achigg objective by investing in a broad class oéfinial assets to construct an investment
portfolio that is designed to achieve attractiwk+adjusted returns and that is structured to cpmith the various federal income tax
requirements for REIT status.

Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawe focused our investment activities on acquinog-Agency RMBS and on
purchasing residential mortgage loans that hava beginated by select high-quality originators;lirding the retail lending operations of
leading commercial banks. Our investment portfati®ecember 31, 2008 was weighted toward non-Ag&MBS. We expect that over the
near term our investment portfolio will continuelte weighted toward RMBS, subject to maintainingREIT qualification and our 1940 A
exemption. In addition, we have engaged in anctigatie continuing to engage in transactions wistidential mortgage lending operations of
leading commercial banks and other high-qualitgioators in which we identify and re-underwriteidesitial mortgage loans owned by such
entities, and rather than purchasing and secungfiguich residential mortgage loans ourselves, wdtaoriginator would structure the
securitization and we would purchase the resultiegzanine and subordinate nagency RMBS. We may also engage in similar transas
with non-Agency RMBS in which we would acquire AAAted non-Agency RMBS and immediately re-securitimese securities. We would
sell the resulting AAA-rated super senior RMBS aetdin the AAA-rated mezzanine RMBS.
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Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest ratd aredit environment. We will adjust our
strategy to changing market conditions by shiftig asset allocations across these various assested as interest rate and credit cycles
change over time. We believe that our strategy,kined with our Manager's experience, will enabléousay dividends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing market cycles.eifiect to take a long-term view of assets andliieds, and our reported earnings and
mark-to-market valuations at the end of a finan@galorting period will not significantly impact oabjective of providing attractive risk-
adjusted returns to our stockholders over the kemngp.

We use leverage to seek to increase our potentiains and to fund the acquisition of our assets.i@ome is generated primarily by the
difference, or net spread, between the income we@aour assets and the cost of our borrowingshée financed and expect to continu
finance our investments using a variety of finagaources including repurchase agreements, waretadiéities, securitizations, commerc
paper and term financing CDOs. We have manage@gmelt to continue to manage our debt by utiliziigrest rate hedges, such as interest
rate swaps, to reduce the effect of interest tatéufations related to our debt. As of December2BD8, we had outstanding indebtedness of
approximately $1.1 billion, which consists of recerileverage of approximately $562.1 million and-necourse securitized financing of
approximately $488.7 million.

Recent Developments

We commenced operations in November 2007 in thetaidchallenging market conditions which affectieel cost and availability of
financing from the facilities with which we expedtt finance our investments. These instrumentsidiec! repurchase agreements, wareh
facilities, securitizations, asset-backed commeépager, or ABCP, and term CDOs. The liquidity riwhich commenced in August 2007
affected each of these sources--and their indiVigtaviders-to different degrees; some sources generally becaraeailable, some remain
available but at a high cost, and some were langefffected. For example, in the repurchase agneemarket, non-Agency RMBS became
harder to finance, depending on the type of assdimteralizing the RMBS. The amount, term and rirargquirements associated with these
types of financings were also impacted. At thaktinvarehouse facilities to finance whole loan priesdential mortgages were generally
available from major banks, but at significantlgtnér cost and had greater margin requirementsptenously offered. It was also extremely
difficult to term finance whole loans through setimation or bonds issued by a CDO structure. Faagnusing ABCP froze as issuers bec
unable to place (or roll) their securities, whielsulted, in some instances, in forced sales of MiB8,other securities which further negati
impacted the market value of these assets.

Although the credit markets had been undergoingmtubulence, as we started ramping up our pootfelie noted a slight easing. We
entered into a number of repurchase agreement®we ase to finance RMBS. In January 2008, we extérto two whole mortgage loan
repurchase agreements. As we began to see thalalilof financing, we were also seeing bettedemvriting standards used to originate
new mortgages. We commenced buying and financin@&/snd also entered into agreements to purchaske wiwtgage loans. We
purchased high credit quality assets which we betleve would be readily able to finance.

Beginning in mid-February 2008, credit markets eipeed a dramatic and sudden adverse changeeVbatg of the limitation on liquidity
was largely unanticipated by the markets. Crediecsgain froze, and in the mortgage market, valnatof non-Agency RMBS and whole
mortgage loans came under severe pressure. Thiis crigis began in early February 2008, when avie&everaged investor announced that
it had to de-lever and liquidate a portfolio of egspmately $30 billion of non-Agency RMBS. Pricektbese types of securities dropped
dramatically, and lenders started lowering thegsrion non-Agency RMBS that they held as collatierakecure the loans they had extended.
The subsequent failure in March 2008 of Bear Ste&r€o. worsened the crisis. As the year progredsgerioration in the fair value of our
assets continued, we received and met marginwadler our repurchase agreements, which resultedrinbtaining additional funding from
third parties, including from Annaly, and takindnet steps to increase our liquidity. To reduceiage and protect the portfolio from
increased market volatility, we sold assets wittaaying value of $802.5 million in non-Agency RMB&d unsecured loans for a loss of
approximately $144.3 million and terminated $1fdr in notional interest rate swaps for a losapproximately $10.3 million, which
together resulted in a net realized loss of appnately $154.6 million. Additionally, the disruptismluring the period resulted in us not being
in compliance with the net income covenant in oheus whole loan repurchase agreements and thalifgiwovenants in our other whole
loan repurchase agreement at a time during whichadeno amounts outstanding under those faciltdsamended these covenants, and on
July 29, 2008, we terminated those facilities toid\paying non-usage fees.
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The challenges of the first quarter of 2008 corgththroughout the year as financing difficultiesdiaeverely pressured liquidity and asset
values. In September 2008, Lehman Brothers Holdiimgs, a major investment bank, experienced a majoidity crisis and failed.

Securities trading remains limited and mortgageisges financing markets remain challenging asititkeistry continues to report negative
news. As a result, we expect to operate with alésel of leverage and to continue to take actitwas tould support available cash. This
dislocation in the non-Agency mortgage sector hadanit difficult for us to obtain short-term finang on favorable terms. As a result, we
have completed loan securitizations in order t@imbiong-term financing and terminated our un-e#ii whole loan repurchase agreements in
order to avoid paying non-usage fees under thoseagents. In addition, we have continued to see#ifig from Annaly. Under these
circumstances, we expect to take actions intenal@datect our liquidity, which may include reducibgrrowings and disposing of assets as
well as raising capital.

During this period of market dislocation, fiscadamonetary policymakers have established new ligufdcilities for primary dealers and
commercial banks, reduced short-term interest rate$ passed legislation that is intended to addieschallenges of mortgage borrowers
and lenders. This legislation, the Housing and Botin Recovery Act of 2008, seeks to forestall hdareclosures for distressed borrowers
and assist communities with foreclosure problenihogh these aggressive steps are intended tegtrand support the US housing and
mortgage market, we continue to operate under diffigult market conditions.

Subsequent to June 30, 2008, there were increagdeitoncerns about Freddie Mac and Fannie Mb#itydo withstand future credit
losses associated with securities held in theiestment portfolios, and on which they provide gotges. Recently, the government passe
"Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008." Farivise and Freddie Mac have been placed into theeceat®rship of the Federal
Housing Finance Agency, or FHFA, their federal tatpr, pursuant to its powers under The FederalsihmuFinance Regulatory Reform Act
of 2008, a part of the Housing and Economic Rego¥et of 2008. As the conservator of Fannie Mae aretidie Mac, the FHFA controls
and directs the operations of Fannie Mae and Fedlddic and may (1) take over the assets of and pEemnie Mae and Freddie Mac with
all the powers of the shareholders, the directord, the officers of Fannie Mae and Freddie Macamtiuct all business of Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac; (2) collect all obligations and morlese to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; (3) perfornfualttions of Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac which are consistent with the conservator'agment; (4) preserve and conserve the assetpraperty of Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac; and

(5) contract for assistance in fulfilling any fuiwet, activity, action or duty of the conservator.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conservator of fiarMae and Freddie Mac,

(i) the U.S. Department of Treasury and FHFA haverd into preferred stock purchase agreemenisekatthe U.S. Department of
Treasury and Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac pursuamiiich the U.S. Department of Treasury will ensitva each of Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac maintains a positive net worth; (ig th.S. Department of Treasury has established aseeured lending credit facility which
will be available to Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, amelEederal Home Loan Banks, which is intended neesas a liquidity backstop, which w
be available until December 2009; and (iii) the \D8partment of Treasury has initiated a tempopaogram to purchase RMBS issued by
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. Given the highly flandl evolving nature of these events, it is undheav our business will be impacted.
Based upon the further activity of the U.S. govesntror market response to developments at FanngedviBreddie Mac, our business could
be adversely impacted.

The Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008EBSA, was recently enacted. The EESA providedtl$e Secretary of the Treasury
with the authority to establish a Troubled Asselid®érogram, or TARP, to purchase from financratitutions up to $700 billion of
residential or commercial mortgages and any seéesribbligations, or other instruments that areetiam or related to such mortgages, that in
each case was originated or issued on or beforelMiat, 2008, as well as any other financial insgotithat the U.S. Secretary of the
Treasury, after consultation with the Chairmanhef Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Systetarmines the purchase of which is
necessary to promote financial market stabilitygrupransmittal of such determination, in writing the appropriate committees of the U.S.
Congress. The EESA also provides for a programviioatd allow companies to insure their troubledetss

There can be no assurance that the EESA will hdeneficial impact on the financial markets, inghgdcurrent extreme levels of volatility.
To the extent the market does not respond favottatilye TARP or the TARP does not function as id&t) our business may not receive the
anticipated positive impact from the legislatiom.addition, the U.S. Government, Federal Reserdeosimer governmental and regulatory
bodies have taken or are considering taking ottigrrss to address the financial crisis. We canmetlict whether or when such actions may
occur or what impact, if any, such actions couldehan our business, results of operations and ¢iahnondition.
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On April 24, 2008 we transferred $619.7 millionaafr residential mortgage loans held for investnterthe PHHMC 2008-CIM1 Trust in a
securitization transaction. In this transaction,sell $536.9 million of AAA-rated fixed and floagimate bonds to third party investors and
retained $46.3 million of AAA-rated mezzanine borasl $36.5 million in subordinated bonds which fuewcredit support to the certificates
issued to third parties. The certificates issuethieytrust are collateralized by loans held foiestment that have been transferred to the
PHHMC 2008-CIM1 Trust. We incurred approximately3nillion in issuance costs that were deducterhftioe proceeds of the transaction
and are being amortized over the life of the bofitiss transaction was accounted for as a finanpurguant to SFAS 140, Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets andnigkishment of Liabilities, or SFAS 140.

On July 25, 2008, we transferred $151.2 millioroof residential mortgage loans held for investntenbhe PHHMC 2008-CIM2 Trust in a
securitization transaction. In this transaction,imially retained all securities issued by thewttization trust including approximately
$142.4 million of AAA-rated fixed and floating ragenior bonds and $8.8 million in subordinated Isomad classified them as mortgage-
backed securities, available for sale on its cadat#d statement of financial condition. There was/alue assigned to the residual interest.
On August 28, 2008, we sold approximately $74.9iomilof the AAA-rated fixed and floating rate bonadated to the July 25, 2008
securitization to third-party investors and realizeloss of $11.6 million. This transaction wascagted for as a sale pursuant to SFAS 140,
and the related loans held for investment wereagtized from the consolidated statements of firrdwondition. We have no other
continuing interests with the trust.

In October 2008, we and FIDAC amended our manageaggarement to reduce the base management feelfith®o per annum to 1.50% |
annum of our stockholders' equity and to elimirthteincentive fees previously provided for in themagement agreement.

We completed a secondary offering on October 20820 that offering and in an immediately subsexjyszivate offering to Annaly, we
raised proceeds before offering expenses of apmiately $301.0 million.

Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be &fteby various factors, many of which are beyondomntrol. Our results of operations will
primarily depend on, among other things, the l@felur net interest income, the market value ofassets, and the supply of and demand for
such assets. Our net interest income, which rafiet amortization of purchase premiums and accreti discounts, varies primarily as a
result of changes in interest rates, borrowings;astd prepayment speeds, which is a measurembotofuickly borrowers pay down the
unpaid principal balance on their mortgage loans.

Prepayment Speeds. Prepayment speeds, as retbgctieel Constant Prepayment Rate, or CPR, vary dicapto interest rates, the type of
investment, conditions in financial markets, conitfmt and other factors, none of which can be prtedi with any certainty. In general, when
interest rates rise, it is relatively less attnaetior borrowers to refinance their mortgage loams as a result, prepayment speeds tend to
decrease. When interest rates fall, prepaymentisgead to increase. For mortgage loan and RMB&stnvents purchased at a premium, as
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of inconsammedecreases because the purchase premiumdv@iptiie bonds amortizes faster
than expected. Conversely, decreases in prepaypeatls result in increased income and can extengettiod over which we amortize the
purchase premium. For mortgage loan and RMBS invests purchased at a discount, as prepayment simeeelase, the amount of income
we earn increases because of the acceleratiom afcitretion of the discount into interest incomeny&rsely, decreases in prepayment speed:
result in decreased income and can extend thedoevier which we accrete the purchase discountiméoest income.

Rising Interest Rate Environment. As indicated a)@s interest rates rise, prepayment speeds fjgrimerease, increasing our interest
income. Rising interest rates, however, increasdioancing costs which may result in a net negatimpact on our net interest income. In
addition, if we acquire Agency and non-Agency RM&#ateralized by monthly reset adjustable-ratetgames, or ARMs, and three- and
five-year hybrid ARMs, such interest rate increasescceesult in decreases in our net investment incas¢here could be a timing misma
between the interest rate reset dates on our RMB$fio and the financing costs of these investtaeMonthly reset ARMs are ARMs on
which coupon rates reset monthly based on indigels as the one-month London Interbank Offering RatéIBOR. Hybrid ARMs are
mortgages that have interest rates that are fizedrf initial period (typically three, five, seventen years) and thereafter reset at regular
intervals subject to interest rate caps.
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With respect to our floating rate investments, simtérest rate increases should result in increimsesr net investment income if our floating
rate assets are greater in amount than the rdlatgithg rate liabilities. Similarly, such an ina®e in interest rates should generally result
increase in our net investment income on fixed-iratestments made by us because our fixed-ratésasseld be greater in amount than our
fixed-rate liabilities. We expect, however, that fixed-rate assets would decline in value in agsnterest rate environment and that our net
interest spreads on fixed rate assets could deidiagising interest rate environment to the egeith assets are financed with floating rate
debt.

Falling Interest Rate Environment. As interestsd#dl, prepayment speeds generally increase, dsioig our net interest income. Falling
interest rates, however, decrease our financintg eadsich may result in a net positive impact on eirinterest income. In addition, if we
acquire Agency and non-Agency RMBS collateralizgartonthly reset adjustable-rate mortgages, or ARMES, three- and five-year hybrid
ARMSs, such interest rate decreases could resuitiieases in our net investment income, as tharkl d® a timing mismatch between the
interest rate reset dates on our RMBS portfolio thiedfinancing costs of these investments. Montabet ARMs are ARMs on which coupon
rates reset monthly based on indices such as #nonth London Interbank Offering Rate, or LIBOR. HgbARMs are mortgages that he
interest rates that are fixed for an initial per{bgically three, five, seven or ten years) anetéafter reset at regular intervals subject to
interest rate caps.

With respect to our floating rate investments, simtérest rate decreases may result in decreases imet investment income because our
floating rate assets may be greater in amountttianelated floating rate liabilities. Similarlyych a decrease in interest rates should gen
result in an increase in our net investment incoméxed-rate investments made by us because xed-fiate assets would be greater in
amount than our fixed-rate liabilities. We expduatywever, that our fixed-rate assets would incréas@lue in a falling interest rate
environment and that our net interest spreadsxau fiate assets could increase in a falling inteete environment to the extent such assets
are financed with floating rate debt.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is aéggiassets which we believe to be of high credétlijys We believe this strategy will

generally keep our credit losses and financingsclost. We retain the risk of potential credit lossm all of the residential mortgage loans we
hold in our portfolio. Additionally, some of ouniastments in RMBS may be qualifying interests fammses of maintaining our exemption
from the 1940 Act because we retain a 100% owngiskérest in the underlying loans. If we purchaelasses of these securitizations, we
have the credit exposure on the underlying loarisr B the purchase of these securities, we canadltie diligence process that allows us to
remove loans that do not meet our credit standaaded on loan-to-value ratios, borrowers' credites; income and asset documentation and
other criteria that we believe to be important @adiions of credit risk.

Size of Investment Portfolio. The size of our irntwesnt portfolio, as measured by the aggregate drrinicipal balance of our mortgage
loans and aggregate principal balance of our mgegalated securities and the other assets we ©also a key revenue driver. Generally, as
the size of our investment portfolio grows, the amtoof interest income we receive increases. Tigetanvestment portfolio, however, dri
increased expenses as we incur additional intexgsnse to finance the purchase of our assets.

Since changes in interest rates may significarffgcaour activities, our operating results dependarge part, upon our ability to effectively
manage interest rate risks and prepayment riskie wkaintaining our status as a REIT.

Current Environment. The current weakness in tloadber credit markets could adversely affect ormaare of our potential lenders or any of
our lenders and could cause one or more of ounfiatdenders or any of our lenders to be unwillorgunable to provide us with financing or
require us to post additional collateral. In gehehas could potentially increase our financingtsand reduce our liquidity or require us to
sell assets at an inopportune time. We expectd@ausuimber of sources to finance our investmemtfyding repurchase agreements,
warehouse facilities, securitizations, asset-baddedmercial paper and term CDOs. Current markeditions have affected the cost and
availability of financing from each of these sowemd their individual providers to different deggesome sources generally are unavailable,
some are available but at a high cost, and somiaarely unaffected. For example, in the repurctageement market, borrowers have been
affected differently depending on the type of siéguhey are financing. Non-Agency RMBS have bearder to finance, depending on the
type of assets collateralizing the RMBS. The amotemim and margin requirements associated withethgses of financings have been
negatively impacted.
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Currently, warehouse facilities to finance wholarigprime residential mortgages are generally availitom major banks, but at significantly
higher cost and have greater margin requiremeats pheviously offered. Many major banks that off@rehouse facilities have also reduced
the amount of capital available to new entrants@ntbequently the size of those facilities offemed are smaller than those previously
available

It is currently a challenging market to term finarwehole loans through securitization or bonds iddnea CDO structure. The highly rated
senior bonds in these securitizations and CDO tires currently have liquidity, but at much widpresads than issues priced in recent
history. The junior subordinate tranches of thesectures currently have few buyers and currentetazonditions have forced issuers to
retain these lower rated bonds rather than seththe

Certain issuers of ABCP have been unable to placceo(l) their securities, which has resulted, am® instances, in forced sales of MBS and
other securities which has further negatively intpd¢he market value of these assets. These maukditions are fluid and likely to change
over time. As a result, the execution of our inment strategy may be dictated by the cost andahibifly of financing from these different
sources.

If one or more major market participants fails treswise experiences a major liquidity crisis, aswhe case for Bear Stearns & Co. in
March 2008, and Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. ipt&aber 2008, it could negatively impact the maak#ity of all fixed income securities
and this could negatively impact the value of tbeusities we acquire, thus reducing our net bodkerdurthermore, if many of our potential
lenders or any of our lenders are unwilling or uadb provide us with financing, we could be for¢edsell our securities or residential
mortgage loans at an inopportune time when pricesl@pressed.

In the current market, it may be difficult or imisle to obtain third party pricing on the investiteewe purchase. In addition, validating tl
party pricing for our investments may be more stiibje as fewer participants may be willing to paevithis service to us. Moreover, the
current market is more illiquid than in recent bigtfor some of the investments we purchase. liligavestments typically experience greater
price volatility as a ready market does not exstvolatility increases or liquidity decreases waynmave greater difficulty financing our
investments which may negatively impact our earmiaigd the execution of our investment strategy.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepared in accordaitbeGAAP. These accounting principles may requiseo make some complex and
subjective decisions and assessments that coedt affir reported assets and liabilities, as wetilmgeported revenues and expenses. We
believe that all of the decisions and assessm@uis which our financial statements will be baselll e reasonable at the time made and
based upon information available to us at that tikteeach quarter end, we calculate estimatedvidire using a pricing model. We validate
our pricing model by obtaining independent pricorgall of our assets and perform a verificatiothafse sources to our own internal estimate
of fair value. We have identified what we believidl tve our most critical accounting policies to the following:

Mortgage Loan Sales and Securitizations

We periodically enter into transactions in which sedl financial assets, such as RMBS, mortgageslaa other assets. Upon a transfer of
financial assets, we sometimes retain or acquimt®ser subordinated interests in the related assetaddition, we generally do not acquire
servicing rights for mortgage loans we purchasén&and losses on such transactions are recogusird the guidance in SFAS No. 140,
Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finanéiakets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, a replaent of FASB Statement No. 125, or
SFAS No 140 which is based on a financial companapproach that focuses on control. Under thiscgmpr, after a transfer of financial
assets, an entity recognizes the financial and@egvassets it controls and the liabilities it lirdsurred, derecognizes financial assets when
control has been surrendered, and derecognizektikesbwhen extinguished.

We determine the gain or loss on sale of mortgaged by allocating the carrying value of the undeg mortgage between securities or
loans sold and the interests retained based onfttievalues. The gain or loss on sale is theedéfhce between the cash proceeds from th
and the amount allocated to the securities or |saits
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From time to time, we may securitize loans heldifieestment. These transactions are recorded wraance with SFAS 140 Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets andnigmishment of Liabilities (SFAS 140) and are actted for as either a "sale" and the Ic
held for investment are removed from the consadidatatements of financial condition or as a "faag" and are classified as "Securitized
loans held for investment" on the Company's codatéid statements of financial condition, dependingn the structure of the securitization
transaction.

Valuation of Investments

On January 1, 2008, we adopted FASB Statementnain€ial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Valuadgements, or SFAS 157, which
defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneag fair value in accordance with GAAP and exgsdisclosures about fair value
measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based thgotmansparency of inputs to the valuation oésset or liability as of the measurement
date. The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 - inputs to the valuation methodology aneted prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 - inputs to the valuation methodology imguguoted prices for similar assets and liabiliteactive markets, and inputs that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dilyor indirectly, for substantially the full teraf the financial instrument.

Level 3 - inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.

Mortgage-backed securities and interest rate sawapsalued using a pricing model. The MBS pricingdel incorporates such factors as
coupons, prepayment speeds, spread to the Treasdirigwap curves, convexity, duration, periodic l#eccaps, and credit enhancement.
Interest rate swaps are modeled by incorporatinog factors as the Treasury curve, LIBOR rates,thadeceive rate on the interest rate
swaps. Management reviews the fair values detedviigehe pricing model and compares its resultdemer quotes received on each
investment to validate the reasonableness of thiatians indicated by the pricing models. The degletes will incorporate common market
pricing methods, including a spread measuremethigtd@ reasury curve or interest rate swap curveadlsas underlying characteristics of the
particular security including coupon, periodic difiel caps, rate reset period, issuer, additionatlitrsupport and expected life of the security.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtisy management to ensure the changes are ateopts markets and products
develop and the pricing for certain products becomere transparent, we continue to refine our velnanethodologies. The methods used
by us may produce a fair value calculation that matybe indicative of net realizable value or refilee of future fair values. Furthermore,
while we believe our valuation methods are appedprand consistent with other market participahts use of different methodologies, or
assumptions, to determine the fair value of ceffia@ncial instruments could result in a differestimate of fair value at the reporting date.
We use inputs that are current as of the measurtetaés, which may include periods of market distimeg during which price transparency
may be reduced. This condition could cause ounfira instruments to be reclassified from Leveb2.ével 3.

As of December 31, 2008, we have classified theatan of our RMBS as "Level 2" as described above.
Loans Held for Investment

We purchase residential mortgage loans and clas#fy as loans held for investment on the congeliistatement of financial condition.
Loans held for investment are intended to be teldaturity and, accordingly, are reported at thegipal amount outstanding, net of
provisions for loan losses.

Loan loss provisions are examined quarterly andtgailto reflect estimated expectations of futuobable credit losses based on factors
as originator historical losses, geographic comeginh, individual loan characteristics, experiehtesses, and expectations of future loan
pool behavior. As credit losses occur, the providar loan losses will reflect that realization.
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When we determine that it is probable that contr@tt due specific amounts are deemed uncollect#iideloan is considered impaired. To
estimate our impairment, we determine the excefiseofecorded investment amount over the net flirevof the collateral, as reduced by
selling costs. Any deficiency between the carryangount of an asset and the net sales price ofsepssd collateral is charged to the
allowance for loan losses.

An allowance for mortgage loans would be maintaiaeadn estimated level believed adequate by manegfeio absorb probable losses. We
may elect to sell a loan held for investment duadeerse changes in credit fundamentals. Onceefggrdination has been made by us tha
will no longer hold the loan for investment, we hai€count for the loan at the lower of amortizedtar estimated fair value. The
reclassification of the loan and recognition of aiyments could adversely affect our reported egsin

Available-for-Sale Securities

Our investments in RMBS are classified as availétesale securities that are carried on the cadatd statement of financial condition at
their fair value. This classification results inatlyes in fair values being recorded as adjustntersgscumulated other comprehensive income
or loss, which is a component of stockholders' tyqui

When the fair value of an available-for-sale sdyusi less than its amortized cost for an exteriribd, we consider whether there is an
other-than-temporary impairment in the value ofgheurity. If, based on our analysis, an other-tieamporary impairment exists, the cost
basis of the security is written down to the tloemrent fair value, and the unrealized loss issfamed from accumulated other comprehen
loss as an immediate reduction of current earnjagsf the loss had been realized in the periootloér-than-temporary impairment). The
determination of other-than-temporary impairmera 8ubjective process, and different judgmentsamsdmptions could affect the timing of
loss realization.

We consider the following factors when determinamgother-than-temporary impairment for a security:

o The length of time and the extent to which thekeivalue has been less than the amortized cost;

o The financial condition and near-term prospetth®issuer;

o The credit quality and cash flow performancehef $ecurity; and

o Our intent to hold the security for a periodiofe sufficient to allow for any anticipated recoy@r market value.

The determination of other-thaamporary impairment is made at least quarterlywdfdetermine an impairment to be other than teargare
will realize a loss which will negatively impactrcent income.

Investment Consolidation

For each investment we make, we evaluate the yndgrentity that issued the securities we acquireth which we make a loan to determ
the appropriate accounting. In performing our asialywe refer to guidance in Statement of Finanstalounting Standards (SFAS) No. 140,
Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandiabkets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, and BABterpretation No. (FIN) 46R,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, infieeming our analysis. FIN 46R addresses the apjicaf Accounting Research Bulletin N
51, Consolidated Financial Statements, to certaiities in which voting rights are not effectiveidentifying an investor with a controlling
financial interest. In variable interest entities VIES, an entity is subject to consolidation unBEN 46R if the investors either do not have
sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finanite activities without additional subordinateddirtial support, are unable to direct the entity's
activities, or are not exposed to the entity'sdess entitled to its residual returns. VIEs witthie scope of FIN 46R are required to be
consolidated by their primary beneficiary. The @mmnbeneficiary of a VIE is determined to be thetyp#hat absorbs a majority of the entity's
expected losses, its expected returns, or botls. détermination can sometimes involve complex abjestive analyses.

Interest Income Recognition

Interest income on available-for-sale securities laans held for investment is recognized ovelliteeof the investment using the effective
interest method as described by SFAS No. 91, Adbegifior Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Associatéld @riginating or Acquiring Loans
and Initial Direct Costs of Leases, for securitiéhigh credit quality and Emerging Issues TaskcEddo. 99-20, Recognition of Interest
Income and Impairment on Purchased and RetainedfiB&i Interests in Securitized Financial Assessamended by FSP Emerging Issues
Task Force No. 99-2@; for all other securities. Income recognitiosuspended for loans when, in the opinion of managéna full recover
of income and principal becomes doubtful. Incomemgaition will be resumed when the loan becomedractually current and performance
is demonstrated to be resumed.
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Under SFAS No. 91 and Emerging Issues Task Forc®81@0, as amended, management estimates, arntheftpurchase, the future
expected cash flows and determines the effectiezant rate based on these estimated cash flowswuarlirchase price. As needed, these
estimated cash flows are updated and a revised ggghputed based on the current amortized cosieahtzestment. In estimating these cash
flows, there are a number of assumptions thatw@sgest to uncertainties and contingencies. Thededie the rate and timing of principal
payments (including prepayments, repurchases, liefand liquidations), the pass-through or coupada and interest rate fluctuations. In
addition, interest payment shortfalls due to delgmries on the underlying mortgage loans, andrthiagd of the magnitude of credit losses on
the mortgage loans underlying the securities haveetjudgmentally estimated. These uncertaintidscantingencies are difficult to predict
and are subject to future events that may impaciag@ment's estimates and our interest income.

Accounting For Derivative Financial Instruments

Our policies permit us to enter into derivative traats, including interest rate swaps and intawstcaps, as a means of mitigating our
interest rate risk. We use interest rate derivatiggruments to mitigate interest rate risk rathan to enhance returns.

We account for derivative financial instrumentsagtordance with SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Darxalnstruments and Hedging
Activities, as amended and interpreted. SFAS N8.r&guires an entity to recognize all derivative®iher assets or liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial condition amcheasure those instruments at fair value. Addifignthe fair value adjustments affect
either other comprehensive income in stockholdsygity until the hedged item is recognized in eagaior net income depending on whether
the derivative instrument qualifies as a hedgeafmounting purposes and, if so, the nature of gugimg activity.

In the normal course of business, we use a vaoiedigrivative financial instruments to manage, eddpe, interest rate risk. These derivative
financial instruments must be effective in reducing interest rate risk exposure in order to qudbf hedge accounting. When the terms of
an underlying transaction are modified, or whenuhderlying hedged item ceases to exist, all chaurgthe fair value of the instrument are
marked-to-market with changes in value includedd@hincome for each period until the derivativarimsment matures or is settled. Any
derivative instrument used for risk managementdoas not meet the hedging criteria is marked-td<atavith the changes in value included
in net income.

Derivatives are used for hedging purposes rattear speculation. We rely on quotations from thirdipa to determine fair values. If our
hedging activities do not achieve our desired tesolr reported earnings may be adversely affected

Reserve for Possible Credit Losses

The expense for possible credit losses in connegtith debt investments is the charge to earningsdrease the allowance for possible ci
losses to the level that management estimates addguate considering delinquencies, loss experiand collateral quality. Other factors
considered relate to geographic trends and prativetsification, the size of the portfolio and amt economic conditions. Based upon these
factors, we establish the provision for possibkdiriosses by category of asset. When it is priebiiat we will be unable to collect all
amounts contractually due, the account is consitienpaired.

Where impairment is indicated, a valuation writevdoor write-off is measured based upon the exceé®eaecorded investment amount over
the net fair value of the collateral, as reduceddlling costs. Any deficiency between the carnangpount of an asset and the net sales pr
repossessed collateral is charged to the allowfamazedit losses.

Income Taxes

We intend to elect and qualify to be taxed as alREtcordingly, we will generally not be subjectdorporate federal or state income tax to
the extent that we make qualifying distribution®to stockholders, and provided we satisfy on dinaimg basis, through actual investment
and operating results, the REIT requirements iriolydertain asset, income, distribution and stogkership tests. If we fail to qualify as a
REIT, and do not qualify for certain statutory eélprovisions, we will be subject to federal, statel local income taxes and may be precl
from qualifying as a REIT for the subsequent faxable years following the year in which we lost BEIT qualification. Accordingly, our
failure to qualify as a REIT could have a matesidVerse impact on our results of operations anduats@vailable for distribution to our
stockholders.
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The dividends paid deduction of a REIT for qualifyidividends to its stockholders is computed usimgtaxable income as opposed to net
income reported on the financial statements. Taxatdome, generally, will differ from net incomegated on the financial statements
because the determination of taxable income isthasdax provisions and not financial accountinggples.

We may elect to treat certain of our subsidiare3RSs. In general, a TRS of ours may hold asseteagage in activities that we cannot
hold or engage in directly and generally may endgagay real estate or non-real estate-relatechbssi A TRS is subject to federal, state and
local corporate income taxes.

While our TRS will generate net income, our TRS danlare dividends to us which will be includedur taxable income and necessitate a
distribution to our stockholders. Conversely, if ke¢ain earnings at the TRS level, no distribut®required and we can increase book equity
of the consolidated entity.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, HdieValue Option for Financial Assets and Finahtiabilities - including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 or SFAS 158SSE59 permits entities to choose to measure maaydéial instruments and certain
other items at fair value. Unrealized gains anddsson items for which the fair value option hasrbelected will be recognized in earnings at
each subsequent reporting date. SFAS 159 was igfdot the Company commencing January 1, 2008.0dmpany did not elect the fair
value option for any of its financial instruments.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, or SHA1, Disclosures about Derivative Instrumentstedging Activities, an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 133. SFAS 161 atteto improve the transparency of financial reipgrby providing additional
information about how derivative and hedging atitiéi affect an entity's financial position, finaalgberformance and cash flows. This
statement changes the disclosure requirementsforadive instruments and hedging activities byuisgg enhanced disclosure about (1) |
and why an entity uses derivative instrumentsh@y derivative instruments and related hedged imsaccounted for under SFAS
Statement 133 and its related interpretations,(&htow derivative instruments and related hedgemus affect an entity's financial position,
financial performance, and cash flows. To meetdlasgectives, SFAS 161 requires qualitative disales about objectives and strategies for
using derivatives, quantitative disclosures abairtfalue amounts and of gains and losses on deeviastruments, and disclosures about
credit-risk-related contingent features in derivathgreements. This disclosure framework is intdridéetter convey the purpose of
derivative use in terms of the risks that an ernsityntending to manage. SFAS 161 is effectivetiier Company on January 1, 2009. The
Company expects that adoption of SFAS 161 willéase footnote disclosure to comply with the disglesequirements for financial
statements issued after January 1, 2009.

On October 10, 2008, FASB issued FASB Staff PasiffeSP) 157-3, Determining the Fair Value of a Riial Asset When the Market for
That Asset Is Not Active or FSP 1374n response to the deterioration of the creditkats. This FSP provides guidance clarifying hdwAS
157, should be applied when valuing securities amkets that are not active. The guidance provideiustrative example that applies the
objectives and framework of SFAS 157, utilizing mgament's internal cash flow and discount ratenagBans when relevant observable
data do not exist. It further clarifies how obsdreamarket information and market quotes shoulddresidered when measuring fair value in
an inactive market. It reaffirms the notion of failue as an exit price as of the measurementagat¢hat fair value analysis is a transactional
process and should not be broadly applied to apgobassets. FSP 15¥is effective upon issuance including prior pesidar which financia
statements have not been issued. The Company dobslieve the implementation of FSP 157-3 will B@amaterial effect on the fair value
of their assets as the Company intends to contimuenethodologies used in previous quarters toevassets as defined under the original
SFAS 157.

On December 11, 2008 the Financial Accounting Steth@oard (FASB) issued a staff position entitlQPFSFAS 140-4 and Fin 46(R)-8
(FSP). The FSP amends both FASB Statement 140,ufstiog for Transfers and Servicing of Financial étssand Extinguishments of
Liabilities and FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revisedcember 2003), Consolidation of Variable Intefesities, to require public entities to
provide additional disclosures about the transfdinancial assets and involvement with variablerast entities (including qualifying special
purpose entities or QSPE), respectively. The inbéthe disclosure requirements is to provide gnetsinsparency to financial statement u
about an enterprises continuing involvement witlaficial assets after they have been transferradécuritization or asset-backed financing
arrangement (SFAS 140); and to demonstrate howmtenise's involvement with a variable interegitgr{VIE) affects their financial
position, financial performance and cash flows (BB{R)). We sponsored two securitizations durin@8®ne was a transfer of financial
assets accounted for as a financing. The otheaviiasfer of assets which was accounted for ateausilizing a QSPE. The implementation
of this FSP will require additional disclosuresastjng our assets and liabilities. This FSP isatiife for the first reporting period ending a
December 15, 2008 which, for us is December 318200
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Financial Condition

At December 31, 2008 our portfolio consisted o##dillion of RMBS and securitized loans. At DecemBg, 2007 our portfolio consisted of
$1.1 billion of RMBS and loans held for investment.

The following table summarizes certain charactiesstf our portfolio at December 31, 2008 and 2007:

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007
Leverage at period-end 2.5:1 0.5:1
Residential mortgage-backed securities as % of por tfolio 66.2% 87.5%
Residential mortgage loans as % of portfolio - 12.5%
Loans collateralizing secured debt as % of portfol io 33.8% -
Fixed-rate investments as % of portfolio 29.9% 14.4%
Adjustable-rate investments as % of portfolio 70.1% 85.6%

Fixed rate investments

Residential mortgage-backed securities as % of fixed-rate assets 49.9% 39.5%
Residential mortgage loans as % of fixed-rate a ssets - 60.5%
Loans collateralizing secured debt as a % of fi xed-rate assets 50.1% -
Adjustable-rate investments
Residential mortgage-backed securities as a % o f adjustable-rate
assets 73.1% 95.5%
Residential mortgage loans as a % of adjustable -rate assets - 4.5%
Loans collateralizing secured debt as a % of ad justable-rate
assets 26.9% -
Annualized yield on average earning assets during t he period 5.96% 7.02%
Annualized cost of funds on average repurchase agre ements balance
during the period 4.64% 5.08%
Annualized interest rate spread during the period 1.32% 1.94%
Weighted average yield on assets at period-end 5.93% 6.62%
Weighted average cost of funds at period-end 3.39% 5.02%

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The table below summarizes our RMBS investmenBeaember 31, 2008 and 2007:

For the period
November 21,

For the ye arended 2007 to
Decembe r31, December 31,
200 8 2007
(d ollars in thousands)
Amortized cost $1.1 22,135 $1,114,137
Unrealized gains 7,700 10,675
Unrealized losses (2 74,368) (522)
Fair value $ 8 55,467 $1,124,290

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the RMBS in autfglio were purchased at a net discount to thairvalue and our RMBS had a
weighted average amortized cost of 99.0 and 98spectively.
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The following tables summarize certain charactiesstf our RMBS portfolio at December 31, 2008 20@7. The estimated weighted
average months to maturity of the RMBS in the talblelow are based upon our prepayment expectatidrish are based on both proprietary
and subscription-based financial models. Our prey@t projections consider current and expectedigr@minterest rates, interest rate
volatility, steepness of the yield curve, the mage rate of the outstanding loan, time to resetl@dpread margin of the reset.

Estimated

Value (1) Percent of

(dollars in Total RMBS
thousands) Portfolio

cember 31, 2008

eighted Averages

Constant
Yield to Prepayment
Coupon Maturity Rate (2)

Non-Agency
Prime $125,640 14.69% 557% 8.32%  9.45%
Alt-A 487,465  56.98% 6.07% 6.28% 11.93%
Subprime - - -- -- -

Agency 242,362  28.33% 6.69% 6.00% 23.79%

Total RMBS $855,467  100.00% 6.12% 6.55% 14.00%

(1) All assets listed in this table are carriethair fair value.
(2) Represents the estimated percentage of printigbwill be prepaid over the next 12 months ldase historical principal paydowns.

De cember 31, 2007
w eighted Averages
Estimated
Value (1) Percent of Constant
(dollars in  Total RMBS Yield to Prepayment
thousands) Portfolio C oupon Maturity Rate (2)
Non-Agency
Prime $1,124,290 100.00% 6.32% 6.87% 10.13%
Alt-A -- -- -- - -
Subprime - - -- -- -
Agency -- - -- - -
Total RMBS $1,124,290 100.00% 6.32% 6.87% 10.13%

(1) All assets listed in this table are carriethair fair value.
(2) Represents the estimated percentage of printigbwill be prepaid over the next 12 months ldase historical principal paydowns.

The table below summarizes the credit ratings ofRMMBS investments at December 31, 2008 and 2007:

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007
AAA 97.28% 100.00%
AA 0.40% -
A 0.04% -
BBB 0.02% -
BB 0.03% -
B 0.01% -
Not rated 2.22% --
Total 100.00% 100.00%
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Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortemtistéated contractual maturities, as they are afteby the contractual lives of the
underlying mortgages, periodic payments of prinigipad prepayments of principal. The stated cotuwdinal maturity of the mortgage
loans underlying our portfolio of RMBS ranges uBfbyears, but the expected maturity is subjechtinge based on the prepayments of the
underlying loans. As of December 31, 2008 and 266¥ average final contractual maturity of the RMB®tfolio was 30 and 29 years,

respectively.

The constant prepayment rate, or CPR, attempteettiqh the percentage of principal that will beggaiel over the next 12 months based on
historical principal paydowns. As interest rategyithe rate of refinancings typically declinesjolitwe expect may result in lower rates of
prepayment and, as a result, a lower portfolio GBéhversely, as interest rates fall, the rate fifi@acings typically increases, which we
expect may result in higher rates of prepayment asé result, a higher portfolio CPR.

After the reset date, interest rates on our hyadjdistable rate RMBS securities adjust annuallgtas spreads over various LIBOR and
Treasury indices. These interest rates are sutgeetps that limit the amount the applicable irgerate can increase during any year, known
as periodic cap, and through the maturity of thaliagble security, known as a lifetime cap. Theghétd average periodic cap for the RMBS
portfolio is an increase of 1.46% and the weiglateerage maximum increases for the RMBS portfolibli9%.

The following table summarizes our RMBS accordimgheir estimated weighted average life classificet as of December 31, 2008 and

2007:

Dec

Less than one year $
Greater than one year and less than five years
Greater than or equal to five years

Total $

Mortgage Loans Held for Investment Portfolio Charaderistics

ember 31, December 31,
2008 2007

dollars in thousands)

-~ $ 45,868
768,163 1,078,422
87,304 -

855,467 $1,124,290

The following tables present certain charactessticour whole mortgage loan portfolio as of Decentil, 2007. We did not hold whole

mortgage loans as of December 31, 2008.

Original loan balance

Unpaid principal balance

Weighted average coupon rate on loans
Weighted average original term (years)
Weighted average remaining term (years)

Remaining Balance

Geographic Distribution (dollars in
Top 5 States thousands)

California $36,593

New Jersey $14,368

New York $12,061

lllinois $11,330

Virginia $10,517

Total $84,869

December 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)
$164,436
$161,489
6.33%
29.9
29.5

% of Loan

Portfolio Loan Count

22.66% 52
8.90% 25
7.47% 18
7.02% 15
6.51% 20

52.56%
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Occupancy Status Remaining

Balance
(dollars % of  Loan Loan Purpose % of
in Loan Loan
thousands) Portfolio Count Portfolio
Owner occupied  $148,685 92.07% 236 Purchase 70.96%
Second home $10,401 6.44% 17 Cash out refinance 14.76%
Investor $2,403 1.49% 5 Rate and term 14.28%
refinance
Total $161,489 100.00% 258 Total 100.00%
% of
Loan % of ARM
Documentation Type Portfolio ARM Loan Type Loans
Full/alternative 86.43% Traditional ARM loans -
Stated income/no ratio 13.57% Hybrid ARM loans 100.00%
Total 100.00% Total 100.00%
Unpaid Principal Balance Dollars FICO Score % of
in Loan
Thousands Portfolio
$417,000 or less $3,177 740 and above 59.26%
$417,001 to $650,000 $84,386 700 to 739 25.10%
$650,001 to $1,000,000  $58,613 660 to 699 11.87%
$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 $15,313 620 to 659 3.13%
$2,000,001 to $3,000,000 - Below 620 0.64%
Over $3,000,001 - Total 100.00%
Total $161,489
Weighted Average FICO Score 744
Dollars % of
Original Loan to Value in Loan
Ratio Thousands Property Type Portfolio
80.01% and above $16,990 Single-family detached 61.29%
70.01% to 80.00% $104,248 Planned urban 29.28%
development-detached
60.01% to 70.00% $21,553 Condominium 5.80%
60.00% or less $18,698 Other residential 3.63%
Total $161,489 Total 100.00%
Weighted Average Original  74.59%
Loan to Value Ratio
% of ARM
Periodic Cap on Hybrid ARM Loans Loans
3.00% or less 100.00%

3.01% to 4.00%
4.01% to 5.00%

Total



We purchase our whole mortgage loans on a serviet@ned basis. As a result, we do not servicel@auys, or receive any servicing income.

Securitized Debt Portfolio Characteristics

The following tables present certain characteissbitour loans collateralizing debt portfolio addEcember 31, 2008. We did not hold loans

collateralizing debt as of December 31, 2007.

D ecember 31, 2008
(dollars in
thousands)
Original loan balance $598,403
Unpaid principal balance $578,996
Weighted average coupon rate on loans 5.95%
Weighted average original term (years) 29
Weighted average remaining term (years) 28
Remaining Balance
Geographic Distribution (dollars in % of Loan
Top 5 States thousands) Po rtfolio Loan Count
California $190,004 32.82% 254
New Jersey $38,576 6.66% 57
Florida $34,208 5.91% 46
lllinois $34,027 5.88% 45
New York $26,643 4.60% 42
Total $323,458 55.87% 444
Occupancy Status Remaining
Balance
(dollars % of  Loan Loan Purpose % of
in Loan Loan
thousands) Portfolio Count Portfolio
Owner occupied  $521,212 90.02% 740 Purchase 62.96%
Second home $47,784 8.25% 65 Cash out refinance 14.95%
Investor $10,000 1.73% 17 Rate and term 22.09%
refinance
Total $578,996 100.00% 822 Total 100.00%
% of ARM
ARM Loan Type Loans
Traditional ARM loans -
Hybrid ARM loans 100.00%
Total 100.00%
Unpaid Principal Balance Dollars FICO Score % of
in Loan
Thousands Portfolio
$417,000 or less $5,486 740 and above 69.82%
$417,001 to $650,000 $225,927 700 to 739 18.33%
$650,001 to $1,000,000 $237,625 660 to 699 9.28%
$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 $104,359 620 to 659 1.74%
$2,000,001 to $3,000,000 $5,599 Below 620 0.83%
Over $3,000,001 - Total 100.00%

Total $578,996
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Dollars % of

Original Loan to Value in Loan

Ratio Thousands Property Type Portfolio
80.01% and above $65,320 Single-family detached 59.60%
70.01% to 80.00% $321,150 Planned urban 31.72%

development-detached

60.01% to 70.00% $89,542 Condominium 6.60%
60.00% or less $102,984 Other residential 2.08%
Total $578,996 Total 100.00%

Weighted Average Original  72.51%
Loan to Value Ratio

% of ARM
Periodic Cap on Hybrid ARM Loans Loans
3.00% or less 100.00%
3.01% to 4.00% -
4.01% to 5.00% -
Total 100.00%

We purchase our whole mortgage loans on a servieiiagned basis. As a result, we do not servicel@amys, or receive any servicing income.
Results of Operations for the Year Ended DecembeP@08 and the Period Ended December 31, 2007
We commenced operations on November 21, 2007 hamdfore do not have any comparable results for periods.

Net Loss Summary

Our net loss for the year ended December 31, 2@333419.8 million, or $1.90 per share. Our net fosshe period commencing November
21, 2007 and ending December 31, 2007 was $2.®m)ilbr $0.08 per average share, respectively.tdble below presents the net loss
summary for the year ended December 31, 2008 anpeahiod commencing November 21, 2007 and endirggimber 31, 2007:
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Net Loss Summary

(dollars in thousands, except for p er share data)
For the
Period
November
Fo r the Year 21, 2007
Ended through
D ecember 31, December
2008 31, 2007
Interest income $ 105,259 $ 3,492
Interest expense 60,544 415
Net interest income 44,715 3,077

Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate

swaps 4,156 (4,156)
Realized losses on sales of investments (144,304) -
Realized losses on terminations of
interest rate swaps (10,337) -
Net investment expense (105,770) (1,079)
Expenses
Management fee 8,428 1,217
General and administrative expenses 5,599 605
Total expenses 14,027 1,822
Loss before income taxes (119,797) (2,901)
Income tax 1 5
Net loss ( $ 119,809) ($ 2,906)
Net loss per share - basic and diluted ( $ 190) ($ 0.08)

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding - basic and diluted 63,155,878 37,401,737

Comprehensive (loss) income:
Net loss ( $ 119,809) ($ 2,906)

Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Unrealized (loss) gain on

available-for-sale securities (421,125) 10,153
Reclassification adjustment for realized
losses included in income 144,304 -
Other comprehensive (loss) income (276,821) 10,153
Comprehensive (loss) income ( $ 396,630) $ 7,247

Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

We had average earning assets of $1.7 billion &9@.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2808 the period November 21, 2007 to
December 31, 2007, respectively. Our interest irearas $105.3 million and $3.5 million for the yeaded December 31, 2008 and the

period November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007 easgely. The yield on our portfolio was 5.96% ah@2% for the year ended December
31, 2008 and the period November 21, 2007 to Deeedib, 2007, respectively.

Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had average borrowed funds of $1.3 billion a2d0$6 million and total interest expense of $60ilion and $415,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2008 and the period November 21, g)0&cember 31, 2007, respectively. Our averageafdands was 4.64% and 5.08%
for the year ended December 31, 2008 and the pBide@mber 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, respégtive

The table below shows our average borrowed fundsamarage cost of funds as compared to averagenonéi and average six-month
LIBOR for the year ended December 31, 2008 angéhnimd ended December 31, 20
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Average Cost of Funds (Ratios for the quarterdid82and the period November 21, 2007 to Decembe2@®17 have been annualized, dol
in thousands)

Avera ge
Average Cost of Average
One-Month  Funds Cost of
LIBOR Relat ive  Funds
Relative to Relative to
Average Average Average Average to Average Avera ge Average
Borrowed Interest Cost of One-Month Six-Month Six-Month One-M onth  Six-Month
Funds Expense Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBO R LIBOR
For the Year Ended December
31, 2008 $1,304,873 $60,544 4.64% 2.68% 3.06% (0.38%) 1.96 % 1.58%
For the quarter ended
December 31, 2008 $1,105,239 $10,954 3.96% 2.23% 2.94% (0.71%) 1.73 % 1.02%
For the quarter ended
September 30, 2008 $1,339,531 $15,543 4.64% 2.62% 3.19% (0.57%) 2.02 % 1.45%
For the quarter ended June
30, 2008 $1,449,567 $20,025 5.53% 2.59% 2.93% (0.34%) 2.94 % 2.60%
For the quarter ended
March 31, 2008 $1,325,156 $14,022 4.23% 3.31% 3.18% 0.13% 0.92 % 1.05%
For the Period November
21, 2007 to December 31,
2007 $ 270,584 $ 415 5.08% 4.98% 4.84% 0.14% 0.10 % 0.24%

Net Interest Income

Our net interest income, which equals interestimedess interest expense, totaled $44.7 million&hd million for the year ended Decem
31, 2008 and the period November 21, 2007 to Deeeidb, 2007, respectively. Our net interest spredui;h equals the yield on our aver:
assets for the period less the average cost okffordhe period, was 1.32% and 1.94% for the geded December 31, 2008 and the period
November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, respegti

The table below shows our average assets heldljritdgest income, yield on average interest egraissets, average balance of repurchase
agreements, interest expense, average cost of, foatdmterest income, and net interest rate spiaathe year ended December 31, 2008 and
the period November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007.

Net Interest Income (Ratios for quarters in 2008 tne period November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2@@@ been annualized, dollars
thousands)

Yield
on

Average Interest Average Average Net

Earning Earned Interes t Average Cost Net Interest

Assets on Earning Debt Interest of Interest Rate

Held Assets Assets Balance Expense Funds Income Spread
For the Year Ended
December 31,2008  $1,711,705 $102,093 5.96% $1,304,873 $60,544 4.64% $44,715 1.32%
For the Quarter ended
December 31, 2008  $1,621,205 $23,254 5.74% $1,105,239 $10,954 3.96% $12,702 1.78%
For the Quarter ended
September 30, 2008 $1,751,748 $23,419 5.35% $1,339,531 $15,543 4.64% $7,915 0.71%
For the Quarter ended
June 30, 2008 $1,917,969 $29,630 6.18% $1,449,567 $20,025 5.53% $9,926 0.65%
For the Quarter ended
March 31, 2008 $1,555,896 $25,790 6.63% $1,325,156 $14,022 4.23% $14,172 2.40%
For the Period
November 21, 2007 to
December 31,
2007 $399,736 $3,492 7.02% $270,584 $415 5.08% $3,077 1.94%

Management Fee and General and Administrative Expeses

We paid FIDAC a base management fee of $8.4 mibiod $1.2 million for the year ended December 8D82and the period November 21,
2007 to December 31, 2007, respectively.
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General and administrative (or G&A) expenses wéré Hillion and $605 thousand for the year endedeler 31, 2008 and the period
November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, respegti

Total expenses as a percentage of average totabassre 0.85% and 1.55% for the year ended DeaeBih@008 and the period November
21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, respectively.

Currently, FIDAC has waived its right to requiretagpay our pro rata portion of rent, telephonéitiess, office furniture, equipment,
machinery and other office, internal and overhegukases of FIDAC and its affiliates required for operations.

The table below shows our total management feeG# expenses as compared to average total assg@vanage equity for the year ended
December 31, 2008 and the period November 21, g)0&cember 31, 2007.

Management Fee and G&A Expenses and Operating Bedeatios (Ratios for the quarters in 2008 ang#m®d November 31, 2007 to
December 31, 2007 have been annualized, dolldr®irsands)

Total Total
Total Management Fee Management Fee
Management and G&A and G&A
Fee and G&A Expenses/Average Expenses/Average
Expenses Total Assets Equity
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008  $14,027 0.85% 3.50%
For the Quarter ended December 31,
2008 $3,918 1.10% 4.78%
For the Quarter ended September 30,
2008 $1,934 0.46% 2.46%
For the Quarter ended June 30, 2008 $3,380 0.70% 3.35%
For the Quarter ended March 31, 2008 $4,792 1.10% 4.00%
For the Period November 21, 2007 to
December 31, 2007 $1,822 1.55% 3.05%

Net Loss and Return on Average Equity

Our net loss was $119.8 million and $2.9 million tiee year ended December 31, 2008 and for theg&tovember 21, 2007 to December
31, 2007, respectively. The table below shows etiinterest income, loss on sale of assets andrtation of interest rate swaps, unrealized
gains (loss) on interest rate swaps, total expeimsasme tax, each as a percentage of averagey/egni the return on average equity for the
year ended December 31, 2008 and the period Nowe2ih@007 to December 31, 2007, respectiy

Components of Return on Average Equity (RatiogHerquarters in 2008 and the period November 27 20 December 31, 2007 have been
annualized)

Unrealized
Net Loss o n Sale of Gain/(Loss) on
Interest  Asseta nd Interest Interest Rate Total In come Return on
Income/Average Rate Sw aps/Average Swaps/Average Expenses/Average Tax /Average  Average
Equity Equ ity Equity Equity E quity Equity
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2008 11.17% (38.6 4%) 1.04% (3.50%) - (29.93%)
For the Quarter ended
December 31, 2008 15.50% - - (4.78%) -- 10.72%
For the Quarter ended
September 30, 2008 10.07% (157.2 8%) 12.81% (2.46%) () .02%) (136.88%)
For the Quarter ended
June 30, 2008 9.84% 1.7 5% 25.36% (3.35%) - 33.60%
For the Quarter ended
March 31, 2008 11.83% (27.4 0%) (26.29%) (4.00%) - (45.86%)
For the Period
November 21, 2007 to
December 31, 2007 5.16% - (6.97%) (3.05%) o .01%) (4.87%)
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requeats, including ongoing commitments to repay ardwings, fund and maintain RMBS,
mortgage loans and other assets, pay dividendsthed general business needs. Our principal sowfoespital and funds for additional
investments primarily include earnings from ouréstments, borrowings under securitizations, re@setagreements and other financing
facilities, and proceeds from equity offerings. @pect these sources of financing will be suffitimnmeet our short-term liquidity needs.

We expect to continue to borrow funds in the fofmepurchase agreements as well as other typasasfding. The terms of the repurchase
transaction borrowings under our master repurchgssements generally conform to the terms in thiedstrd master repurchase agreement a:
published by the Securities Industry and Finaridiatkets Association, or SIFMA, as to repayment,girarequirements and the segregation
of all securities we have initially sold under tiepurchase transaction. In addition, each lendgacajly requires that we include supplemental
terms and conditions to the standard master repaechgreement. Typical supplemental terms and tionslinclude changes to the margin
maintenance requirements, required haircuts, anthpee price maintenance requirements, requirenteattsll controversies related to the
repurchase agreement be litigated in a particul@diction and cross default provisions. Thesevigions will differ for each of our lenders

and will not be determined until we engage in a#jgerepurchase transaction.

For our short-term (one year or less) and lterga liquidity, which include investing and compice with collateralization requirements un
our repurchase agreements (if the pledged colladeaeases in value or in the event of margirsaakated by prepayments of the pledged
collateral), we also rely on the cash flow froméastments, primarily monthly principal and inteneayments to be received on our RMBS
whole mortgage loans, cash flow from the sale ofisges as well as any primary securities offesiagithorized by our board of directors.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe osetzswill be sufficient to enable us to
meet anticipated short-term (one year or less)digurequirements such as to fund our investmetiviies, pay fees under our management
agreement, fund our distributions to stockholdeids pay general corporate expenses. However, andealithe value of our collateral or an
increase in prepayment rates substantially abovexquectations could cause a temporary liquidityrsall due to the timing of the necessary
margin calls on the financing arrangements anadeal receipt of the cash related to principaldeayns. If our cash resources are at any
time insufficient to satisfy our liquidity requireants, we may have to sell debt or additional eqgatsurities in a common stock offering. If
required, the sale of RMBS or whole mortgage lagtn@rices lower than their carrying value wouldutes losses and reduced income.

Our ability to meet our longerm (greater than one year) liquidity and capitaburce requirements will be subject to obtaimidditional deb
financing and equity capital. Subject to our mainitey our qualification as a REIT, we expect to asaumber of sources to finance our
investments, including repurchase agreements, wasehfacilities, securitization, commercial papgat term financing CDOs. Such financ
will depend on market conditions for capital raises for the investment of any proceeds. If weusr@ble to renew, replace or expand our
sources of financing on substantially similar terinmay have an adverse effect on our businessesudts of operations. Upon liquidation,
holders of our debt securities and shares of pedestock and lenders with respect to other bomgwiwill receive a distribution of our
available assets prior to the holders of our comstook.

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&&fy5 million and $6.0 million at December 31, 2@0& 2007, respectively.

Our operating activities provided net cash of agpnately $30.7 million and used cash of approxirya$d..5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008 and the period November 21, g)0&cember 31, 2007, respectively.

Our investing activities provided net cash of $dilion and $795.6 million for the year ended Det®m31, 2008 and the period November
21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, respectively, pilyner the purchases of investments and the $1&iilllon securitization which was
accounted for as a sale.

Our financing activities as of December 31, 2008sisted of net proceeds from our October 2008 skryrofferings in which we raised
approximately $299.6 million, repurchase agreemerstsvell as the debt obligations of a $619.7 onllsecuritization which was accounted
for as a financing. We currently have establishecbmmitted repurchase agreements for RMBS withal®iterparties, including Annaly. As
of December 31, 2008, we had $562.1 million outditagnunder our repurchase agreement with Annalyghvbonstitutes approximately 53%
of our total financing. Our repurchase agreemett vinnaly has weighted average borrowing rates48% and weighted average remaining
maturities of 2 days. This agreement is collateealiby our RMBS which had an estimated fair vaiu®680.8 million at December 31, 2008.
The interest rates of these repurchase agreenrengeaerally indexed to the one-month LIBOR rate maprice accordingly.
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At December 31, 2008, the repurchase agreemenBM&S had the following remaining maturities:

December 31, 2008
(dollars i n
thousands )
Within 30 days $562, 119

30 to 59 days

60 to 89 days

90 to 119 days

Greater than or equal to 120 days

Total $562, 119

We are not required to maintain any specific debquity ratio as we believe the appropriate legyerf@r the particular assets we are
financing depends on the credit quality and riskhoke assets. At December 31, 2008 and 2007otaldebt was approximately $1.1 billion
and $270.6 million, which represented a debt-toitgqatio of approximately 2.5:1 and 0.5:1, respesy.

Stockholders' Equity

Our charter provides that we may issue up to 5800@D shares of stock, consisting of up to 500@@Mshares of common stock having a
par value of $0.01 per share and up to 50,000,08fes of preferred stock having a par value of $0€) share.

We consummated a public offering and private ofigiof our common stock on October 29, 2008. Inglafferings we raised proceeds
before the underwriter's discount but before offgrexpenses of approximately $301.0 million.

Management Agreement and Related Party Transactions
Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managengee¢ment with FIDAC, pursuant to which FIDAC isidatl to receive a base
management fee and, in certain circumstancespartation fee and reimbursement of certain expeasatescribed in the management
agreement. Such fees and expenses do not haveafixkdeterminable payments. The base managemeistdagable quarterly in arrears in
an amount equal to 1.50% per annum, calculatedeylgrof our stockholders' equity (as definedhia thanagement agreement). FIDAC uses
the proceeds from its management fee in part tacpaypensation to its officers and employees whtwitlosstanding that certain of them also
are our officers, receive no cash compensatiortitjréom us. The base management fee will be redubut not below zero, by our
proportionate share of any CDO base managemenEf®#sC receives in connection with the CDOs in whige invest, based on the
percentage of equity we hold in such CDOs.

Financing Arrangements with Annaly

In March 2008, we entered into a RMBS repurchaseeagent with Annaly. This agreement contains cuatgmepresentations, warranties
and covenants contained in such agreements. Ascérber 31, 2008, we had $562.1 million outstandimder the agreement with a
weighted average borrowing rate of 1.43%.

Restricted Stock Grants

We granted 1,301,000 shares of restricted stockitdvanager's employees and members of our boaditesitors during the year ended
December 31, 2008. During the year ended Decenth&2@®8, 140,900 shares of restricted stock wealaadded to FIDAC's employees and
our board members vested and 17,880 shares wéegddror cancelled. At December 31, 2008 thereapproximately 1.2 million unvested
shares of restricted stock issued to employee$@AE. For the year ended December 31, 2008, congtemsexpense less general and
administrative costs associated with the amortimatif the fair value of the restricted stock todia®d..7 million.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual gdions at December 31, 2008.

One to
Within One  Three
Year Years

$ 562,119 $ --
65,561 112,745

Repurchase agreements
Securitized debt (1)
Interest expense on

repurchase agreements (2) 22 -
Interest expense on

securitized debt 26,469

Total $ 654,171 $ 155,439

42,694

(1) Securitized debt is non-recourse.

Greater
Three to Than or
Five Equal to
Years Five Years Total

(dollars in thousands)

$ - $ - $562119

85,955 246,535 510,796
- - 22

31,965 92,125 193,253

$ 117,920 $ 338,660 $1,266,190

(2) Interest rates are variable and based on iratféect as of December 31, 2008.

The following table summarizes our contractual gdions at December 31, 2007.

One
Within One  Thr
Contractual Obligations Year Ye

$270,584

Repurchase agreements
Interest expense on
repurchase agreements(1) 1,206

Total $271,790

(1) Interest is based on rates in effect as of Béaz 31, 2007.

(dollars in thousands)

to
ee
ars

Greater
Than or
Three to Equal to
Five Years Five Years Total

$270,584

-- - 1,206

$271,790

The repurchase agreements for our repurchasetifscijenerally do not include substantive provisiother than those contained in the
standard master repurchase agreement as publightbd Becurities Industry and Financial Marketsosgation.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsoldi&tatities or financial partnerships, such as iestibften referred to as structured finance
or special purpose entities, which would have kestablished for the purpose of facilitating offdrade sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furthvee,have not guaranteed any obligations of uncothat@d entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any sediities. As such, we are not materially exposeainy market, credit, liquidity or

financing risk that could arise if we had engagedtch relationships.



Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetwdsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxatdeme, determined without regard to
the deduction for dividends paid and excluding aet/capital gains. We intend to pay regular quirgiwidends to our stockholders. Before
we pay any dividend, whether for U.S. federal inediax purposes or otherwise, which would only kid pat of available cash to the extent
permitted under our financing facilities, we musstfmeet any operating requirements and schedldbtservice on our financing facilities
and other debt payable.

Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities areeéntst rate sensitive in nature. As a result, istawges and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chamgé@nterest rates do not necessarily correlati inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. Our financial statements are prepared iardaace with GAAP and our distributions will be el@ined by our board of directors
consistent with our obligation to distribute to stockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable imemn an annual basis in order to maintain
our REIT qualification; in each case, our actidtend balance sheet are measured with referemistéoical cost and/or fair market value
without considering inflation.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

The primary components of our market risk are eeldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, rmarket value risk and real estate me
risk. While we do not seek to avoid risk completele believe the risk can be quantified from hist@rexperience and we seek to actively
manage that risk, to earn sufficient compensatigngtify taking those risks and to maintain cadiaels consistent with the risks we
undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments and face more credit risk on assetswn which are rated below "AAA". The
credit risk related to these investments pertairthe ability and willingness of the borrowers &ypwhich is assessed before credit is granted
or renewed and periodically reviewed throughoutitia or security term. We believe that residuahlaredit quality is primarily determined
by the borrowers' credit profiles and loan chanasties. Our Manager uses a comprehensive credéweprocess. Our Manager's analysis of
loans includes borrower profiles, as well as vatueand appraisal data. Our Manager uses compgagdatitors such as liquid assets, low
loan to value ratios and job stability in evalugtlnans. Our Manager's resources include a prepyigiortfolio management system, as well
as third party software systems. Our Manager eslia third party due diligence firm to perform adépendent underwriting review to insure
compliance with existing guidelines. Our Managdests loans for review predicated on risk-basetda such as loan-to-value, borrower's
credit score(s) and loan size. Our Manager alssooutes underwriting services to review higher liglns, either due to borrower credit
profiles or collateral valuation issues. In additio statistical sampling techniques, our Manageates adverse credit and valuation samples,
which we individually review. Our Manager rejeatsuhs that fail to conform to our standards. Our &ggm will accept only those loans wh
meet our underwriting criteria. Once we own a laaur, Manager's surveillance process includes omggairalysis through our proprietary d
warehouse and servicer files. Additionally, the ##gency RMBS and other ABS which we acquire for partfolio are reviewed by our
Manager to ensure that they satisfy our risk basiéeria. Our Manager's review of non-Agency RMBfl ather ABS includes utilizing its
proprietary portfolio management system. Our Marnageview of non-Agency RMBS and other ABS areclasn quantitative and

qualitative analysis of the risk-adjusted return;on-Agency RMBS and other ABS present.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many éast including governmental monetary and tax pesicdomestic and international economic
and political considerations and other factors Ipelyour control. We are subject to interest ratie insconnection with our investments and
related debt obligations, which are generally repase agreements, warehouse facilities, secuiitizatommercial paper and term financing
CDOs. Our repurchase agreements and warehousiéidacitay be of limited duration that are periotliceefinanced at current market rates.
We intend to mitigate this risk through utilizatiohderivative contracts, primarily interest rateap agreements.
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Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Income

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofedihces between the income from our investmerdanborrowing costs. Most of our
warehouse facilities and repurchase agreementsderéimancing based on a floating rate of intecedtulated on a fixed spread over LIBOR.
The fixed spread varies depending on the type dédying asset which collateralizes the financiigcordingly, the portion of our portfolio
which consists of floating interest rate assetsldlmatch-funded utilizing our expected sourceshairt-term financing, while our fixed
interest rate assets will not be mafahded. During periods of rising interest rates, blorrowing costs associated with our investmesntd tc
increase while the income earned on our fixed @sierate investments may remain substantially umgdd This will result in a narrowing of
the net interest spread between the related amsatsorrowings and may even result in losses. Egrtturing this portion of the interest rate
and credit cycles, defaults could increase andtrasaredit losses to us, which could adversefeefour liquidity and operating results. Such
delinquencies or defaults could also have an adwfect on the spread between interest-earnirejsaasd interest-bearing liabilities.
Hedging techniques are partly based on assumels lef/prepayments of our fixed-rate and hybrid atjblerate mortgage loans and RME

If prepayments are slower or faster than assurhedife of the mortgage loans and RMBS will be lengr shorter, which would reduce the
effectiveness of any hedging strategies we mayndemay cause losses on such transactions. Heslgatggies involving the use of
derivative securities are highly complex and maydpice volatile returns.

Interest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate risk is thea@fhanges in interest rates will have on thevalue of the assets we acquire. We face the
risk that the fair value of our assets will increas decrease at different rates than that ofiabilities, including our hedging instruments. !
primarily assess our interest rate risk by estingathe duration of our assets and the duratioruofiabilities. Duration essentially measures
the market price volatility of financial instrumerds interest rates change. We generally calcdiatgion using various financial models and
empirical data. Different models and methodologis produce different duration numbers for the saewarities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signifigamhen interest rates change beyond 100
basis points from current levels. Therefore, thiatility in the fair value of our assets could iease significantly when interest rates change
beyond 100 basis points. In addition, other facimisact the fair value of our interest raensitive investments and hedging instruments,
as the shape of the yield curve, market expecta#isrio future interest rate changes and otheranedkditions. Accordingly, in the event of
changes in actual interest rates, the change ifathealue of our assets would likely differ fraimat shown above and such difference might
be material and adverse to our stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thidedging mortgages are typically
subject to periodic and lifetime interest rate capd floors, which limit the amount by which thewety's interest yield may change during
any given period. However, our borrowing costs parg to our financing agreements will not be sutesimilar restrictions. Therefore, in a
period of increasing interest rates, interest catds on our borrowings could increase withouttitmn by caps, while the interest-rate yields
on our adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBS aveiiiectively be limited. This problem will be mafied to the extent we acquire
adjustable-rate RMBS that are not based on mortgapéch are fully indexed. In addition, the mortgagr the underlying mortgages in an
RMBS may be subject to periodic payment caps @silt in some portion of the interest being defitared added to the principal
outstanding. This could result in our receipt afsleash income on our adjustable-rate mortgage$/&S than we need in order to pay the
interest cost on our related borrowings. Thesefaatould lower our net interest income or causetdoss during periods of rising interest
rates, which would harm our financial conditionslcdlows and results of operations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Risk

We intend to fund a substantial portion of our asijons of hybrid adjustableate mortgages and RMBS with borrowings that, aftereffec

of hedging, have interest rates based on indicésepricing terms similar to, but of somewhat sbomaturities than, the interest rate indices
and repricing terms of the mortgages and RMBS. TTiwesanticipate that in most cases the interestinalices and repricing terms of our
mortgage assets and our funding sources will naddxatical, thereby creating an interest rate mismaetween assets and liabilities.
Therefore, our cost of funds would likely rise all inore quickly than would our earnings rate oseds. During periods of changing interest
rates, such interest rate mismatches could nedjatimpact our financial condition, cash flows amsults of operations. To mitigate interest
rate mismatches, we may utilize the hedging stresedjscussed above. Our analysis of risks is basaxir Manager's experience, estimates,
models and assumptions. These analyses rely onlsnetlich utilize estimates of fair value and intwreate sensitivity. Actual economic
conditions or implementation of investment decisiby our management may produce results that difgmificantly from the estimates and
assumptions used in our models and the projecsedtseshown in this Form 10-K.
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Our profitability and the value of our portfolion@luding interest rate swaps) may be adverselyetteduring any period as a result of
changing interest rates. The following table gfatithe potential changes in net interest incqmetfolio value should interest rates go uj
down 25, 50, and 75 basis points, assuming thd giglves of the rate shocks will be parallel toheather and the current yield curve. All
changes in income and value are measured as pageectianges from the projected net interest ina@mdeportfolio value at the base interest
rate scenario. The base interest rate scenarionassimterest rates at December 31, 2008 and vagatimates regarding prepayment and all
activities are made at each level of rate shocku#@aesults could differ significantly from thesstimates.

Projected Percentage Chang e Projected Percentage Change

Change in Interest Rate  in Net Interest Income in Portfolio Value

-75 Basis Points (2.10%) 0.70%

-50 Basis Points (1.47%) 0.36%

-25 Basis Points (0.84%) 0.03%

Base Interest Rate - -

+25 Basis Points 0.55% (0.62%)

+50 Basis Points 1.07% (0.94%)

+75 Basis Points 1.58% (1.25%)

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesestments, premiums paid on such investments aretiaetbagainst interest income. In
general, an increase in prepayment rates will acatd the amortization of purchase premiums, tlyerethucing the interest income earned on
the investments. Conversely, discounts on suchsinvents are accreted into interest income.

Extension Risk

Our Manager computes the projected weighted-avdifegef our investments based on assumptions dégguthe rate at which the borrowers
will prepay the underlying mortgages. In generdiew fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-rate mortgam$é or RMBS are acquired with
borrowings, we may, but are not required to, eimier an interest rate swap agreement or other hgdgstrument that effectively fixes our
borrowing costs for a period close to the anti@dadverage life of the fixed-rate portion of thiated assets. This strategy is designed to
protect us from rising interest rates because theotving costs are fixed for the duration of theefi-rate portion of the related assets.
However, if prepayment rates decrease in a risitgrést rate environment, the life of the fixederportion of the related assets could extend
beyond the term of the swap agreement or otherihgdigstrument. This could have a negative impacowor results from operations, as
borrowing costs would no longer be fixed after éimel of the hedging instrument while the income edon the hybrid adjustable-rate assets
would remain fixed. This situation may also causerharket value of our hybrid adjustable-rate astwetlecline, with little or no offsetting
gain from the related hedging transactions. Ineem# situations, we may be forced to sell assatsintain adequate liquidity, which could
cause us to incur losses.

Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind lsses excluded from earnings and reported
in other comprehensive income pursuant to SFASING, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt &uglity Securities. The estimated
fair value of these securities fluctuates primadilie to changes in interest rates and other fadB@serally, in a rising interest rate
environment, the estimated fair value of these esiwould be expected to decrease; converselg,decreasing interest rate environment,
the estimated fair value of these securities whel@xpected to increase. As market volatility inses or liquidity decreases, the fair value of
our investments may be adversely impacted. If veuaable to readily obtain independent pricingalidate our estimated fair value of
securities in the portfolio, the fair value gaindasses recorded in other comprehensive incomebaadversely affected.
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Real Estate Risk

We own assets secured by real property and mayreahproperty directly in the future. Residentiedjperty values are subject to volatility
and may be affected adversely by a number of fachocluding, but not limited to, national, regibaad local economic conditions (which
may be adversely affected by industry slowdownsathdr factors); local real estate conditions (saglan oversupply of housing); change
continued weakness in specific industry segmetsstcuction quality, age and design; demographdtofa; and retroactive changes to
building or similar codes. In addition, decreaseprioperty values reduce the value of the collhtard the potential proceeds available to a
borrower to repay our loans, which could also caissto suffer losses.

Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REfatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential mortgage
loans, RMBS, and other assets and related debistghe effects of major interest rate changesgéfeerally seek to manage our risk by:

0 monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the res##x and interest rate related to our RMBS andioancings;

o0 attempting to structure our financings agreementeve a range of different maturities, termspdizations and interest rate adjustment
periods;

o0 using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, @i caps, floors and forward sales to adjustrttexest rate sensitivity of our MBS and our
borrowings;

0 using securitization financing to lower averagst®f funds relative to short-term financing vééscfurther allowing us to receive the
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pedbtime in contrast to short term financing and unity dates of the investments included in
the securitization; and

o actively managing, on an aggregate basis, tieegst rate indices, interest rate adjustment pgriad gross reset margins of our MBS and
the interest rate indices and adjustment periodsinfinancings.

Our efforts to manage our assets and liabilitiescancerned with the timing and magnitude of thpgiceng of assets and liabilities. We
attempt to control risks associated with interagé movements. Methods for evaluating interestriskeinclude an analysis of our interest |
sensitivity "gap", which is the difference betwasterest-earning assets and interest-bearing iliglsilmaturing or repricing within a given
time period. A gap is considered positive whenahmount of interest-rate sensitive assets exceedstiount of interest-rate sensitive
liabilities. A gap is considered negative whendh®ount of interest-rate sensitive liabilities ex@e@terest-rate sensitive assets. During a
period of rising interest rates, a negative gapld/éend to adversely affect net interest incomeijevé positive gap would tend to result in an
increase in net interest income. During a periothliihg interest rates, a negative gap would tencesult in an increase in net interest
income, while a positive gap would tend to affeet imterest income adversely. Because differerasyqf assets and liabilities with the same
or similar maturities may react differently to clyas in overall market rates or conditions, chamgésterest rates may affect net interest
income positively or negatively even if an instibut were perfectly matched in each maturity catggor

The following table sets forth the estimated m&yui repricing of our interest-earning assets iaterest-bearing liabilities at December 31,
2008. The amounts of assets and liabilities shoitiminwa particular period were determined in acemak with the contractual terms of the
assets and liabilities, except adjustable-ratedpand securities are included in the period incvitheir interest rates are first scheduled to
adjust and not in the period in which they maturé does include the effect of the interest ratepgswa@he interest rate sensitivity of our as
and liabilities in the table could vary substamidfl based on actual prepayment experience.
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1Yearto3  Greatert han 3

Within 3 Mont hs  3-12 Months Years Year s Total
(dollars in thousands)
Rate sensitive assets $ 833, 175 $ 4,620 $ 467,724 $ 406,910 $1,712,429
Cash equivalents 27, 480 - - - 27,480

Total rate sensitive assets 860, 655 4,620 467,724 406,910 1,739,909

Rate sensitive liabilities,
with the effect
of swaps 562, 119 - - 510,796 1,072,915

Interest rate sensitivity gap $ 298, 536 $ 4,620 $ 467,724 (%1 03,886) $ 666,994

Cumulative rate sensitivity gap
$ 298, 536 $ 303,156 $ 770,880 $ 666,994

Cumulative interest rate sensitivity
gap as a percentage of total
rate-sensitive assets 17% 17% 44% 38%

Our analysis of risks is based on our manager'srexce, estimates, models and assumptions. Thebesas rely on models which utilize
estimates of fair value and interest rate sengjtiictual economic conditions or implementatiorirofestment decisions by our manager 1
produce results that differ significantly from tbstimates and assumptions used in our models angtdfected results shown in the above
tables and in this Form 10-K. These analyses comgitain forward-looking statements and are sulbpethe safe harbor statement set forth
under the heading, "Special Note Regarding Foriaimking Statements."

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our financial statements and the related notegtheg with the Report of Independent Registeredi®Alzcounting Firm thereon, are set
forth on pages F-1 through F-24 of this Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountémon Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifjor CEO and Chief Financial Officer, or CFO,iesved and evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of aseldsure controls and procedures (as defined ie RB&-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act) as of the end of the pecavered by this annual report. Based on thaeveand evaluation, the CEO and CFO
have concluded that our current disclosure conatntsprocedures, as designed and implemented gf®) effective in ensuring that
information regarding the Company and its subsielais made known to our management, includingGi® and CFO, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sand (2) were effective in providing reasonabkuemnce that information the Company
must disclose in its periodic reports under theufifes Exchange Act is recorded, processed, sumethand reported within the time peri
prescribed by the SEC's rules and forms.
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Management's Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting
Dated: February 27, 2009

Management of the Company is responsible for dstdbf and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting. Internal contr
over financial reporting is defined in Rules 13dfL&nder the Securities Exchange Act as a prodesgned by, or under the supervision of,
the Company's principal executive and principadficial officers and effected by the Company's Badidirectors, management and other
personnel to provide reasonable assurance regatwngliability of financial reporting and the pegation of financial statements for extel
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles and includes those policies aratedures that:

o pertain to the maintenance of records that isgeable detail accurately and fairly reflect ttasactions and dispositions of the assets «
Company;

o provide reasonable assurance that transactienmgeeorded as necessary to permit preparatiomandial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, andréipts and expenditures of the Company are beadg only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of ih@@ny; and

o provide reasonable assurance regarding preventittimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiosgwr disposition of the Company's as
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @etmisstatements. As a result, even systems
determined to be effective can provide only reabtmassurance regarding the preparation and pegsenbf financial statements. Moreover,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risks that comtmdy become inadequate because of change
in conditions or that the degree of compliance it policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Company's management assessed the effectivafitbesCompany's internal control over financgpaorting as of December 31, 2008. In
making this assessment, the Company's managenahttiteria set forth by the Committee of Spongpfrganizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integratedrework.

Based on management's assessment, the Companggamant believes that, as of December 31, 200& dhapany's internal control over
financial reporting was effective based on thogeda.

The Company's independent registered public aceyfitm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, has issued an sti¢ion report on the Company's
internal control over financial reporting. This cgpappears on page F-2 of this annual report omBA®-K.

Changes in Internal Controls

There have been no changes in our "internal coatret financial reporting” (as defined in rule 131&(f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred
during the year ended December 31, 2008 that haterially affected, or are reasonably likely to emally affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 9A(T). Controls and Procedures.
Not applicable

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by Item 10 as to our diveg is incorporated herein by reference to theystatement to be filed with the SEC
within 120 days after December 31, 2008.

The information regarding our executive officerquieed by Item 10 is incorporated by referencehtofiroxy statement to be filed with the
SEC within 120 days after December 31, 2008.

The information required by Item 10 as to our cdarpte with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchafsgieof 1934 is incorporated by
reference to the proxy statement to be filed with $EC within 120 days after December 31, 2008.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsEitlithin the meaning of Item 406(b) of Regulat®#. This Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics applies to our principal exaeutifficer, principal financial officer and prin@paccounting officer. This Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics is publicly availalear website at www.chimerareit.com. If we makbstantive amendments to this Cod:
Business Conduct and Ethics or grant any waivetuding any implicit waiver, we intend to disclob®se events on our website.

The information regarding certain matters pertajrtmour corporate governance required by Item &Q3), (d)(4) and (d)(5) of Regulation S-
K is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statgrnteebe filed with the SEC within 120 days aftesd@ember 31, 2008.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is incorporabesein by reference to the proxy statement tdled #ith the SEC within 120 days after
December 31, 2008.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

The information required by Item 12 is incorporakbesein by reference to the proxy statement tdled #ith the SEC within 120 days after
December 31, 2008.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 is incorporabesein by reference to the proxy statement tdled #ith the SEC within 120 days after
December 31, 2008.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is incorporabesiein by reference to the proxy statement taled With the SEC within 120 days after
December 31, 2008.

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

1. Financial Statements.

2. Schedules to Financial Statements.

All financial statement schedules have been omlitathuse they are either inapplicable or the infion required is provided in our
Financial Statements and Notes thereto, includéthim |1, Item 8, of this Annual Report on Form KO-
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3. Exhibits:

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description
Number

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of
Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11
on September 27, 2007 and incorporated he

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera In
as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's Registrat
No. 2 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-145525)
incorporated herein by reference)

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chim
(filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Re
Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 33
27, 2007 and incorporated herein by refer

10.1 Form of Management Agreement between Chim
and Fixed Income Discount Advisory Compan
the Company's Registration Statement on A
(File No. 333-145525) filed on September
herein by reference)

10.2 Form of Amendment No. 1 to the Management
Investment Corporation and Fixed Income D
(filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's R
Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 33
14, 2008 and incorporated herein by refer

10.3  Form of Amendment No. 2 to the Management
Investment Corporation and Fixed Income D
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's C
filed on October 20, 2008 and incorporate

10.4+ Form of Equity Incentive Plan (filed as E
Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1
333-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 a
reference)

10.5+ Form of Restricted Common Stock Award (fi
Company's Registration Statement on Amend
No. 333-145525) filed on September 27, 20
reference)

10.6+ Form of Stock Option Grant (filed as Exhi
Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1
333-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 a
reference)

10.7  Form of Master Securities Repurchase Agre
to the Company's Registration Statement o
S-11 (File No. 333-145525) filed on Novem
herein by reference)

10.8  Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as of
Credit Suisse First Boston Mortgage Capit
Corporation (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Form 8-K filed on January 24, 2008 and in
reference)

10.9 Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as of
Structured Products, Inc., Deutsche Bank
Investment Corp. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 t
Report on Form 8-K filed on February 4, 2
by reference)

10.10 Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 14, 20
Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2008,
Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., and
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's C
filed on March 19, 2008 and incorporated

10.11  Amendment No. 2, dated as of March 26, 20
Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2008,
Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., and
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's C
filed on March 26, 2008 and incorporated

23.3  Consent of Independent Registered Public

31.1  Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief
President of the Registrant, pursuant to
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Chiarlavestment Corporation
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatts of financial condition of Chimera Investm@atrporation and its subsidiary (the
"Company") as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, amdelated consolidated statements of operationsamgrehensive income (loss),
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the yealeel December 31, 2008 and the period from Nove@2be?007 (date operations
commenced) to December 31, 2007. We also haveealiie Company's internal control over financiglorting as of December 31, 2008,
based on criteria established in Internal Contrtmtegrated Framework issued by the CommitteepminSoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. The Company's managemensfponsible for these financial statements, for na@timg effective internal control
over financial reporting, and for its assessmerhefeffectiveness of internal control over finahceporting, included in the accompanying
Management's Annual Report On Internal Control Qhieancial Reporting at Iltem 9A. Our responsibilgyto express an opinion on these
financial statements and an opinion on the Compgantérnal control over financial reporting basedooir audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal cordvelr financial reporting was maintained in all exal respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideaee supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estismatade by management, and evaluating the ovemahdial statement presentation. Our
audit of internal control over financial reportimgluded obtaining an understanding of internaltadrover financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testiigeraluating the design and operating effectivenéiternal control based on the assessed
risk. Our audits also included performing such ofhhecedures as we considered necessary in thentstances. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supemvidi the company's principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons penfiarg similar functions, and effected by the compsulspard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag the reliability of financial reporting antkt preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles. A company's internaitod over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheartaintenance of records that, in reasonablel detaurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets afah@any; (2) provide reasonable assurance thatactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in adaace with generally accepted accounting princj@ad that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordanceawithorizations of management and directors of tmepany; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely deteafamauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositiothef company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoarover financial reporting to future periods ateject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotigat the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Chimera
Investment Corporation and its subsidiary as ofdbdmer 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of tipeirations and their cash flows for the
year ended December 31, 2008 and the period fromeimber 21, 2007 (date operations commenced) torbleee31, 2007, in conformit
with accounting principles generally accepted m thited States of America. Also, in our opinidme Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financegorting as of December 31, 2008, based on ttexiarestablished in Internal Control --
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/sl DELO TTE & TOUCHE LLP

New Yor k, New Yor k

February 27, 2009
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities, at fair val
Mortgage loans held for investment, net of allowanc
losses of $0 and $81
thousand, respectively
Securitized loans held for investment, net of allow
loan losses of
$1.6 million and $0, respectively
Reverse repurchase agreements
Accrued interest receivable
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements
Securitized debt
Payable for investments purchased
Accrued interest payable
Dividends payable
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Interest rate swaps, at fair value

Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 14)

Stockholders' Equity:

Common stock: par value $.01 per share; 500,000,0
authorized, 177,198,212 and 37,705,563 shares is

outstanding

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income

Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31, December 31,
2008 2007

$ 27,480 $ 6,026

- 1,350
ue 855,467 1,124,290
e for loan
- 162,371
ance for
583,346 -
- 265,000
9,951 6,036
1,257 563

$1,477,501 $ 1,565,636

$ 562,119 $ 270,584

488,743 -
- 748,920
2,465 415
7,040 943
2,679 1,729
- 4,156
1,063,046 1,026,747
00 shares
sued and
1,760 377
831,966 532,208
(266,668) 10,153
(152,603) (3,849)
414,455 538,889

$1,477,501 $ 1,565,636




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

For the Period
November 21,
For the Year 2007 to
Ended December December 31,
31, 2008 2007

Interest income $ 105259 $ 3,492
Interest expense 60,544 415
Net interest income 44,715 3,077
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate swaps 4,156 (4,156)
Realized losses on sales of investments (144,304) -
Realized losses on terminations of interest rate sw aps (10,337) --
Net investment expense (105,770) (2,079)
Expenses
Management fee 8,428 1,217
General and administrative expenses 5,599 605
Total expenses 14,027 1,822
Loss before income taxes (119,797) (2,901)
Income tax expense 12 5
Net loss ($ 119,809) ($ 2,906)
Net loss per share - basic and diluted ($ 190) ($ 0.08)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - bas ic and
diluted 63,155,878 37,401,737

Comprehensive (loss) income:

Net loss ($ 119,809) ($ 2,906)
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Unrealized (loss) gain on available-for-sale secu rities (421,125) 10,153
Reclassification adjustment for realized losses i ncluded in
income 144,304 -
Other comprehensive (loss) income ($ 276,821) $ 10,153
Comprehensive (loss) income ($ 396,630) $ 7,247

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(dollars in thousands)

Common  Additio
Stock Par  Paid-i
Value  Capita
Balance, November 21, 2007
(date operations commenced) $ - $
Net loss -
Other comprehensive income -
Net proceeds from common
stock offerings 377 5321
Net proceeds from direct
purchases -
Common dividends declared,
$0.025 per share -

Balance, December 31,2007 $ 377 $532,2

Net loss --
Other comprehensive loss -
Net proceeds from common

stock offerings 1,382 298,2
Net proceeds from direct

purchases --
Restricted stock grants 1 1,4

Common dividends declared,
$0.62 per share -

Balance, December 31,2008 $ 1,760 $831,9

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Accumulated
nal  Other
n Comprehensive Accumulated
| Income Deficit  Total

- % - $ - $ -
- ~  (2,906) (2,906)
-~ 10,153 -~ 10,153
97 - ~ 532574
11 - - 11

- - (943)  (943)

08 $ 10,153 ($ 3,849) $538,889

- -~ (119,809) (119,809)

— (276,821) -~ (276,821)
02 - -~ 299,584

97 - - 97

59 - —~ 1,460

-~ (28,945) (28,945)

66 ($266,668) ($152,603) $ 414,455




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provi
(used in) operating activities:
Amortization of investments
Unrealized (gains) losses on interest rate swaps
Realized loss on sale of investments
Realized loss on termination of interest rate swa
Allowance for loan losses
Restricted stock grants
Changes in operating assets
Increase in accrued interest receivable
Increase in other assets
Changes in operating liabilities
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and o

Increase in accrued interest payable
Net cash provided by (used in) operating

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Residential mortgage-backed securities portfolio
Purchases
Sales
Principal payments
Loans held for investment portfolio:
Purchases
Sales
Principal payments
Loans collateralizing debt
Purchases
Principal payments
Reverse repurchase agreements
Restricted cash

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Net proceeds from reverse repurchase agreements

Net payments on reverse repurchase agreements
Net proceeds from common stock offerings

Net proceeds from securitized debt borrowing
Net payments on securitized debt borrowing

Net proceeds from direct purchases of common sto

Net payments on termination of interest rate swa
Dividends paid

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid
Taxes paid

Non cash investing activities
Payable for securities purchased

Transfer from loans held for investment to secur
trust

Net change in unrealized (loss) gain on avail
securities

Non cash financing activities

(dollars in thousands)

For the
Period
For the Year November 21,
Ended December to December
31, 2008 31, 2007

($ 119,809) ($ 2,906)
ded by
294 (98)
(4,156) 4,156
144,304 -
ps (10,337) --
1,540 81
1,460 -
(5,613) (4,337)
(694) (563)
ther liabilities 950 1,729
2,050 415
activities 30,663 (1,523)
(1,483,416) (368,593)
567,455 -
174,449 1,788
(735,271) (162,465)
90,732 -
23,115 -
(1112) -
40,714 -
265,000 (265,000)
1,350 (1,350)
(1,055,983) (795,620)
85,585,116 270,584
(85,293,581) -
299,584 532,574
526,716 -
(37,973) -
ck 97 11
ps (10,337) --
(22,848) -
1,046,774 803,169
21,454 6,026
6,026 -
$ 27480 $ 6,026
$ 58493 $ -
$ 33 % --
$ - $ 748,920
itization
$ 735271 $ --
able for sale

($ 276,821) $ 10,153




Dividends declared, not yet paid $ 7040 $ 943

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the
Year Ended December 31, 2008 and the Period EndedeBember 31, 2007

1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Chimera Investment Corporation, or the Company, evganized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Companymenced operations on
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial pubffering. The Company has elected to be taxed eeal estate investment trust or R
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ameiAdddng as the Company qualifies as a REIT, tam@any will generally not be subje
to U.S. federal or state corporate taxes on itsrimeto the extent that the Company distributesaxt|90% of its taxable net income to its
stockholders. During July 2008, the Company for@éidnera Securities Holding, LLC, a wholly owned sigiary. Chimera Securities
Holding, LLC is a qualified REIT subsidiary usedhold residential mortgage-backed securities ("RNMB& certain of the Company's
securitizations. Annaly Capital Management, IncAonaly, currently owns 8.6% of the Company's canmshares. The Company is
managed by Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company;IDAC, an investment advisor registered with 8aseurities and Exchange
Commission. FIDAC is a wholly-owned subsidiary airely.

A summary of the Company's significant accountintigies follows:
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include tuants of the Company and its wholly owned subsjdiChimera Securities Holding,
LLC. All intercompany balances and transactionseha@en eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banknaméy market funds.

Restricted Cash
Restricted cash includes cash held by countergaatiecollateral for repurchase agreements anesiteate swaps.

Reverse Repurchase Agreements

The Company may invest its daily available caslatads via reverse repurchase agreements to praddigonal yield on its assets. These
investments will typically be recorded as shorirténvestments, will mature daily, and are refefeds reverse repurchase agreements in the
consolidated statement of financial condition. Regeepurchase agreements are recorded at coatendllateralized by residential
mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS.

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company invests in RMBS representing interiestbligations backed by pools of mortgage loart @arries those securities at fair ve
estimated using a pricing model. Management revibedair values generated by this model to deteenthat prices are reflective of the
current market. Management performs a validatiotheffair value calculated by this model by theipg model by comparing its results to
independent prices provided by dealers in the g@zsiand/or third party pricing services. If dealer independent pricing services are un
to provide a price for an asset, or if the pricevimed by them is deemed unreliable by FIDAC, tHienasset will be valued at its fair value as
determined in good faith by FIDAC. In the currerdnket, it may be difficult or impossible to obtdhird party pricing on certain of the
investments the Company purchases. In additioidatatg third party pricing for the Company's intreents may be more subjective as fe
participants may be willing to provide this servioghe Company. Moreover, the current market iseniitiquid than in recent history for
some of the investments the Company purchaseguitllinvestments typically experience greater pvickatility as a ready market does not
exist. As volatility increases or liquidity decreasthe Company may have greater difficulty finagdts investments which may negatively
impact its earnings and the execution of its inwestt strategy. See Note 5.
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Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SA0. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments gbband Equity Securities, requires
the Company to classify its investment securitesither trading investments, available-for-salegiments or held-to-maturity investments.
The Company intends to hold its RMBS as availabtestle and as such may sell any of its RMBS atsgbdtis overall management of its
portfolio. All assets classified as available-fatesare reported at estimated fair value, with aliwed gains and losses included in other
comprehensive income.

Management evaluates securities for other-than-deamp impairment at least on a quarterly basis,rance frequently when economic or
market concerns warrant such evaluation. Considerat given to (1) the length of time and the ext® which the fair value has been lower
than carrying value, (2) the financial conditiordarear-term prospects of the issuer, (3) creditityuend cash flow performance of the
security, and (4) the intent and ability of the Qxamy to retain its investment in the issuer foedqu of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair value. Unrealized &xssn investment securities that are consideregt ¢lan temporary, as measured by the
amount of decline in fair value attributable to@thhan-temporary factors, are recognized in incamethe cost basis of the investment
securities is adjusted.

RMBS transactions are recorded on the trade da@iZ®d gains and losses from RMBS transactiondetemined based on the specific
identification method and recorded as a gain (loss3ale of available for sale securities in thesodidated statement of operations. Accretion
of discounts or amortization of premiums on avaéabor-sale securities and mortgage loans is coetpusing the effective interest yield
method and is included as a component of intenestine in the consolidated statement of operations.

The current situation in the mortgage sector arctthrrent weakness in the broader credit marketlsl @versely affect one or more of the
Company's lenders and could cause one or moreddmpany's lenders to be unwilling or unable twvjgle additional financing. This cou
potentially increase the Company's financing castsreduce liquidity. If one or more major markattigipants fail, it could negatively
impact the marketability of all fixed income seti@s, including government mortgage securitiessToiuld negatively impact the value of
securities in the Company's portfolio, thus redgdta net book value. Furthermore, if many of th@r@any's lenders are unwilling or unable
to provide additional financing, the Company cokdforced to sell its investment securities atrenpportune time when prices are depres

Loans Held for Investment and Securitized LoangH@l Investment The Company's securitized andaauwdtized residential mortgage
loans are comprised of fixed-rate and variahle-loans. The Company purchases pools of regdlembrigage loans through a select grou
originators. Mortgage loans are designated asfbeldvestment, recorded on trade date, and arégedaat their principal balance outstandi
plus any premiums or discounts which are amortaregccreted over the estimated life of the loass lElowances for loan losses.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has established an allowance for lossek at a level that management believes is aelsed on an evaluation of known
and inherent risks related to the Company's loatigdim. The estimate is based on a variety ofdaxincluding, but not limited to, current
economic conditions, industry loss experience,itegglity trends, loan portfolio composition, dejuency trends, national and local
economic trends, national unemployment data, chaimgeousing appreciation and whether specific gauitjic areas where the Company has
significant loan concentrations are experiencingease economic conditions and events such as hdisesters that may affect the local
economy or property values. Upon purchase of tludspaf loans, the Company obtains written repreg@nts and warranties from the sellers
that the Company could be reimbursed for the vafitbe loan if the loan fails to meet the agreedruprigination standards. While the
Company has little history of its own to establishn trends, delinquency trends of the originatord the current market conditions aided in
determining the allowance for loan losses. The Camgalso performed due diligence procedures omglgaof loans that met its criteria
during the purchase process. The Company has draatenallocated provision for possible loan logstgnated as a percentage of the
remaining principal on the loans. Management'sredt is based on historical experience of simitettemwritten pools.

When it is probable that contractually due spedifitounts are deemed uncollectible, the accoumtrisidered impaired. Where impairment is
indicated, a valuation write-off is measured baggon the excess of the recorded investment ovanghéair value of the collateral, reduced
by selling costs. Any deficiency between the caigyamount of an asset and the net sales pricgpo$sessed collateral is charged to the
allowance for loan losses. There were no lossesfggaly allocated to loans as of December 31,8266d 2007.
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Securitized Debt

The Company has securitized debt to finance agrodf its residential mortgage loan portfolio. ™ezuritizations are collateralized by
residential adjustable or fixed rate mortgage |dhas have been placed in a trust and bear intaresprincipal payments to the debt holders.
The Company's securitizations which are accourdeds financings under SFAS 140 are recorded asset called "Securitized loans" and
the corresponding debt as "Securitized debt" irctiresolidated statement of financial condition.

Fair Value Disclosure

SFAS No. 107, Disclosure About Fair Value of Finahtnstruments, requires disclosure of the faiueeaof financial instruments for which it
is practicable to estimate that value. The estithta#& value of mortgage backed securities and@sterate swaps is equal to their carrying
value presented in the consolidated statemeniganridial condition. Securitized loans are carriedraortized cost. The estimated fair valu
cash and cash equivalents, accrued interest rédejraverse repurchase agreements, repurchasagres with maturities shorter than one
year, payables for mortge-backed securities purchased, dividends payabteuats payable, and accrued interest payable, aigner
approximates cost as of December 31, 2008 and @0@7o the short term nature of these financidtumsents.

Interest Income

Interest income on RMBS and loans held for investngrecognized over the life of the investmenhgshe effective interest method as
described by SFAS No. 91, Accounting for Nonreflriddees and Costs Associated with Originating ayuring Loans and Initial Direct
Costs of Leases, for securities of high credit ipaihd Emerging Issues Task Force No. 99-20, Reitiog of Interest Income and
Impairment on Purchased and Retained Beneficiatésts in Securitized Financial Assets, as amehgdd&SP Emerging Issues Task Force
No. 9¢-20-1, for all other securities. Income recognitisisuspended for loans when, in the opinion ofagement, a full recovery of income
and principal becomes doubtful. Income recognitsoresumed when the loan becomes contractuallgtiand performance is demonstrated
to be resumed.

Derivative Financial Instruments/Hedging Activithd Company hedges interest rate risk through teetderivative financial instruments,
currently interest rate swaps. The Company accdontbese instruments as free-standing derivatitesordingly, they are carried at fair
value with realized and unrealized gains and lossssgnized in earnings.

The Company accounts for derivative financial imstents in accordance with SFAS No. 133, Accounfiim@erivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, as amended and interpreted. SR®. 133 requires an entity to recognize all dgiaes as either assets or liabilities in
consolidated statement of financial condition amcheasure those instruments at fair value. Addifignthe fair value adjustments affect
either other comprehensive income in stockholdsygity until the hedged item is recognized in eagaior net income depending on whether
the derivative instrument qualifies as a hedgeafmounting purposes and, if so, the nature of éugimg activity.

Credit Risk

The Company retains the risk of potential credisks on all of the residential mortgage loansldsim its portfolio. Additionally, some of its
investments in RMBS may be qualifying interestsgorposes of maintaining its exemption from the@8dt if it retains a 100% ownership
interest in the underlying loans. If the Companycpases all classes of these securitizationssitt@credit exposure on the underlying lo
It intends to mitigate the risk of potential creldisses through its diligence in the asset selegiiocess.

Mortgage Loan Sales and Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactionafich it sells financial assets such as RMBS,tgaye loans and other assets. Upon a
transfer, the Company sometimes retains or acqsé@e®r or subordinated interests in the relatedtasin addition, the Company generally
does not acquire servicing rights for mortgage soapurchases. Gains and losses on such transseiie recognized using the guidance in
SFAS No. 140," Accounting for Transfers and Sengodf Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liiabs-a Replacement of FASB
Statement No. 125" or SFAS No. 140, which is based financial components approach that focuseotrol. Under this approach, after a
transfer of financial assets, an entity recognthedinancial and servicing assets it controls tedliabilities it has incurred, derecognizes
financial assets when control has been surrendanetiderecognizes liabilities when extinguishede §hin or loss on sale is determined by
allocating the carrying value of the underlying tgage loans between securities or loans sold anohtlrests retained based on their fair
values.
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The Company determines the gain or loss on saleoofgage loans by allocating the carrying valutghefunderlying mortgage loans between
securities or loans sold and the interests retdiaséd on their fair values. The gain or loss ¢misahe difference between the cash proceeds
from the sale and the amount allocated to the g&ior loans sold.

From time to time, the Company may securitize Idaeld for investment. These transactions are recbindl accordance with SFAS 140
Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finanéiakets and Extinguishment of Liabilities (SFAS 140d are accounted for as either a
"sale" and the loans held for investment are remdr@am the consolidated statements of financialdition or as a "financing” and are
classified as "Securitized loans held for investthen the Company's consolidated statements ohéi condition, depending upon the
structure of the securitization transaction.

Income Taxes

The Company qualifies to be taxed as a REIT, aacktbre it generally will not be subject to corgerederal or state income tax to the ex
that qualifying distributions are made to stocklestdand the REIT requirements including certairtagscome, distribution and stock
ownership tests are met. If the Company failedualify as a REIT and did not qualify for certaiatsitory relief provisions, the Company
would be subject to federal, state and local inctemes and may be precluded from qualifying as 8fR& the subsequent four taxable ye
following the year in which the REIT qualificatiovas lost.

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeSFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxesjahhrequires the recognition of
deferred income taxes for differences between #sstof assets and liabilities for financial statatrand income tax purposes. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities represent the future taxsequences for those differences, which will eitheetaxable or deductible when the assets and
liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred saaee also recognized for operating losses thaiaitable to offset future taxable income.
Valuation allowances are established when necessaeguce deferred tax assets to the amount esghémtbe realized. In July 2006, the
FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, AccountiogUncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretatidfrASB Statement No. 109 ("FIN
48"). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertgiin income taxes recognized in a company's firestatements and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attributé¢hf@financial statement recognition and measuré¢wfes tax position taken or expected to
be taken in an income tax return. FIN 48 also mtesiguidance on de-recognition, classificatiorgriggt and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 wasatiife for the Company upon inception and its effgat not material.

Net Loss Per Shal

The Company calculates basic net loss per shadéviling net loss for the period by weighted-averapares of its common stock
outstanding for that period. Diluted net loss geare takes into account the effect of dilutivenmstents, such as stock options but uses the
average share price for the period in determintmegriumber of incremental shares that are to bedatdihe weighted average number of
shares outstanding. The Company had no potentldllfive securities outstanding during the peripdssented.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiaocordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 128&tounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, which establishes accounting andbgisie requirements using fair value based methbdscounting for stock-based
compensation plans. Compensation expense relatgants of stock and stock options is recognizeat thve vesting period of such grants
based on the estimated fair value on the grant date

Stock compensation awards granted to the emplayfdedDAC are accounted for in accordance with EBG-18, Accounting for Equity
Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Emploj@eacquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Gds and Services, which requires the
Company to measure the fair value of the equitirimsent using the stock prices and other measureassamptions as of the earlier of ei
the date at which a performance commitment by thmterparty is reached or the date at which theteoparty's performance is complete.
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Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in aonfty with generally accepted accounting principbe (GAAP) requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities and disctosticontingent assets and liabilities at
date of the financial statements and the reponteolats of revenues and expenses during the regqoéiriod. Actual results could differ frc
those estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Stashsi&oard, or FASB, issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Vallgasurements, or SFAS 157.
SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framky@rmeasuring fair value and requires enhancedakures about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 requires companies to siistie fair value of their financial instrumentsading to a fair value hierarchy (i.e.,
levels 1, 2, and 3, as defined). Additionally, c@mies are required to provide enhanced disclogg@ding instruments in the level 3
category (which require significant management judgt), including a reconciliation of the beginnengd ending balances separately for ¢
major category of assets and liabilities. SFAS Wag adopted by the Company on January 1, 2008. SBA&$lid not significantly impact the
manner in which management estimates fair valuiit bequired additional disclosures, which arduded in Note 5.

Subsequently, on October 10, 2008, FASB issued FE&IH Position (FSP) 153; Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asa#éten the
Market for That Asset Is Not Active ("FSP 157-3t) response to the deterioration of the credit reexkThis FSP provides guidance
clarifying how SFAS 157 should be applied when irajusecurities in markets that are not active. ghielance provides an illustrative
example that applies the objectives and framewb&F®AS 157, utilizing management's internal castwvfand discount rate assumptions
when relevant observable data do not exist. Ih&urtlarifies how observable market information amatket quotes should be considered
when measuring fair value in an inactive markete#ffirms the notion of fair value as an exit pras of the measurement date and that fair
value analysis is a transactional process and gdhmilbe broadly applied to a group of assets. B5P3 is effective upon issuance including
prior periods for which financial statements haweé lmeen issued. The Company does not believe tpleimentation of FSP 157-3 will have a
material effect on the fair value of its assetth@sCompany intends to continue the methodologiesl in previous quarters to value assets as
defined under the original SFAS 157.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, HdieValue Option for Financial Assets and Finahtiabilities, or SFAS 159. SFAS
159 permits entities to choose to measure manydiahinstruments and certain other items at falug. Unrealized gains and losses on items
for which the fair value option has been electellilvd recognized in earnings at each subsequeanttieg date. SFAS 159 became effective
for the Company January 1, 2008. The Company dictlect the fair value option for any existing dlig financial instruments.

In February 2008, FASB issued FASB Staff Positian SFAS 140-3 Accounting for Transfers of Finanéiasets and Repurchase Financing
Transactions, ("FSP SFAS 140-3"). FSP SFAS 34ldresses whether transactions where assetsapactfrom a particular counterparty .
financed through a repurchase agreement with time saunterparty can be considered and accountexs feeparate transactions, or are
required to be considered "linked" transactionsmag be considered derivatives under SFAS 133 Amtirog for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities. FSP SFAS 140-3 requires purelsamnd subsequent financing through repurchaseragrégs be considered linked
transactions unless all of the following conditi@pply: (1) the initial purchase and the use ofirepase agreements to finance the purchase
are not contractually contingent upon each ott®rthe repurchase financing entered into betweemdénties provides full recourse to the
transferee and the repurchase price is fixedh@J¥ihancial assets are readily obtainable in theket; and (4) the financial instrument and
repurchase agreement are not coterminous. Thiss&Fective for the Company on January 1, 200%® Tlompany is currently evaluating
FSP SFAS 140-3 but does not expect its applicatidrave a significant impact on its financial rejpag.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disgtes about Derivative Instruments and Hedgingvities, or SFAS 161, an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 133. SFAS 161 ateto improve the transparency of financial reipgrby providing additional
information about how derivative and hedging atitiéi affect an entity's financial position, finaalgberformance and cash flows. This
statement changes the disclosure requirementsforadive instruments and hedging activities byuisgg enhanced disclosure about (1) |
and why an entity uses derivative instrumentsh@®y derivative instruments and related hedged iterasccounted for SFAS Statement 133
and its related interpretations, and (3) how deirfreainstruments and related hedged items affeeraity's financial position, financial
performance, and cash flows. To meet these obgs;tSFAS 161 requires qualitative disclosures abbjeictives and strategies for using
derivatives, quantitative disclosures about falugamounts and of gains and losses on derivatjveeaents. This disclosure framework is
intended to better convey the purpose of derivaisein terms of the risks that an entity is integdo manage. SFAS 161 is effective for the
Company on January 1, 2009. The Company expedtadiaption of SFAS 161 will increase footnote discire to comply with the disclost
requirements for financial statements issued d#ieuary 1, 2009.
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In June 2008, the FASB proposed amending SFASAdunting for Transfers and Servicing of Finanéiakets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities and FIN 46(R), Consolidation of Varighinterest Entities. The proposed amendments walitdnate the Qualified Special
Purpose Entity (QSPE) in SFAS 140, and modify thresolidation model in FIN 46(R). QSPEs are utilizatiensively by many financial
firms in securitizations for off-balance sheet fioang for "sale accounting” treatment in the trensff financial assets. Currently, QSPEs do
not have to be consolidated on the issuing firmarfcial statements. Should the proposed chang8BA® 140 become final, enterprises
involved with QSPEs will no longer be exempt fropplring FIN 46(R), the FASB Interpretation on colidation; thus, previously
unconsolidated entities may have to be consoliddtkd revisions will also eliminate the provisiongaragraph 9(b) of SFAS 140 that
allowed entities to "look-through" to the rightstzd#neficial interest holders when analyzing contfolrther, the revisions will address the
derecognition of assets and amend the criteriadimt derecognition; and require that the benefiniarests received by a transferor, in
connection with a sale of an entire financial agsein entity that is not consolidated by the tfams, be considered proceeds of the sale and
initially measured at fair value. The Company doeshave any QSPEs at December 31, 2008 or Dece3tb2007.

On December 11, 2008 the Financial Accounting Steth@oard (FASB) issued a staff position entitlQPFSFAS 140-4 and Fin 46(R)-8
(FSP). The FSP amends both FASB Statement 140,ufstiog for Transfers and Servicing of Financial étissand Extinguishments of
Liabilities and FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revisedcember 2003), Consolidation of Variable Intefesities, to require public entities to
provide additional disclosures about the transfdinancial assets and involvement with variablerast entities (including qualifying special
purpose entities or QSPE), respectively. The inbéthe disclosure requirements is to provide gnettinsparency to financial statement u
about an enterprises continuing involvement witlaficial assets after they have been transferradécuritization or asset-backed financing
arrangement (SFAS 140); and to demonstrate howmtnise's involvement with a variable interegitgr{VIE) affects its financial positiot
financial performance and cash flows (FIN 46(Ry)eTCompany sponsored two securitizations durin@20®e was a transfer of financial
assets accounted for as a financing. The otheaviiansfer of assets which was accounted for ateausilizing a QSPE. Additionally, the
Company is involved in asset-backed financing ayeaments in the form of repurchase agreements aedserepurchase agreements;
therefore it is directly affected by the FSP. Timpllementation of this FSP will require additionaldiosures regarding the Company's assets
and liabilities. This FSP is effective for the fireporting period ending after December 15, 2608juired disclosures under FSP SFAS 440-
and FIN 46(R)-8 have been incorporated into thigrFd0-K.

In January, 2009, the FASB issued Emerging Issask Force (EITF) Staff Position No EITF 99-20-0Amendments to the Impairment
Guidance of EITF Issue 99-20". EITF 99-20-01 wasiézl in an effort to provide a more consistentrdatetion on whether an other-than-
temporary impairment has occurred for certain berafinterests in securitized financial assets.

Other-than-temporary impairment has occurred if¢heas been an adverse change in future estimasédfliow and its impact reflected in
current earnings. The determination cannot be oveecby management judgment of the probability diecting all cash flows previously
projected. For debt securities that are not withenscope of EITF 99-20-01, Statement 115 contitme@pply. The objective of other-than-
temporary impairment analysis is to determine wéeihis probable that the holder will realize sopwetion of the unrealized loss on an
impaired security. Factors to consider when makimg@ther-than-temporary impairment decision inclinf@rmation about past events,
current conditions, reasonable and supportablefsts, remaining payment terms, financial conditibthe issuer, expected defaults, valu
underlying collateral, industry analysis, sectadit rating, credit enhancement, and financial @dmof guarantor. This EITF became
effective for the Company for December 31, 2008.

2. Mortgage-Backed Securities
The following table represents the Company's alullfor sale RMBS portfolio as of December 31, 2668 December 31, 2007 at fair va
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(dollars in thousands)

December 31, Decemb er 31,
2008 20 07
Mortgage-backed securities, $ 1,122,135 $1,11 4,137
gross
Gross unrealized gain 7,700 1 0,675
Gross unrealized loss (274,368) (522)
Fair value $ 855,467 $1,12 4,290

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Coynpampleted sales of RMBS with a carrying valu&e®4.9 million which resulted in
net realized losses of approximately $137.4 millibhe Company did not sell any RMBS during the gmfrom November 21, 2007 to
December 31, 2007.

The following table presents the gross unrealipadds, and estimated fair value of the Company'B&bY length of time that such
securities have been in a continuous unrealizeddosition at December 31, 2008 and December 317.20

Unrealized Loss Position For:
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(dollars in thousands)
December 31, 2008 $ 855,467 ($274,368) $ - $ - $855467 ($274,368)
December 31, 2007 $1,124,290 ($522) $ - $ - $1,124,290 ($522)

The decline in value of these securities is saliely to market conditions and not the quality ofdhsets. The investments are not considered
other-than-temporarily impaired because the Comgamnsently has the ability and intent to hold thedstments to maturity or for a period of
time sufficient for a forecasted market price rezrgwup to or beyond the cost of the investments.

Actual maturities of mortgage-backed securitiesgamerally shorter than stated contractual madgrithctual maturities of the Company's
mortgage-backed securities are affected by theactoil lives of the underlying mortgages, periqgehigments of principal and prepayments
of principal.

The following table summarizes the Company's magegbacked securities at December 31, 2008 accotditigeir weighted-average life
classifications:

(dollars in thousands)
Weighted
Weighted Average Life Fair Value  Amort ized Cost Average Coupon
Less than one year $ - $ - -
Greater than one year and
less than five years 768,163 975,835 6.05%
Greater than five years 87,304 146,300 6.56%
Total $855,467 $1,122,135 6.12%

The following table summarizes the Company's mgegbacked securities at December 31, 2007 accotditiggir estimated weighted-
average life classifications:

(dollars in thousands)
Weighted

Weighted Average Life Fair Value  Amorti zed Cost  Average Coupon
Less than one year $ 45,868 $ 46,102 6.31%
Greater than one year and
less than five years 1,078,422 1,068,035 6.32%
Greater than five years - - -
Total $1,124,290 $ 1,114,137 6.32%

F-13



The weighted-average lives of the mortgage-backedrgéies as of December 31, 2008 and Decembe2(8)/, in the tables above are based
on data provided through dealer quotes, assumingtant prepayment rates to the balloon or resetfdatach security. The prepayment
model considers current yield, forward yield, steegs of the curve, current mortgage rates, mortggtgeof the outstanding loan, loan age,
margin and volatility.

3. Loans Held for Investment

The Company did not have any loans held for investras of December 31, 2008. The following tabpgesents the Company's residential
mortgage loans classified as held for investmetestember 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, whicbaar&d at their principal balance
outstanding less an allowance for loan losses:

December 3 1, 2008 December 31, 2007
(do llars in thousands)
Mortgage loans, at principal balance $ - $162,452
outstanding
Less: allowance for loan losses - (81)
Mortgage loans held for investment $ - $162,371

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Coynpampleted sales of residential mortgage loank witarrying value of $97.7 million
which resulted in net realized losses of approxatye$6.9 million. The Company did not sell any desitial mortgage loans during the period
ended December 31, 2007.

The following table summarizes the changes in tleevance for loan losses for the mortgage loanfpbotduring the year ended December
31, 2008 and the period ended December 31, 2007:

For the
Period
For the Ye ar November
Ended 21, 2007 to
December 3 1, December
2008 31, 2007
(dollars in thousands)
Balance, beginning of period $81 $-
Provision for loan losses (81 ) 81
Charge-offs - -
Balance, end of period $ - $81

On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates thguadg of its allowance for loan losses. Based anahalysis, the Company recorded a
provision for loan losses of $80,745 for the peeodled December 31, 2007, representing 5 basisspafithe Company's mortgage loan
portfolio. At December 31, 2007, there were no 860 days or more past due and all loans were iagcinterest. The Company did not hi
any loans held for investment as of December 32820

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The following table represents the Company's sezed residential mortgage loans classified as faléthvestment at December 31, 2008.
The Company did not hold any securitized loansetdbnber 31, 2007. At December 31, 2008, approxly;n&e7% of the Company's
securitized loans are adjustable rate mortgagesland 44.3% are fixed rate mortgage loans. Alhefddjustable rate loans held for
investment are hybrid ARMs. Hybrid ARMs are mortgaghat have interest rates that are fixed fonaiali period (typically three, five,

seven or ten years) and thereafter reset at regdavals subject to interest rate caps. The egtithfair value of the securitized loans held for
investment is $585.0 million at December 31, 200& loans held for investment are carried at theircipal balance outstanding less an
allowance for loan losses:
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December 31, December 31,

2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)
Securitized mortgage loans, at principal balance $584,967 $ --
Less: allowance for loan losses 1,621
Securitized mortgage loans held for investment $583,346 $ --

The following table summarizes the changes in tlesvance for loan losses for the securitized mayegkan portfolio during the year ended
December 31, 2008 and the period ended Decemb&087;

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007
(dollars in thousands)
Balance, beginning of period $ - --

Provision for loan losses 1,621
Charge-offs -

Balance, end of period $1,621 $--

On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates thguadg of its allowance for loan losses. The Compaongrded an allowance for loan los
of $1.6 million for the year ended December 31,8&08presenting 28 basis points of the principéhee of the Company's securitized
mortgage loan portfolio. At December 31, 2008, ¢heere no loans more than 60 days past due alahalt were accruing interest.

During the year ended December 31, 2008 the Compamypleted two securitizations of loans held fareistment in its residential mortgage
loan portfolio.

In the first transaction, the Company transferréti®%7 million of its residential mortgage loanschir investment to the PHHMC 2008-
CIM1 Trust in a securitization transaction. In ttrsnsaction, the Company sold $536.9 million ofAfated fixed and floating rate bonds to
third party investors and retained $46.3 millionA#A-rated mezzanine bonds and $36.5 million in@ulinated bonds which provide credit
support to the certificates issued to third parfidee certificates issued by the trust are coltdieed by loans held for investment that have
been transferred to the PHHMC 2008-CIM1 Trust. Toeenpany incurred approximately $1.3 million in iseae costs that were deducted
from the proceeds of the transaction and are baimgrtized over the life of the bonds. This transactvas accounted for as a financing
pursuant to SFAS 140, and the related loans helth¥estment were reclassified as securitized |deaid for investment on the consolidated
statements of financial condition.

In the second transaction, the Company transf&i&d.2 million of its residential mortgage loanddhfer investment to the PHHMC 2008-
CIM2 Trust in a securitization transaction. In ttrsnsaction, the Company initially retained athggties issued by the securitization trust
including approximately $142.4 million of AAA-ratditked and floating rate senior bonds and $8.8iamilin subordinated bonds and
classified them as mortgage-backed securities|adlaifor sale on its consolidated statement arfgial condition. There was no value
assigned to the residual interest. On August 2882the Company sold approximately $74.9 millioriref AAA-rated fixed and floating rate
bonds related to the July 25, 2008 securitizatiotinird-party investors and realized a loss of 8iillion. This transaction was accounted for
as a sale pursuant to SFAS 140 and the related lugld for investment were derecognized from thesolidated statements of financial
condition. The Company has no other continuingregts with the trust.

5. Fair Value Measurement

SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framky@rmeasuring fair value, establishes a threellgaluation hierarchy for disclosure of
fair value measurement and enhances disclosur@eetgnts for fair value measurements. The valudtierarchy is based upon the
transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asséability as of the measurement date. The thegels are defines as follows:

Level 1- inputs to the valuation methodology areted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets mfudlities in active markets.

Level 2- inputs to the valuation methodology in@wuglioted prices for similar assets and liabilitreactive markets, and inputs that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dilgor indirectly, for substantially the full terof the financial instrument.
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Level 3- inputs to the valuation methodology arehservable and significant to fair value.

Mortgage-backed securities and interest rate sawapsalued using a pricing model. The MBS pricingdel incorporates such factors as
coupons, prepayment speeds, spread to the Treasdrgwap curves, convexity, duration, periodic l#eccaps, and credit enhancement.
Interest rate swaps are modeled by incorporatinf factors as the Treasury curve, LIBOR rates,thadeceive rate on the interest rate
swaps. Management reviews the fair values detedviigehe pricing model and compares its resultdemer quotes received on each
investment to validate the reasonableness of thiatians indicated by the pricing models. The degletes incorporate common market
pricing methods, including a spread measuremethietd reasury curve or interest rate swap curveeasag underlying characteristics of the
particular security including coupon, periodic difiel caps, rate reset period, issuer, additionadlitrsupport and expected life of the security.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regteisy management to ensure the changes are ateopts markets and products
develop and the pricing for certain products becomere transparent, we continue to refine our velnanethodologies. The methods used
may produce a fair value calculation that may reirfaicative of net realizable value or reflectofduture fair values. Furthermore, while the
Company believes its valuation methods are appt®and consistent with other market participahtsuse of different methodologies, or
assumptions, to determine the fair value of ceffiaancial instruments could result in a differestimate of fair value at the reporting date.
The Company uses inputs that are current as ah#dasurement date, which may include periods of aetatislocation, during which price
transparency may be reduced.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company has classt8dRMBS as "Level 2".

The Company's financial assets and liabilitiesiedrat fair value on a recurring basis are valuddexember 31, 2008 as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in t housands)
Assets:
Mortgage-Backed $- $855,46 7 $-
Securities

The following is a summary of changes in balanaeshine items measured using Level 3 inputs:

Year Ended December 31, 2008

RMBS
(dollars in
thousands)
Assets:
Balance December 31, 2007 $
Total (losses) gains
Included in earnings -
Included in other comprehensive income ($ 3,920)
Purchase, issuances and settlements Transfers to RMBS:
Level 2 $ 5,167
Level 3 ($ 5,167)
Balance December 31, 2008 $
Changes in unrealized (losses) gains relating to as sets
still held at December 31, 2008 $

As fair value is not an entity specific measure sna market based approach which considers the\ailan asset or liability from the
perspective of a market participant, observabditprices and inputs can vary significantly frontipd to period. During times of market
dislocation, as has been experienced during trenteaonths, the observability of prices and inmatis be reduced for certain instruments. A
condition such as this can cause instruments tediassified from level 1 to level 2 to level 3 witae Company is unable to obtain third
party pricing verification. The Company had claigsifcertain securities that are subordinate piet&s nonagency portfolio initially as leve

3 assets. However, due to the subsequent avaiatiilmarket prices and quotes for these assetsaghets were transferred to level 2.
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6. Repurchase Agreements

Residential Mortgage Backed Securities

The Company had outstanding $562.1 million and $&7#tllion of RMBS repurchase agreements with widhaverage borrowing rates of
1.43% and 5.02% and weighted average remainingritiasuof 2 days and 22 days as of December 318 20@ December 31, 2007,
respectively. Investment securities pledged asitertl under these repurchase agreements hadmatest fair value of $680.8 million and
$271.7 million at December 31, 2008 and DecembeRB3Q7, respectively. The interest rates of thepenchase agreements are generally
indexed to the one-month LIBOR rate and repriceadingly.

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the repurchase mgrds all had the following remaining maturities:

December 31, De cember 31,
2008 2007
(dolla rs in thousands)

Within 30 days $562,119 $270,584
30 to 59 days - -

60 to 89 days -

90 to 119 days -

Greater than or equal to 120 days

Total $562,119 $270,584

At December 31, 2008 the Company had an amourgkabt approximately 29% of its equity with AnnaBapital Management, Inc., an
affiliate. At December 31, 2007 the Company did mmte an amount at risk of greater than 10% oéthety of the Company with any
counterparty.

Loans Held for Investment

The Company entered into two master repurchaseemgnets pursuant under which it financed mortgagedoOne agreement was a $500
million lending facility of which $200 million isman uncommitted basis. This agreement was dwerriate January 16, 2009. The second
agreement was a $350 million committed lendinglifgiciThis agreement was due to terminate Janu@r2@10. On July 29, 2008, the
Company terminated both lending facilities. On Dmber 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the Compahyadihave any amounts borrov
against these facilities.

Market Risk

Currently the mortgage sector is experiencing urgntented losses and there is weakness in the bnadyage market that has increased
volatility in market valuation of investments art tavailability of credit which may adversely affece or more of the Company's lenders
and could cause one or more of the Company's leriddye unwilling or unable to provide it with atidinal financing. This could potentially
increase the Company's financing costs and redmgaielity. If one or more major market participafdd, it could negatively impact the
marketability of all fixed income securities andsthould negatively impact the value of the se@siin the Company's portfolio, thus
reducing its net book value. Furthermore, if mahthe Company's lenders are unwilling or unablprwvide it with additional financing, the
Company could be forced to sell its investmen@nainopportune time when prices are depressed.
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7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company's securitized debt is collateed by residential mortgage loans. For finanaglarting purposes, the Company's
securitized debt is accounted for as a financimguymnt to SFAS 140, Accounting for Transfers andiSiag of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities. Thus, the residahthortgage loans held as collateral are recondéle assets of the Company as securitized
loans and the securitized debt is recorded adbiitjain the consolidated statement of financiahdition.

The following table presents the estimated prindippayment schedule of the securitized debt helshinkruptcy remote entities outstanding
at December 31, 2008.

Greater
Oneto Threet o Thanor
Within One  Three Five Equal to
Year Years Years Five Years Total
(dollars in th ousands)
Securitized debt  $ 65,561 $112,745 $85,9 55 $246,534 $ 510,795
Total $654,171 $155,439 $117,9 20 $338,659 $1,266,189

Maturities of the Company's securitized debt aggeddent upon cash flows received from the undagligans receivable. The estimate of
their repayment is based on scheduled principaingsays on the underlying loans receivable. Thigrest# will differ from actual amounts to
the extent prepayments and/or loan losses areierped.

The following table presents the carrying amourmt estimated fair value of the Company's securittelot at December 31, 2008.

Carrying Amoun t Estimated Fair
Value
Securitized debt $488,743 $510,796
Total $488,743 $510,796

As of December 31, 2008 the Company had no offizal@heet credit risk.

At December 31, 2008, securitized debt collateealilay residential mortgage loans had a principlaita of $488.7 million. The debt
matures between the years 2023 and 2038. At Deae3iib2008, the debt carried a weighted averageafdmancing equal to 5.55% of
which approximately 44% of the remaining principalance is a fixed rate at 5.65% and 66% of theaineimg principal balance is a variable
rate of 6.33%. At December 31, 2007, the Compamyrtwasecuritized debt.

8. Interest Rate Swaps

In connection with the Company's interest rate niglnagement strategy, the Company may hedge apaitits interest rate risk by entering
into derivative financial instrument contracts. ioglly such instruments are comprised of interatt swaps, which in effect modify the cash
flows on repurchase agreements. The use of intextesswaps creates exposure to credit risk rglatirpotential losses that could be
recognized if the counterparties to these instrusfail to perform their obligations under the aawts. In the event of a default by the
counterparty, the Company could have difficultyadbing its RMBS pledged as collateral for swapse Tompany's swaps are used to lotk-
the fixed rate related to a portion of its currentl anticipated future 30-day term repurchase awggats. The Company accounts for interest
rate swaps as freestanding derivatives with chaimgesr value recorded in earnings. During theryéiae Company terminated all of its
interest rate swaps for a net realized loss of3rillion. As of December 31, 2008, the Company hadnterest rate swaps outstanding. As
of December 31, 2007, the Company had $1.2 miltiamotional interest rate swaps which paid a firg® and received a floating rate
indexed to one month LIBOR.

The table below represents the Company's intesstsaps outstanding:
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Notional Amount Weighted Ave rage Weighted Average Net Estimated Fair

Pay Rate Receive Rate  Value/Carrying Value
(dol lars in thousands)
December 31,2008  $ - - - -
December 31, 2007  $1,235,000 4.04% 4.94% ($4,156)

9. Common Stock

The Company's charter provides that it may issut® 50,000,000 shares of stock, consisting ofoup00,000,000 shares of common stock
having a par value of $0.01 per share and up @0B0000 shares of preferred stock having a paevafi$0.01 per share.

On October 24, 2008 the Company announced theofatE0,000,000 shares of common stock in a puliferiog at $2.25 per share for gross
proceeds of approximately $247.5 million. Immediafellowing the sale of these shares, Annaly pasgd 11,681,415 shares at the same
price per share as the public offering, for necpetls of approximately $26.3 million. In additiom, October 28, 2008 the underwriters
exercised the option to purchase up to an additibd&00,000 shares of common stock to cover olnaénts for gross proceeds of
approximately $37.1 million. The Company's total peceeds from these offerings to be approxime#289.6 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Coyngleclared dividends to common shareholders tg&@R28.9 million or $0.62 per sha
10. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptaueto provide incentives to its independentaoes, employees of FIDAC and its
affiliates, to stimulate their efforts towards @empany's continued success, long-term growth aofitability and to attract, reward and
retain personnel and other service providers. fkberitive Plan authorizes the Compensation Comnufttiee board of directors to grant
awards, including incentive stock options, ripralified stock options, restricted shares andrayyes of incentive awards. The Incentive F
authorizes the granting of options or other awéodsan aggregate of the greater of 8.0% of thetant8ng shares of the Company's common
stock, or 14,175,857 shares, up to a ceiling dd@®,000 shares.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company has grantdated stock awards in the amount of 1,301,0@0eshto FIDAC's employees and the
Company's independent directors. Of these shad@s900 shares vested and 17,880 shares were éorf@mitcancelled during the year ended
December 31, 2008. At December 31, 2008, the Coynpad outstanding 1,160,100 shares of unvestedatest common stock. The awards
to the independent directors vested on the dageaoit, and the awards to FIDAC's employees vestepyaover a period of 10 years.

A summary of the status of the Company's mested shares as of December 31, 2008, and chdageg the year ended December 31, 2!
is presented below:

Weighted Average

Non-vested Shares Grant Date Fair Value
Non-vested at January 1, 2008 - $ -
Granted 1,301 ,000 $17.72
Vested 140 ,900 $11.65
Forfeited 17 ,880 $10.15
Non-vested at December 31, 2008 1,160 , 100 $17.72

As of December 31, 2008, there was $20.6 milliototd] unrecognized compensation cost related mvasted share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the long term inceptame That cost is expected to be recognized ovezightedaverage period of 9 years. 1
total fair value of shares vested during the yealed December 31, 2008 was $1.6 million. There wershares that vested during the period
November 21, 2007 to December 31, 2(
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11. Income Taxes

As a REIT, the Company is not subject to Feder@me tax on earnings distributed to its sharehslddost states recognize REIT status as
well. The Company has decided to distribute theonitgjof its income. During the year ended Decenfir2008 and the period November
21, 2007 to December 31, 2007, the Company recc@ti2@t31 and $4,960 of income tax expense relatsthte and federal tax liabilities on
undistributed income, respectively for an effectiae rate of 0%.

12. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company's primary components of market riskcezdit risk and interest rate risk. The Comparsuisject to credit risk in connection
with its investments in residential mortgage loand credit sensitive mortgage-backed securitieseithe Company assumes credit risk, it
attempts to minimize interest rate risk througteaisslection, hedging and matching the income €aonemortgage assets with the cost of
related liabilities. The Company is subject to ietd rate risk, primarily in connection with its/a@stments in fixed-rate and adjustable-rate
mortgage backed securities, residential mortgagesi@nd borrowings under repurchase agreements b€ ompany assumes interest
risk, it minimizes credit risk through asset sdtmtt The Company's strategy is to purchase loadsmwritten to agreedpon specifications ¢
selected originators in an effort to mitigate ctedik. The Company has established a whole loayetamarket including prime borrowers
with FICO scores generally greater than 650, Attgeumentation, geographic diversification, ownectguied property, moderate loan size
and moderate loan to value ratio. These factors@msidered to be important indicators of credik.ri

13. Management Agreement and Related Party Traosact

The Company has entered into a management agreeviteritlDAC, which provides for an initial term #hmgh December 31, 2010 with
automatic onerear extension options and subject to certain tation rights. The Company pays FIDAC a quarternagement fee equal
1.75% per annum of the gross Stockholders' Eqagydéfined in the management agreement) of the @wynManagement fees paid to
FIDAC for the year ended December 31, 2008 anddended December 31, 2007 were $8.4 million and &illion, respectively.

On October 13, 2008, the Company and FIDAC ametiteedchanagement agreement to reduce the base magragiem from 1.75% per
annum to 1.50% per annum of the Company's stockhslldquity and provide that the incentive fees b®in cash or shares of the
Company's common stock, at the election of the Gy board of directors.

On October 19, 2008, the Company and FIDAC furimended the management agreement to provide thaidéntive fee be eliminated in
its entirety and FIDAC receive only the base mansgyg fee of 1.50% per annum of the Company's stidkhs' equity.

The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC forcibsts incurred under the management agreemeanddition, the management
agreement permits FIDAC to require the Companyalpits pro rata portion of rent, telephone, uhti office furniture, equipment, machin
and other office, internal and overhead expens&AC incurred in the operation of the Companye3& expenses are allocated between
FIDAC and the Company based on the ratio of the @omw's proportion of gross assets compared t@@aining gross assets managed by
FIDAC as calculated at each quarter end. FIDACtardCompany will modify this allocation methodologubject to the Company's boar¢
directors' approval if the allocation becomes intdple (i.e., if the Company becomes very highlelmged compared to FIDAC's other fu
and accounts). FIDAC has waived its right to retjpeisnbursement from the Company of these expamsiissuch time as it determines to
rescind that waiver. The Company was requireditalyarse FIDAC for all costs FIDAC paid on behalftbé Company incurred in
connection with the formation, organization andiahipublic offering of the Company, which amounted$697,947.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, 140,98feslof restricted stock issued by the CompanyD&E's employees vested, as
discussed in Note 10.
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In March 2008, the Company entered into a RMBS m&mse agreement and a receivables sales agreeitteAnnaly. These agreements
contain customary representations, warranties anednants. As of December 31, 2008, the Companybeaswing $562.1 million under tr
repurchase agreement.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become invoiwedharious claims and legal actions arising indhdinary course of business.
Management is not aware of any reported or unregarbntingencies at December 31, 2008.

15. Summarized Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

The following is a presentation of the results péxations for the year ended December 31, 2008rengeriod November 21, 2007
(commencement of operations) to December 31, 2007.

For the Period

For the Quart
Ended December
2008 (unaudite

Interest income $ 23,65
Interest expense 10,95
Net interest income 12,70

Unrealized gains (losses) on

Interest rate swaps -
Realized gains (losses) on

sales of investments -
Realized gains (losses) on

terminations of interest rate

swaps -

Net investment income

(expense) 12,70
Expenses
Management fee 2,29
General and administrative
expenses 1,62
Total expenses 3,91

Income (loss) before

income taxes 8,78
Income tax (
Net income (loss) $ 8,78

Net income (loss) per share
- basic and diluted $ 0.0

Weighted average number
of shares outstanding -

basic and diluted 135,115,19

Net income (loss) $ 8,78

Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Unrealized (loss) gain on
available-for-sale securities
Reclassification adjustment
for realized (gains) losses
included in income -
Other comprehensive (loss)
income

(128,36

(128,36

Comprehensive (loss) income ($ 119,57

For the Quarter
er Ended September
31, 30,2008
d) (unaudited)

For the Quarter For the Q

Ended June 30, Ended Mar
2008 (unaudited) 2008 (una

November 21, 2007
uarter (date operations
ch 31, commenced) through
udited) December 31, 2007 (1)

6 $ 23458 $ 29951 $ 2
4 15,543 20,025 1

2 7,915 9,926 1

- 10,065 25,584 @3

- (113,130) 1,644 @3

- (10,460) 123

2 (105,610) 37,277 5
2 1,681 2,228

6 253 1,152

8 1,934 3,380

4 (107,544) 33,897 (5
3) 12 -

7 (¢ 107,556) $ 33,897 (3 5
76 2.76) $ 0.87 ($

0 38,992,803 38,999,850 37,74
7 (¢ 107,556) $ 33,897 (3 5
1) (146,456) (58,051) (8
- 113,130 (1,644) 3
1) (33,326) (59,695) 5
4) ($ 140,882) ($ 25798) ($ 11

(1) Derived from the audited financial statement®acember 31, 200

4,022 415
4172 3,077
1,493) (4,156)
2,819) -
0,140) (1,079)
2,227 1,217
2,565 605
4,792 1,822
4,932) (2,901)
3 5
4935) ($  2,906)
1.46) ($  0.08)
4,486 37,401,737
4935) (5  2,906)
8,257) 10,153
2,819 -
5,438) 10,153

0,373) $ 7,247
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized, in the city of New York, StateNéw York.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: /s/ Matthew Lanbi ase

Mat t hew Lanbi ase
Chi ef Executive Oficer and President
February 27, 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on the iddicated.

Si gnat ures Title Dat e

Chi ef Executive O ficer, President,
and Director (Principal Executive
/sl Natthew Lanbi ase O ficer) February 27, 2009

Mat t hew Lanbi ase

Chi ef Financial Oficer (Principal
/sl A. Al exandra Denahan Fi nanci al and Accounting O ficer) February 27, 2009

A. Al exandra Denahan

/sl Jereny Di anond Di rector February 27, 2009

Jereny Di anond

/sl Mark Abrans Di rector February 27, 2009
Mar k Abr ans
/sl Paul A. Keenan Di rector February 27, 2009

Paul A. Keenan

/'s/ Paul Donlin Di rector February 27, 2009

Paul Donlin
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Exhibit 23.3
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statement No. 333-156455 on Form S-3unfreport dated February 27, 2009,
relating to the consolidated financial statemefShimera Investment Corporation, and the effectess of Chimera Investment
Corporation's internal control over financial retoag, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 1@fkChimera Investment Corporation for
the year ended December 31, 2008.

/'s/ DELO TTE & TOUCHE LLP

New Yor k, New Yor k
February 27, 2009



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Matthew Lambiase, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fIChimera Investment Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedaontas designed under our supervisior
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over firiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reportitgit occurred during the registrant's most re
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal daain the case of an annual report) that has madlyeaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anthlve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committethe registrant's board of directors (or pesguerforming the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal costookr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefpmaincial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2009

/sl Matthew Lanbi ase

Mat t hew Lanbi ase

Chi ef Executive Oficer and President
(Principal Executive Oficer)



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, A. Alexandra Denahan, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fIChimera Investment Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedaontas designed under our supervisior
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over firiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reportitgit occurred during the registrant's most re
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal daain the case of an annual report) that has madlyeaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anthlve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committethe registrant's board of directors (or pesguerforming the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal costookr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefpmaincial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2009

/sl A. Al exandra Denahan

A. Al exandra Denahan

Chi ef Financial Oficer
(Principal Financial Oficer)



Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fkKChimera Investment Corporation (the "Companyf)tfee year ended December 31,
2008 to be filed with Securities and Exchange Cossion on or about the date hereof (the "ReportMdtthew Lambiase, President, and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify rpuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A@D6R, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeoft$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coveyethe Report.

It is not intended that this statement be deeméxtiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeok 1934.

/sl Matthew Lanbi ase

Mat t hew Lanbi ase

Chi ef Executive Oficer and President
February 27, 2009



Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fkKChimera Investment Corporation (the "Companyf)tfee year ended December 31,
2008 to be filed, |,

A. Alexandra Denahan, Chief Financial Officer of tBompany, certify, pursuant to Section 906 ofShebane®©xley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.(
Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenft$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods cavieyethe Report.

It is not intended that this statement be deemédxtiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/sl A. Al exandra Denahan
A. Al exandra Denahan

Chi ef Financial Oficer
February 27, 2009



